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June 28, 1991 

I 
I The Honorable Mayor, Members of 

City Council, and the Citizens of
 
the City ofPittsburgh. Pennsylvania:
 

I 
I 

I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of 
Pittsburgh for the year ended December 31, 1990. 

I 
We believe that the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are 
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of 

I 
operations of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 
understanding of the City's financial activities, other than fixed assets, have been 
included. Responsibility for both the accuracy of data, and the completeness and 
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of 
the City. 

I INTRODUCfION 

I This year's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is presented in four 
sections: Introductory, Financial, Statistical, and Single Audit. The Introductory 
Section includes this letter, the City's organization chart, and a list of principal

I officials. The Financial Section consists of the independent certified public 
accountant's report, the general purpose financial statements, with the related notes, 
and the combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and 

I schedules. The Statistical Section includes financial and other pertinent data, 
generally presented on a multi-year basis. 

I 
I 
I 
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I 
IAdditionally, new to this year's report is the inclusion of the City's Single Audit of 

all federally funded programs. The City is required to undergo an annual single 
audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local I 
Governments. Information related to this single audit, including the schedule of 
federal financial assistance, findings and recommendations, and auditor's reports on 
the internal controls structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. I 
are included in the single audit section of this report. 

I 
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

I 
The City of Pittsburgh is located in the southwestern part of the Commonwealth 
forming the Golden Triangle where the Allegheny and Monongahela Rivers meet to Icreate the Ohio River. 

Economic Background: The abundant water resources fostered a strong industrial Ibase economy that has been the strength of Pittsburgh's past. Steel and heavy 
manufacturing dominated our economy and the successes of those industries were the 
prime economic indicators. I 
Steel and heavy manufacturing, while still present in our economy, no longer dictate 
our economic future. In keeping with national trends, Pittsburgh has successfully Ishifted from an industrial to a diversified economy. This diversity is the strength of 
Pittsburgh's future. 

IOur Present Economy: Today, Pittsburgh is the home of leading service industries 
such as high-technology, health, research, education, and finance and promises to be 
in the forefront of such emerging industries as "maglev" technology. In addition to a I
sound economy, other factors such as reasonably priced housing, relatively low crime, 
and excellent cultural and recreational opportunities make Pittsburgh one of the 
most livable cities in the nation. I 
Economic Statistics: Unemployment in the Pittsburgh Metropolitan Area was 5.0% 
in 1990, an increase of .4% over 1989 but still below the statewide and national rates I 
(both at 5.7%.) Steady employment gains continue to be experienced in non­
manufacturing, service, and trade industries. 

I 
Economic Outlook: Pittsburgh's economy is proving to be one of the more resilient 
regional economies in the nation. Since the start of the most recent recession in July 
1990, Pittsburgh ranks sixth out of the nation's 28 largest metropolitan areas in job I 
growth. The economic restructuring of the 19808 appears to have positioned 
Pittsburgh well for the economic realities of the 19908. I 

I 
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I 
I ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK (Continued) 

I With respect to the national recession, regional economists are characterizing 
Pittsburgh as a LIFO economic region. A Pittsburgh bank economist described our 

I 
economic outlook as follows: "Pittsburgh will be among those regions of the country 
that are Last In and First Out of this recession ... this will mark a major departure 

I 
from Pittsburgh's typical Last Out response to the postwar recessions." Seeds of 
economic recovery and growth are expected to be generated by continued progress in 
the new airport terminal, City Center, Sony Plant, and Duquesne Light projects. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

I 
I The following discussion of the major initiatives undertaken and contemplated is by 

no means comprehensive, and serves only to highlight the many positive economic 
indicators in the Greater Pittsburgh Area. 

I 
Pittsburgh's commitment to economic development and urban revitalization is 
evidenced by the numerous initiatives in progress and currently being planned Some 
of the more significant initiatives currently in progress include: 

I PITTSBURGH CITY CENTER - The $500 million City Center project is the 

I 
largest private sector initiative, the first phase of which includes a four level retail 
complex anchored by a Macy's department store, a 28 story office tower, a 330 room 
five star Grand Bay luxury hotel, gourmet restaurants, a food court, health club, and 
a 1700 car parking garage. Construction is slated to begin in November 1991. Phase 
two of this project envisions doubling the office component. 

I 
I CRA WFORD SQUARE - Crawford Square is a major City initiative to create a 

mixed income, near-downtown community in a former urban renewal district near 
the Civic Arena. Phase One, to begin in June 1991, will include 40 single-family 

I 
units and 200 rental units through a combination of garden apartments, townhouses, 
and detached single family units. All units are available at market rates, but with 
special financing packaged by the Urban Redevelopment Authority. Crawford 
Square will be affordable to moderate income renters and buyers. 

I FIFTH & FORBES RETAIL INITIATIVE The Fifth & Forbes Initiative 
represents an $18 million pedestrian space improvements project in the Downtown 
retail district, with funding shared equally among the City, State, Federal agencies, 

I and district property owners. A new downtown management organization will 
manage the district 

I THREE RIVERS STADIUM PROJECT - This project is a waterfront recreation and 
entertainment complex with an educational function. The first elements of the 
project, the $35 million Carnegie Science Center and Omnimax Theater, are currently 

I under construction. Also under construction is a new pedestrian ramp system linking 
Point State Park to the stadium area. 

I 
I 
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I 
MAJOR INITIATIVES (Continued) I 
WASHINGTON'S LANDING DEVELOPMENT - Furthering the City's continued I 
commitment to riverfront development, this estimated $62 million project includes a 
unique blend of commercial, recreational and residential initiatives. Construction is 
already underway on the marina and the first office building on the island. Plans I 
call for a restaurant, park, waterfront housing, a research and development facility, a 
light manufacturing plant, and commercial office space to be added to the recently 
completed boathouse. I 
PITTSBURGH TECHNOLOGY CENTER - The Center is a high-tech research 
office park promising to be a partnership between university-based research and I 
private enterprise in emerging industries. A 1995 completion date and an estimated 
$260 million public/private investment create a potential of an estimated 4,200 
permanent jobs. Construction has begun on the first research building at the I 
Pittsburgh Technology Center, located on the former l&L Steel Mill site. The 
University of Pittsburgh's 90,000 square foot biomedical research facility is expected 
to be completed early in 1992 Carnegie Mellon University plans to begin I 
construction on its 10,000 square foot research facility in 1992. 

ICRIMINAL JUSTICE COMPLEX - A new City-County Criminal lustice Complex 
will begin construction in the fall of 1991 on the site of the former B&O railyards. 
The County portion will consist of a new county jail and processing center, while the ICity portion will consist of a 2,000 to 3,000 car intermodal transportation center 
topped by a new Public Safety Building. 

IOAKLAND DEVELOPMENTS - The educational and medical complexes in the 
City's Oakland section continue to expand, with projects such as the Children's 
Hospital expansion (220,000 square feet), a new office building at Forbes and Craft IAvenues (200,000 square feet), the Iroquois Building expansion (to total 340,000 
square feet), and a new University of Pittsburgh Medical Center research facility 
(140,000 square feet) I 
OTHER PROJECTS - Numerous other projects are currently underway or planned. 
These projects include: I 

,. Midfield Terminal - (Project underway): $600 million airport 
terminal expected to generate thousands of jobs over the next twenty years having an I
estimated $9.4 billion impact on the region as a whole. 

,. Maglev Project - (Project in planning) : Magnetic Levitation Train I
Project to link Downtown to the Airport. Initial $300 million investment that could 
evolve into a major new technology to the region. 

I 
I 
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I 
I THE R.EPOR.TING ENTITY 

I The City provides the full range of municipal services contemplated by Pittsburgh's 

I 
Home Rule Charter adopted in 1976. These include public safety (police, fire, and 
emergency medical services), highways and streets, sanitation, recreation and cultural 
programs, urban redevelopment and housing, and general administrative services. 

I 
I This report includes all the funds and the account group of the City and also 

incorporates the financial statements of those related organizations which have been 
determined to be part of the City's reporting entity. The Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) has set certain criteria for including other entities as part of 
the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The criteria for determining 
component units of the reporting unit includes, but is not limited to: 

I 
a. Financial interdependency 

I b. Selection of governing authority 

I
 c. Designation of management
 

d. Ability to significantly influence operations 

I 
I 

Based on these criteria, the financial statements of the following organizations have 
been included as component units of the City of Pittsburgh: 

I
 * City of Pittsburgh Equipment Leasing Authority (ELA)
 
(Accounted for in Special Revenue, Debt Service, 
and General Long-Term Debt Account Group) 

I * Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority 
(Accounted for in Proprietary Fund Group) 

I * Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh 
(Accounted for in Proprietary Fund Group) 

I * Pension Trust Funds of the City of Pittsburgh 
(Accounted for in Trust and Agency Fund Group) 

I - Comprehensive Board 
- Municipal Employees Plan 

I - Police Pension Plan 
- Fire Pension Plan 

I 
I 

1-5 



I 
THE REPOR.TING ENTITY (Continued) I 
The financial statements of the following organizations ~ not ~ included in 
this report because they did not meet the above mentioned criteria: I 

,. The School District of Pittsburgh,. The Public Parking Authority of Pittsburgh,. I 
The Public Auditorium Authority of Pittsburgh and Allegheny County ,. 

IAllegheny County Sanitary Authority ,. Urban Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh,. Housing Authority of the City of Pittsburgh 

For informational purposes, summarized unaudited financial data have been I 
presented in note l(A) of the Notes to the financial statements in the accompanying 
report. A more detailed discussion of all potential components and the basis for 
inclusion/exclusion can also be found in note l(A). I 

IFINANCIAL INFOR.MATION 

Internal Control: Management of the City is responsible for establishing and Imaintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the 
City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting 
information is compiled to prepare financial statements in accordance with generally Iaccepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of 
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the Ibenefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires 
estimates and judgements by management. 

ISingle Audit: As a recipient of federal, state and local financial assistance, the City 
is also responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place 
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. IThis internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management and 
the internal audit staff of the City. 

I
As a part of the City's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the 
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal 
financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the government has I
complied with all applicable laws and regulations. The results of the City'S single 
audit for the year ended December 31, 1990 provided no instances of material 
weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable I
laws and regulations. 

I 
I 
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I 
I FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued) 

I Budget Control : Budget control is maintained at the line item level on a 
departmental basis. Activities of the General Fund and Capital Projects Fund are 

I 
controlled by an annual appropriated budget. Capital Projects are also controlled on 
a mUlti-year basis. 

REVENUES 

I 
I 
I Revenue Analysis: Revenues for governmental fund types (General Fund, Special 

Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Project Funds) totaled $313 million in 1990, an 
increase of $6.4 million, compared to $306.6 million in 1989. Taxes, including 
penalty and interest, which comprise 75.2% of governmental fund revenues, 
increased by $14.6 million in 1990. This increase in taxes is attributable, in part, to 
real estate tax rate increases along with a $93 million increase in the assessed value 

I 
of real estate. On balance, overall governmental fund type revenues only increased 
by 2.1% due to decreases in intergovernmental revenues primarily from federal 
sources. Special Revenue HUD grants decreased by $3.5 million, and Capital Project 
revenues decreased by $5.8 million in federal funding due to the timing of the 
submission of project expenditures for reimbursement. 

I 
I The amount of revenues from various sources, the percent of total revenues, and the 

amount of increase (decrease) from 1989 have been summarized in Table-Ion page 
1-9 of this letter. 

I Taxes & Rates: There were two tax rate changes during 1990. Real Estate taxes 

I 
increased 5 mills for buildings and 33 mills for land These increases were made in 
order to effect a revenue neutral tax swap permitting the reduction of the earned 
income tax from 1 5/8% in 1989 to 1% in 1990. The following is a summary of 
significant taxes including their rates and sources: 

I Real Estate Tax - Real property in the City is assessed by the Allegheny 
County Board of Property Assessment, Appeals and Review at a rate of 
25% of its fair market value. The rates for 1990 were 320 mills on 

I buildings and 184.5 mills on land These rates are up from 27.0 mills on 
buildings and 151.5 mills on land in 1989. A mill is $1 on each $1,000 of 
assessed value. All real estate in the County is reassessed annually. The 

I 1990 total assessed valuation of land and buildings increased by $93 
million over 1989 assessments. 

I Earned IncoDle Tax - This tax is levied at the rate of 1% on the 
wages or net profits earned by residents of the City. This rate is down 
from 1 5/8% in 1989. The intent of lowering the earned income tax is to 

I attract new residents to the City who are subject to lower suburban 
earned income taxes. 

I 
I 
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I 
IFINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued) 

Business Privilege Tax - The City taxes the gross receipts from I 
operating or conducting a service business, trade or profession in, or 
attributable to, the City at a rate of 6 mills. I 
Parking Tax - A tax equal to 25% of the consideration paid for each 
parking transaction is levied on the patrons of non-residential parking Iplaces in the City. 

Amusement Tax - This tax is levied at a rate of 10% on the admission Iprice paid by patrons of all manner and forms of amusement within the 
City. 

Mercantile Tax - A tax of 1 mill is levied on the gross receipts I 
of wholesale dealers of goods. wares, and merchandise. A 2 mill tax is 
levied on retail vendors of goods, wares, and merchandise. I 
Occupation Privilege Tax - A $10 annual tax is levied upon each 
individual whose principal place of employment is located in the City. I 
Deed Transfer Tax - A tax of 1.5% of the consideration paid for real 
property transfers is levied upon the transfer of an interest in real Iproperty situated in the City. 

Personal Property Tax - A levy of 4 mills is made upon certain classes I
of personal property based upon assessments made by the County. 

Institution Service Privilege Tax - Certain receipts of non-profit, I
non-charitable organizations conducting or operating a service or service 
institution in the City are taxed at a rate of 6 mills. 

I 
Tax Payments: Real estate taxes are payable quarterly, but a 2% discount is granted 
if paid in January. If a quarterly payment is not made by the last day of the I 
calendar quarter, a penalty of 1/2% per month and interest at the rate of 1% per 
month is imposed on the balance of the tax due for the year. I 
All non-real estate taxes, except the Deed Transfer Tax, which is payable at the time 
of transfer, and the Personal Property Tax, which is due August 31, are payable 
annually by April 15 or are payable quarterly or monthly. Consequently, the City is I 
in a strong operating cash position early in its fiscal year. 

I 
I 
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TABLE-l 

..
I 

SOURCE 
\0 

TAXES, PENALTY 
& INTEREST 

INTEREST EARNINGS 
FINES & FORFEITS 
LICENSES & FEES 
PITTSBURGH ZOO RECEIPTS 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 
MISCELLANEOUS 

TOTAL REVENUES 

1990 

ACTUAL 

$235.3 
9.5 
5.4 

13.0 
1.5 

44.0 
2.4 
.L.2 

I $313.0 

.. _----------------­

REVENUES 
(Governmental Funds) 

(in millions) 

1989" OF " OF 
TOTAL ACTUAL TOTAL 

75.2 % $220.7 72.0 % 
3.0 10.3 3.4 
1.7 4.4 1.4 
4.2 11.6 3.8 
0.5 1.5 0.5 

14.1 54.7 17.8 
0.8 2.1 0.7 
0.6 U 0.4 

100.0 $306.6 100.0 

INCREASE 
(DECREASE) 

Over 1989 

$14.6 
(0.8) 
1.0 
1.4 
0.0 

(10.7) 
0.3 
0.6 

$6.41 



I 
EXPENDITURES I 
Expenditures for governmental fund types in 1990 total $371.7 million. compared to 
$365.7 million in 1989 representing an increase of 1.6% or $ 6 million overalL The I 
largest dollar increases were in Public Safety expenditures. Public Safety 
expenditures, the majority of which are salaries, increased by $6.9 million over 1989, 
The modest overall governmental fund expenditures increase (1.6%) despite increases I 
in salaries, benefits, cultural and recreation, and general government is attributable to 
significant decreases in Intergovernmental and Capital Project expenditures. These 
decreases are due, in part, to declining intergovernmental funding on both the state I 
and federal levels. Decreases in capital project expenditures are a function of both 
the timing of project completions and the billing process. The detail of each 
functional area of expenditure is presented in Table - 2 on page I - 11 I 
GENERAL FUND - FUND BALANCE I 
The general fund is reported upon using the modified accrual basis of accounting as 
required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Those principles 
require the City to reserve the portion of its fund balance for those items which are I 
not available for expenditure. The required reservation of fund balance exceeded 
total fund equity by approximately $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 
1990. This difference is reflected as a negative unreserved/undesignated fund I 
balance in the accompanying financial statements. This accounting treatment should 
not be construed as constituting a negative cash position for the City as of December 
31, 1990. I 
PENSION TRUST FUND OPERATIONS I 
The operations of the Pension Trust Funds (Comprehensive, Municipal, Police, Fire, 
and Retirees' Trust Funds) experienced difficulty on several fronts during 1990. 
First, state aid decreased by $8.1 million (a 28% decrease over 1989) during the year. I 
This marks the first decline in state aid under Act 205 in seven years. With the 
current state budget constraints, some uncertainty exists as to whether or not this 
decreased aid will signal a recurring trend Due to certain changes in the actuarial I 
assumptions, though, the actuarially determined unfunded benefit obligation of City 
decreased by $34.7 million. I 
Secondly, the plans experienced significant losses on the sale of securities managed 
by its several plan managers. Aggregated losses on the sale of securities during 1990 Iwere $21 million. Thirdly, administrative expenses increased by $712,000 (a 95% 
increase over 1989) during the year due to additional indirect costs billed to the 
plans by the City. As a result, net income of the Pension Trust Funds dropped by I$13 million representing a 89% decrease. As of the date of the most recent actuarial 
report, January 1, 1990, the Total Pension Benefit Obligation was $4925 million. of 
which $410.3 million is considered unfunded. I 

I 
1-10 
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TABLE-2 

EXPENDITURES 

7"' CURRENT:.... .... GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
PUBLIC WORKS 
SANITATION 
CULTURAL & RECREATION 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CLAIMS & JUDGEMENTS 
MISCELLANEOUS 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 
BOND ISSUANCE COSTS 
DEBT SERVICE & SUBSIDIES 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

1990 

ACTUAL 

$25.6 
109.2 
35.9 
15.1 
24.8 
45.0 
0.7 
3.0 

14.6 
41.5 
0.0 

56.3 

[ $371.7 

EXPENDITURES 
(Governmental Funds) 

(irl IIlilli()Ils) 

%OF 1989 %OF 

TUfAL ACTUAL TUfAL 

6.9 % $23.4 6.4 % 
29.4 102.3 28.0 
9.7 34.6 9.5 
4.1 14.2 3.9 
6.7 22.3 6.1 

12.1 42.6 11.6 
0.2 0.6 0.2 
0.8 2.4 0.7 
3.9 20.0 5.5 

11.2 58.5 16.0 
0.0 1.5 0.4 

15.1 43.3 11.8 

100.0 $365.7 100.0 

INCREASE 
(DECREASE) 

Over 1989 

$2.2 
6.9 
1.3 
0.9 
2.5 
2.4 
0.1 
0.6 

(5.4) 
(17.0) 
(1.5) 
13.0 

$6.0 I 
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GENERAL FUND - FUND BALANCES I (GAAP BASIS) 

I _ Reserved 1>1 Unreserved 

I $ Millions 
$15 

I 
$10 

$5 

$0I 
-$5 

I -$10 
1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 

Unreserved -$4.9 -$1$5.1 -$1.1 

I Reserved 
$1.1 

$5 $4.7 $6.5 $12.6$5.3 

I
 
GENERAL LONG TERM DEBT I 

R Bonds Payable _ Accrued Pension Cost o Other

I $ Millions 

I 
$800 

$700 

I 
$600 

$500 

I 
$400 

$300 

I 
$200 

$100 

I 
$0 

1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 

FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS 
I 
I 
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

At December 31, 1990 the City's general obligation debt, exclusive of the Enterprise I 
Funds, was as follows: 

Gross bonded general obligation debt $ 413,727,500 I 
Less: Debt service fund 3,809,552 
Net bonded debt 409,917,948 
Ratio of net bonded debt to assessed value 19.79% I 
Ratio of net bonded debt to market value 4.95%
 
Net bonded debt per capita $1108
 I 

The gross bonded debt of the City consists of $382,445,000 of general obligation 
bonds, $23,075,000 of Equipment Leasing Authority (ELA) equipment revenue 
bonds and $8,207,500 of Public Auditorium revenue bonds. Under an agreement I 
with the ELA, the City has agreed to make annual rental payments for equipment 
leased to the City by the ELA to cover the debt service on ELA bonds. It is the 
policy of the City to obtain bond insurance on its debt issues to obtain the most I 
favorable market rates and upgrade its bond ratings to the highest available ratings. 

In February of 1990, the ELA issued $14,000,000 of equipment revenue bonds to I 
finance the purchase of equipment and vehicles to be leased to the City of 
Pittsburgh. Despite the new ELA debt, the gross bonded debt of the City decreased 
by $8,910,000 during 1990. I 

ICASH MANAGEMENT 

Cash in excess of current operating needs is invested in various types of financial 
instruments with local banks and other institutions. In response to significant losses I 
experienced by some state and local governments, the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) issued its Statement Number 3 which requires governments 
to classify and disclose its cash deposits and investments, along with the related level I 
of risk, in their financial statements. A discussion of the composition of the City's 
deposits and investments is presented in Note 3 in the accompanying General 
Purpose Financial Statements. I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
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I	 ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

I The Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority and The Stadium Authority of the City 
of Pittsburgh comprise the Enterprise Funds of the City of Pittsburgh. 

I 
PITTSBURGH WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY 

I 
I The Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority (PWSA) began operation on May I, 

1984, to assume responsibility for operating and improving the water and sewer 
systems of the City. The Authority has leased the two systems from the City for a 

I 
term of fifty years with renewal provisions. The City, acting as agent for the 
Authority, will manage, operate and maintain the systems. The Authority will 
reimburse the City for all related direct and indirect expenses, plus an additional 

I 
payment for the City's management services. The Authority is also making payments 
for $29.4 million of the City's General Obligation Debt related to the funding of 
water projects completed prior to the creation of the Authority. 

I	 As of December 31, 1990, PWSA bonds outstanding 
were as follows: 

I * Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds, 
Series of 1985 

I * Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds, 
Series of 1986 (June) 

I * Revenue Refunding Bonds. 
Series of 1986 (July) 

I 
Total Bonds Outstanding, December 31, 1990 

I Less :	 Escrow Funds 
Bond Discount 

I Net Bonds Payable. December 31, 1990 

I 

$ 97,000,000 

134,700.000 

264.090.000 

$ 495,790,000 

231,602,000 
12978,000 

$ 251,210,000 

The Series	 of 1985 and the July 1986 bonds were issued primarily to refund prior 
issues: $88,6 million and $241.4 million, respectively, were placed in escrow for this 

I	 purpose, These bonds are not guaranteed by the City, 

I 
I 
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued) 

STADIUM AUTHORITY I 
The Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh was established to construct and 
operate Three Rivers Stadium. The Authority operates on a fiscal year ending March 
31. All information related to the Stadium Authority included in the accompanying I 
report is as of March 31, 1990. 

As of March 31, 1990, Stadium Authority bonds outstanding were as follows: I 

* Guaranteed Stadium Refunding Bonds, I 
Series of 1985 $ 30,245,000 

* Guaranteed Funding Bonds, Series of 1986 19.695.000 I 
ITotal Bonds Outstanding, March 31, 1990 $ 49,940,000 

I
The City has agreed to pay the principal and interest on these bonds to the extent 
that the revenues of the Stadium Authority do not cover the debt service 
requirements. In addition, the City has guaranteed the subsidization of operating I
deficits of the Authority. 

I 
INDEPENDENT AUDIT 

I
For the ninth consecutive year, the City's financial statements have been audited by 
the independent certified public accountant firm of KPMG Peat Marwick, whose 
audit opinion precedes the accompanying General Purpose Financial Statements, I 
The Employee Pension Plans were audited by Terry and Stephenson, P.c. as 
subcontracted by KPMG Peat Marwick. The financial statements of the plans have I 
been included in the Trust and Agency Funds of the accompanying financial 
statements, The financial statements of the PWSA were audited by Ernst & Young, 
and Deloitte & Touche audited the financial statements of the Stadium Authority, I 

I
 
I
 
I
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I
 
I
 
I Respectfully submitted, 

I ,-z-A'1~ 

I 
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I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I KPMG Peat Marwick 
I One Mellon Bank Center 

Pittsburgh. PA 15219 

I
 
I
 

Independent Auditors' Report 

I 
I 

To the Honorable Members of Council of
 
the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania:
 

I We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 1990, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. 

I 
These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our 
audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority or the 

I 
Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh, which statements comprise the entire enterprise fund 
type. We did not audit the financial statements of the following City of Pittsburgh Pension Trust 
Funds: Comprehensive Board, Municipal Plan, Police Plan and Fire Plan, which statements 
reflect total assets and revenues comprising 64 percent and 89 percent, respectively, of the related 
Fiduciary Fund totals. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports 
thereon have been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the 

I amounts included for the proprietary and fiduciary fund types, is based solely upon the reports of 
the other auditors. 

I We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 

I 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general 
purpose financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provides a reasonable basis for our 

I opinion. 

I 
Records with respect to the historical cost of general purpose fixed assets and a comprehensive 
inventory of such assets are not available (see note 1). Consequently, a general fixed asset account 
group is not included in the accompanying general purpose financial statements. 

I In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, except for the effect on the 
financial statements of the omission described in the preceding paragraph, the general purpose 

I 
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, at December 31, 1990, and the results of its operations 
and the cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

I As described in note 8, the City has vested pension benefit obligations which are significantly in 
excess of related available assets. 

I 
I ·~ 

. 
.. .•••I Member Firm of 

Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler 

Telephone 412 391 9710 Telecopier 412 391 8963 

Telex 7106642199 PMM & CO PGH 
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KPMG Peat Marwick I
 

I
 
To the Honorable Members of Council of
 

the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
 
Page 2
 I
 

I
 
IOur audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial 

statements taken as a whole. The combining, individual fund and individual account group 
financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial I
 
statements of the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. The current year's information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements 
and, in our opinion, based upon our audit and the reports of other auditors, except for the effect of I
the matter discussed in the third preceding paragraph, is fairly presented in all material respects in 
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

The schedules of supplementary pension disclosures listed in the accompanying table of contents I
 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements but required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management, regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of I

the supplementary information. However, we did not audit this information or other information 
in the statistical section as set forth in the table of contents and, therefore, express no opinion 
thereon. I


I<pm (,.. 

I
 
June 12, 1991 I
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I 
CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Canbi.ned Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Group I 
December 31, 1990 

I 
Governmental Fund 'JYpes 

ISpecial Debt 
General Revenue Service 

Assets ICash and invest::Irents, at cost which
 
approximates market (note 3) $ 36,418,103 12,470,994 3,857,107
 

Receivables:
 
Real estate taxes (net of allowance for
 I 

uncollectible account of $17,442,194 in 1990
 
and $16,368,725 in 1989) (note 6) 5,898,132
 

Sewage charges (net of allowance for
 Iuncollectible accounts of $3,161,000 in 1990
 
and $3,575,000 in 1989) 1,486,543
 

Personal property taxes (net of allowance
 
for uncollectible account of $282,000 in 1990
 I 
and $275,000 in 1989) 33,767
 

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for
 
uncollectible accounts of $16,753,000 in 1990
 I 
and $15,992,558 in 1989) (note 16)
 

Receivable fran PWSA (note 4) 12,533,783
 
Accrued interest 61,792 92,665 83,598
 
Other 2,637,206 365,575
 I 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,135,279 
Due fran other funds (note 11) 3,198,169 71,650 
Due fran other govennnents 4,826,596 I 
Inventories, at cost 1,730,673
 
Tnlsteed and restricted funds
 

(note 3, 5 and 9E)
 I 
Property, plant and equiprent, net (note 7)
 
Anount available in debt service funds for
 

reti.:r:arent of lx>nds
 I 
Anount to be provided for retirarent of lx>nds
 
Anount to be provided for other
 

long-tenn obligations
 I 
Deferred PWSA Hydro-Electricity Division expense 

Total assets $ 66,133,447 17,827,480 3,940,705 I 
see accanpanying notes to General Purpose Financial Statements. I 

1 

I
 
I
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I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Capital 
Project 

32,860,506 

Proprietary 
Fund~ 

Enterprise 

21,923,549 

Fiduciary 
Fund~ 

Trust and 
Agency 

128,189,657 

Account Group 
General 

rong-Tenn 
Debt 

'lbtals 
(Merrorandum Only) 

1990 1989 

235,719,916 249,453,398 

I 
I 

5,898,132 

1,486,543 

33,767 

4,812,521 

1,090,128 

27,700 

I 
I 
I 

1,405,941 
1,139,312 

11,284,085 

24,000 

187,962 

1,372,305 

2,250,000 
37,458 

11,284,085 
12,533,783 
1,634,360 
3,002,781 
2,323,241 
6,925,760 
6,003,366 
1,730,673 

11,626,042 

1,467,322 
2,503,048 
2,238,835 
7,515,508 

11,752,323 
2,980,251 

I 
I 

111,050,297 

150,089,821 

3,809,552 
409,917,948 

111,050,297 

150,089,821 

3,809,552 
409,917,948 

134,457,719 

130,190,370 

4,773,049 
417,864,451 

I 752,000 
281,560,277 281,560,277 

752,000 
273,673,767 

I 35,405,759 295,311,714 131,849,420 695,287,777 1,245,756,302 1,256,426,432 

I 
I 2 

I 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Canbined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Group 

December 31, 1990 

IGovernrrental Fund !yws 

Special Debt 
General Revenue Service I 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 7,936,938 1,974,589 
Retainage payable 32,792 I 
Accrued interest payable 131,153 
Accrued liabilities 8,360,545 442,950 
Deferred canpensation payable IDue to other funds (note 11) 2,250,000 3,686,635
 
Benefits payable to City of Pittsburgh
 
Grants fran the City of Pittsburgh
 

(note 16A) I 
Due to other governrrents 3,441,712
 
Deposit held in trust
 
Liabilities payable fran trusteed
 Iand restricted funds
 
Bonds payable, net (note 9)
 
capital lease obligations (note 9F)
 
Deferred loan (note 9H)
 I 
Accrued pension costs (notes 8
 

and 9G)
 
Accrued workers' carpensation (note 9G) 12,332,000
 I 
Accrued canpensated absences (note 9G) 13,313,000
 
Deferred revenue 7,007,407
 

ITbtal liabilities 54,641,602 6,136,966 131, 153 
Fund equity (deficit): 

Contributed capital (including 
$7,398,631 restricted for I 

construction purposes)
 
(note 13)
 

Retained earnings (accumulated
 Ideficit) : (note 15)
 
Fund balances:
 

Reserved for:
 
EndCJWIIEnts
 I 
Inventories 1,730,673
 
Encumbrances 1,923,339 565,184
 
Employee retirement systan
 I 
Employee benefits 1,591,155
 
PWSA benefits receivable (note 4) 7,350,000
 

Unreserved: 
Designated for debt service 3,809,552 I 
Designated for subsequent years' 

expenditures 390,550
 
Undesignated (1, 103,322) 10,734,780
 I 

Tbtal fund equity (deficit) 11,491,845 11,690,514 3,809,552 

Tbtal liabilities and fund equity $ 66,133,447 17,827,480 3,940,705 I 
3 

I 
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I 
I Capital 

Project 

Proprietary 
Fund 'lYPe 

Enterprise 

Fiduciary 
Fund 'lYPe 

Trust and 
Agenc;y 

Account Group 
General 

wng-Tenn 
D=bt 

'Ibtals 
(MemJrandum Only) 

1990 1989 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

3,717,899 
654,134 

195,863 

576,623 

12,533,000 

8,276,622 

12,776,599 
299,720,000 

4,200,988 
15,705,773 

989,125 

61,496 
1,267,069 

413,727,500 
7,309,277 
2,130,000 

14,206,049 
686,926 
131,153 

13,200,346 
15,705,773 
6,925,760 

12,533,000 

8,276,622 
3,503,208 
1,267,069 

12,776,599 
713,447,500 

7,309,277 
2,130,000 

19,188,830 
1,218,844 

596,157 
13,755,841 
12,244,933 
7,515,508 

4,311,353 
976,882 
710,593 

11,719,077 
724,559,500 

8,138,767 
1,704,000 

I 
I 4,567,896 333,882,844 

76,835 

22,301,286 

211,749,000 
60,372,000 

695,287,777 

211,749,000 204,787,000 
72,704,000 69,615,000 
13,313,000 10,949,000 
7,084,242 4,499,098 

1, 116,949 ,524 1, 096,490,383 

I 
I 

12,675,631 

(51,246,761) 

12,675,631 

(51,246,761) 

12,675,631 

(35,731,991) 

I 
I 
I 

11,637,788 

218,542 

84,651 
108,698,178 

218,542 
1,730,673 

14,210,962 
108,698,178 

1,591,155 
7,350,000 

3,809,552 

279,728 
2,980,251 

17,394,313 
105,236,229 

1,614,968 

4,773,049 

I 
I 

19,200,075 

30,837,863 

35,405,759 

(38,571, 130) 

295,311,714 

97,411 
449,352 

109,548,134 

131,849,420 695,287,777 

19,688,036 41,309,610 
10,080,810 9,404,261 

128,806,778 159,936,049 

1,245,756,302 1,256,426,432 

I 
4 
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I 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Ccmbined Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes
 Iin Fund Balances - All Governrrental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 

Revenues: 
Taxes, including penalty and interest 
Interest earnings 
Fines and forfeits 
Licenses and fees 
Pittsburgh Zoo receipts 
Intergovernrrental revenues 
Charges for user services 
Miscellaneous 

'Ibtal revenue 
Expenditures: 

Current operating: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Sanitation 
Carmunity, recreation and cultural programs 
Employee benefits 
Claims and judgnents 
Miscellaneous 

Intergovernmental programs
 
Capital projects
 
Bond issuance cost
 
Debt service:
 

Principal retirEmant
 
Interest and fiscal charges
 
Authorities debt subsidies
 
lease payJIEnts
 

'Ibtal expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

See accanpanying notes to general purpose financial statements. 

5 

I 
Governrrental Fund 'JYpes I 

General 

$ 235,257,297 
5,592,501 
5,411,995 

13,045,921 
1,469,624 
3,296,127 

1, 704,659 

265,778,124 

17,549,519 
107,383,440 
28,813,394 
15,070,282 
20,444,641 
45,003,247 

656,403 
2,991,486 

2,664,786 
669,631 

3,511,221 

244,758,050 

$ 21,020,074 

Special
 
Revenue
 

I 
1,220,562 

I 
32,299,903 
2,429,744 I 

35,950,209 I 
8,069,638 
1,814,485 I7,127,195 

4,403,685 I 
14,572,171 I
8,058,125 

I 
83,258 I 

44,128,557 

I 
(8,178,348) 

I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Debt 
Service 

2,717,917 

Capital 
Projects 

8,381,235 

236,492 

Fiduciary 
Fund Type 

Expendable 
Trust 

2,275,347 

1,747,527 
391,919 

'lbtals 
(Memorandum Only) 

1990 1989 

235,257,297 220,733,176 
11,806,327 12,337,707 
5,411,995 4,392,875 

13,045,921 11,562,149 
1,469,624 1,479,290 

43,977,265 54,741,463 
4,177,271 3,057,485 
2,333,070 1, 795,187 

I 2,717,917 8,617,727 4,414,793 317 ,478, 770 . 310,099,332 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

22,555,000 
26,814,683 

33,482,801 

1,295,288 

1,194,781 

55,269 

25,619,157 
109,197,925 
37,235,877 
15,070,282 
26,043,107 
45,003,247 

656,403 
3,046,755 

14,572,171 
41,540,926 

25,219,786 
27,484,314 

3,511,221 
83,258 

23,431,362 
102,271,043 
35,279,436 
14,186,732 
23,560,287 
42,566,932 

646,903 
2,470,154 

20,024,649 
58,460,747 

1,495,986 

15,668,877 
24,444,069 
3,225,815 

I 
49,369,683 33,482,801 2,545,338 374,284,429 367,732,992 

I 
(46,651, 766) (24,865,074) 1,869,455 (56,805,659) (57,633,660) 

I 
I 6 

I 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Canbined Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes 

in Fund B:llances - All Goverrnnental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds I 
For the Year	 Ended December 31, 1990 

(Continued) I 
I

Goverrnnental	 Fund 'JYpes 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures brought forward 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Bond sale proceeds (note 9) 
Proceeds fran fixed asset dispositions 
capital lease obligation proceeds (note 9F) 
Deferred loan proceeds (note 9H) 
Operating transfers fran other funds 
Operating transfers to other funds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and other uses 

Fund balances, beginning of year 

Equity transfers between funds (note 12) 

Fund balances, end of year 

See accarpanying notes to general purpose financial 

7
 

General 

21,020,074 

2,587,999 
426,000 

27,395,500 
(45,569,139) 

(15,159,640) 

5,860,434 

5,541,688 

89,723 

$ 11,491,845 

statements. 

SPeCial 
Revenue I 

(8,178,348) I 
13,912,500 

679,848 

I 
2,635,386 

(8,038,896) I 
9,188,838 

I
1,010,490 

10,714,696 I 
(34 ,672) 

11,690,514 I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Debt 
Service 

I
 (46,651,766)
 

I
 
I 

45,733,248 
(44,979) 

45,688,269 

I 
I 

(963,497) 

4,773,049 

I 3,809,552 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

capital 
Projects 

(24,865,074) 

24,643 
(259,900) 

(235,257) 

(25,100,331) 

55,990,787 

(52,593) 

30,837,863 

Fiduciary
 
Fund Type
 
Expendable 

Trust 

1,869,455 

5,134,137 
(5,000,000) 

134,137 

2,003,592 

22,772,712 

(2,458) 

24,773,846 

8
 

'Ibtals 
(MalDrandum Only) 

1990 1989 

(56,805,659) (57,633,660) 

13,912,500 
679,848 

2,587,999 
426,000 

80,922,914 
(58,912,914) 

59,199,264 
341,616 

1,691,443 
426,000 

56,720,004 
(49,188,004) 

39,616,347 69,190,323 

(17,189,312) 11,556,663 

99,792,932 88,236,269 

82,603,620 99,792,932 

8
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I 
CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Canbined Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and IChanges in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Data on the Budgetary
 
Basis - General Fund
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1990
 I
 
I
General Fund 

Variance ­
Budget favorable 

as arrended Actual (unfavorable) I 
Revenues: 

Taxes, inclUding penalty and Iinterest $ 233,049,000 240,016,467 6,967,467
 
Interest earnings 6,000,000 5,488,147 (511,853)

Fines and Forfeits 4,900,000 5,404,873 504,873
 
Licenses and fees 12,420,000 12,448,531 28,531
 I 
Pittsburgh Zoo receipts 1,550,000 1,456,819 (93,181)

Water and sewer Authority
 

reimbursarents and transfers 31,802,314 34,740,237 2,937,923 I
Intergoverrnrental revenues 5,447,747 5,285,667 (162,080)
Miscellaneous 2,700,000 2,947,537 247,537 
Retiranent Benefit Trust Fund 

reimbursarent 5,000,000 5,000,000 I 
'Ibtal revenues 302,869,061 312,788,278 9,919,217 I 

Expenditures: 
Current operating 

General goverrnrent 24,734,255 21,172,577 3,561,678 
Public safety 109,671,337 104,244,112 5,427,225 I 
Public works 38,975,171 35,001,008 3,974,163 
sanitation 15,192,785 14,351,517 841,268 IWater 17,230,485 15,584,003 1,646,482
 
camtuni.ty, recreation and
 

cultural pn>grams 22,565,319 21,160,369 1,404,950
 
F}rployee benefits 49,526,801 47,862,619 1,664,182
 I 
Claims and judgarents 716,785 466,144 250,641
 
Miscellaneous 13,364,094 11,326,299 2,037,795
 

Debt service: 
Principal retiranents 11,680,000 11,390,000 290,000 I 
Interest and fiscal charges 24,668,000 23,588,514 1,079,486 
Stadium Authority subsidy 2,218,409 2,218,204 205 
Public Auditorium authority subsidy 1,294,676 1,293,017 1,659 I 

'Ibtal expenditures 331, 838,117 309,658,383 22,179,734 I 
See accanpanying notes to general purpose financial statements. 

(Continued) I 
9 
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I 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I Canbined Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Data on the Budgetary 

Basis - General Fund 

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 
(Continued) 

I 
I General Fund 

Variance ­
Budget favorable 

as amended Actual (unfavorable) 

I 
I Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures $ (28,969,056) 
Fund balances - budgetary basis, 

beginning of year 28,969,056 

Fund balances - budgetary basis,
 
end. of year
I $ 

AdjUS1:Jrent to generally accepted
 
accounting principles (GAAP) basis


I (NJte 2): 

I 
Cumulative difference between 

budgetary basis and GAAP basis, 
beginning of year 

I 
Net effect of GAAP basis recognition 

of revenues 
Net effect of GAAP basis recognition 

of expenditures 

I 
Net effect of GAAP basis recognition
 

of other financing sources
 
Fund balances - GAAP basis, end of year
 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

3,129,895 

29,558,428 

32,098,951 

589,372 

32,688,323 32,688,323 

$ 

(24,016,740) 

(4,908,918) 

(2,321,024) 

10,050,204 
11,491,845 

10
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CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Canbined. Statarent of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
 

AcctmlUlated Deficit/Fund Balances - Enterprise and Pension Trust Funds
 I 
For the Year Ended. December 31, 1990 

I 
Proprietary Fiduciary I 
Fund 'Iype Fund 'Iype 

'Ibtals 
Pension (Matorandum Only) IEntemrise Trust 1990 1989 

Operating revenues: 
Water charges $ 40,416,000 40,416,000 37,385,000 I 
Rentals 2,922,336 2,922,336 2,853,008
Medallions 1,320,000 1,320,000 1,320,000
Stadium bond service Icharges 677,966 677,966 685,410

Concessions 1,119,736 1,119,736 1,393,104

Contributions 36,082,128 36,082,128 45,536,330

Investment incare 4,280,580 4,280,580 6,013,114
 I 
Miscellaneous 585,133 50,608 635,741 444,762 

'Ibtal operating revenues 47 ,041,171 40,413,316 87,454,487 95,630,728 I 
Operating expenses: 

Benefit payrrents 37,053,081 37,053,081 35,860,388
Salaries and wages 11,044,010 11,044,010 10,245,301 I 
Allocation of city indirect
 

expenses 4,202,935 4,202,935 2,753,000

Utilities 5,030,000 5,030,000 4,070,792 I 
Depreciation and anortization 3,658,665 3,658,665 2,780,472
 
Purification chanicals 1,242,000 1,242,000 1,076,000
 
Payrrents to non-City water
 Iagencies 2,392,000 2,392,000 2,334,000
 
Repairs and maintenance 972,529 972,529 1,152,727

Insurance 351,258 351,258 365,791
 
Materials, supplies and rentals 1,111,000 1,111,000 881,000
 I 
Administrative and other
 

operating expenses 1,713,118 1,785,424 3,498,542 2,378,501
 
Miscellaneous 2,259,000 2,259,000 1, 113,000
 I 

'Ibtal operating expenses 33,976,515 38,838,505 72,815,020 65,010,972 

Operating incare (carried I 
forward) 13,064,656 1,574,811 14,639,467 30,619,756 

I 
(Continued) 

I 
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I	 CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Canbined Statarent of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

I Accunulated Deficit/Fund Balances - Enterprise and Pension Trust Funds 

I 
For the Year Ended. Decanber 31, 1990 

(Continued) 

I	 Proprietary 
Fund '!i'Pe 

I Ente:rprise 
~ating incare (brought 

forward) $ 13,064,656

I Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest incare 

I Net interest expense 

I 
Other expense, principally 

am::>rtization of 0000 
issue costs 

lDss on disposal of assets 

Total nonoperating

I revenues (expenses) 

I 
Incare before operating 

transfers 
Operating transfers to other 

funds 

I Net incare (loss) 
Accunulated deficit/fund 

balance, beginning of year

I Accunulated deficit/fund 
balance, end of year 

I
 
I
 
I
 

12,554,270 
(18,059,696) 

(1,064,000) 

(6,569,426) 

6,495,230 

(22,010,000) 

(15,514,770) 

(35,731,991) 

$(51,246,761)
 

Fiduciary 
Fund IYPe 

Totals 
Pension (:MemJrandum Only) 
Trust 1990 1989 

1,574,811 14,639,467 30,619,756 

12,554,270 
(18,059,696) (4,638,251) 

(1,064,000)	 (1,068,000) 
(1,243,803) 

(6,569,426)	 (6,950,054) 

1,574,811 8,070,041 23,669,702 

(22,010,000) (7,532,000) 

1,574,811 (13,939,959) 16,137,702 

83,199,477 47,467,486 31,329,784 

84,774,288 33,527,527 47,467,486 

I
 See accanpanying notes to general pm:pose financial statem:mts.
 

I	 12 

I 



CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

13 
I 
I 

Canbined. Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds 
For the Year Ended. December 31, 1990 

(Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents) I 

Cash flows fran operating activities: 
Operating inccme 
Reconciliation of operating inccme to net cash 

provided by operating activities:
 
Depreciation and aroortization
 

Change in operating assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Other current assets 
Accounts payable and accIUed. expenses 
AcCIUed. interest payable 
Deferred revenue 
Deferred expense 
Due to City of Pittsburgh 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows fran investing activities: 
Interest earnings 
Interest earnings on restricted. funds 
Purchase of investment securities 
Proceeds fran sale and maturities of investment securities 
Restricted. cash and investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Cash flows fran non-eapital financing activities: 
Principal payrrent related. to non-eapital funds 
Interest payrrents related. to non-eapital funds 

Net cash used. in non-capital financing activities 

Cash flows fran capital and related. financing activities: 
Payrrents to the City of Pittsburgh 
Grants fran the City of Pittsburgh 
Principal payrrents related. to capital funds 
Interest payrrents related. to capital funds 
Additions to stadimn canplex 
Acquisition and. constIUction of capital assets 

Net cash used. in capital and related. 
financing activities 

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

See accanpanying notes to general purpose financial statenEnts. 

13 

Proprietary
 
fund type
 I 

Entemrise 

$ 13,064,656 I 
3,658,665
 

16,723,321
 I 
610,422
 
19,586
 I30,000
 

(2,370,259)
 
(41,056)
 
54,578
 I 

(752,000)
 
12,533,000
 
26,807,592
 I 

145,270 I24,360,000
 
(47,793,000)
 
63,348,000
 

571,249 I 
40,631,519 

I(72,000)
 
(1,056,000)
 
(1, 128,000)
 I 

(22,010,000)
 
3,965,269
 I 

(2,523,000)
 
(35,761,696)
 

(109,408)
 I(21,395,000) 

(77,833,835) I 
(11,522, 724 ) 
56,831,273 

$ 45,308,549 I
 
I
 
I
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I CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Pu1:pJse Financial StatEmmts 

I December 31, 1990 

I
 ID1'E (1) Surrmary of Significant Accounting Policies 

I 
I The City of Pittsburgh (the City) was incorporated on July 20, 1816, and 

chartered as a hare-rule nunicipa1ity on January 5, 1976. The City 
operates under a strong mayor fonn of governrrent and provides the following 
services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police, fire and 
arergency maclical services), sanitation, culture and recreation, public 
improvarents, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. 

I The major accounting principles and practices followed by the City are 
presented	 below to assist the reader in evaluating the financial stat.enents 
and the accanpanying notes. 

I	 A. Detennination of the Reporting Entity 

The activities, organizations and functions of governnent

I	 ( "potential canponent units") that are included in these financial 

I 
statEmmts are those for which the City exercises oversight 
responsibility, those with which special financing relationships 
exist and those whose scope of service benefits primarily the City 
or its residents. 

I	 
Manifestations of oversight responsibility include: 

Selection of the governing authority, 

I	 Designation of managerent, 

Ability to	 significantly influence operations, and 

I	 Accountability for fiscal matters. 

The scope of public service criterion considers whether the

I	 activity of the potential canponent unit is for the benefit of the 

I 
Cityand/or its residents and whether the activity is conducted 
within the geographic ooundaries of the City and is generally 
available to City residents. 

I
 
(Continued) 

I
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CITY OF PI'lTSBURGI, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General PurpJse Financial StatarEnts 

I 
The following surrmarizes which entities have been included/excluded as 
canponent units of the City of Pittsburgh, for reporting purposes, based upon I 
the afo:rementioned criteria: 

Entities Included as Cagponent Units I 
•	 The Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh 

Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority I 
City of Pittsburgh Fquiprent leasing Authority I 
Enployee Pension Plans 

Entities Excluded as Cagponent Units I 
The SChool District of Pittsburgh 

Public Parking Authority of Pittsburgh I 
The Public Auditorium Authority of Pittsburgh and Allegheny County 

IUrban Redeveloprent Authority of Pittsburgh (URA) 

· Housing Authority of the City of Pittsburgh I 
· Allegheny County sanitary Authority (Alcosan)
 

Specific infonnation on the nature of the various potential canponent units and
 I 
a description of heM the afo:rementioned criteria have been considered in 
deteIInining whether or not to include or exclude such units in the City's 
financial statenents are provided in the following paragraphs. I 
The Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh (Stadium Authority) 

The Stadium Authority was established to construct and operate Three Rivers I 
Stadium. The Stadium Authority is administered by a five-nenber l:::xJard, all of 
wb:m are appointed by the Mayor. I
The principal revenue sources are fran rentals of the stadium and parking 
facilities and fran service charges on event tickets. The City has guaranteed 
the subsidization of operating deficits and the debt service requi.rarents of Ithe outstanding debt of the Stadium Authority. 

(Continued) I
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial StatE!l'ents 

The Stadimn Authority has been included as a carponent unit of the City's 
reporting entity because of the City's significant accountability for fiscal 
ma.tters. The Stadimn Authority operates on a fiscal year ending March 31. Its 
operations are included in the enterprise funds. 

Under an agreem,mt dated June 24, 1982, the Stadimn Authority and the Three 
Rivers Managemmt Co:q:oration (Three Rivers) as well as the Pittsburgh Athletic 
Coopmy, Inc. and the Pittsburgh Steelers Sports, Inc. aIIEnded a basic 
agrement, managE!l'ent lease, baseball lease and football lease (Stadimn 
agrearent) whereby the Stadimn Authority asstmed all the rights and 
responsibilities under the Stadimn agrements effective January 1, 1982. 

Pittsburgh Water and ~ Authority (Water and Sewer Authority) 

The Water and Sewer Authority was inco:q:orated in February 1984 under the 
Municipality Authorities Act of 1945 of the Carm:>~lth of Pennsylvania. The 
Water and Sewer Authority entered into a lease and ma.nagem:mt agreemant 
effective May 1, 1984 (agrearent) with the City. Under the teIlIlS of the 
agrearent, the Water and sewer Authority asstmed responsibility for the 
operation and rehabilitation of the water and sewer system of the City. 

The agrearent provides for the Water and Sewer Authority to lease the water and 
sewer system (system) fran the City and then contract the City to operate and 
ma.intain the system for a 50-year period. Under the agreemant, the Water and 
Sewer Authority reimburses the City for the direct operating costs of, and 
indirect costs allocated to, the system; debt service on existing City debt 
related to the system prior to the effective date of the agreement; and an 
"ack:litional payrrent" in consideration of the lease which is detennined by the 
City each year. The "ack:litional payrrent" is limited to a maximum of $4,052,000 
in 1990 increased by a specified price index thereafter. The "additional 
paynent" also includes up to 600 million gallons of water to be provided to the 
City annually at no charge. The agreenent also requires the Water and Sewer 
Authority to reimburse the City for payrrents to other non-eity water agencies 
representing the differences in rates between the City and those agencies 
related to water provided to City custOOErs by those non-eity water agencies. 
Paynents under the agreem:mt, with the exception of direct costs, are 
subordinated to the Water and Sewer Authority's obligations under its trust 
indenture. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Staterrents 

I 
The Water and Sewer Authority accounts for the lease as an operating lease. 
Costs related to the management agreerrent and the lease are recognized as 
operating expenses by the Water and Sewer Authority based upon billings by the I 
City. Future obligations of the Water and Sewer Authority in consideration of 
the lease are the payrrent of the City's debt and the "additional payrrent," 
which are treated as operating transfers. The "additional payrrent" can vary Iannually based on the City's discretion subject to certain limitations 
discussed arove. For 1991, the "additional payrrent" has been budgeted at 
$4,228,200. Debt service obligations of the City which are to be funded by the 
Water and Sewer Authority are as follows: I 

Year ended Decanber 31 Am:>unt I
1991 $ 3,338,000 
1992 3,228,000 
1993 3,145,000 
1994 3,051,000 I 
1995 2,611,000 
Later years 31.440,000 I 

Total minimum future lease payrrents $ 46,813,000 

IThe City is responsible to hold the Water and Sewer Authority hannless against 
any claims or judgrtEnts against the City or the Water and Sewer Authority 
related to the operation and maintenance of the system. The operations of the 
Water and Sewer Authority are included in the enterprise funds. I 
Authority anployees are eligible for retirement benefits under the City's 
Municipal RetirEmant Plan. The Authority records benefits expense based on I 
anounts billed by the City. 

ICity of Pittsburgh Eguignent leasing Authority (Eguignent leasing Authority) 

The Equiprent leasing Authority was incorporated in 1980 to serve as a 
financing vehicle for the acquisition of equiprent. The Equiprent leasing I 
Authority has outstanding $23,075,000 of Equiprent Revenue Bonds and has 
entered into lease agreements with the City pursuant to which the City has 
agreed. to make annual rental payrrents to the Equiprent leasing Authority of I
varying anounts to cover debt service on the bonds. 

The Equiprent leasing Authority is a canponent unit of the City's reporting 
entity. Its operations are included in the special revenue funds, the debt I 
service funds and the general long-tenn debt account group. 

I 
(Continued) 
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGl, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statarents 

I 
I 

Enployee Pension plans 

I 
The City has three defined benefit pension plans, the Municipal Pension Fund 
(Municipal), the Policeman's Relief and Pension Fund (Police), and the 
Firem,ln's Relief and Pension Fund. (Fire), which together cover substantially 

I 
all City anployees. A canprehensive board oversees funding and investing 
activities. The Board. consists of seven nanbers, four of whan are appointed by 
the Mayor. 

Plan benefit matters are administered by separate boards which include, for all 
plans, the president of the City Council and the City Controller and,

I additionally, in the case of the Municipal and Fire plans, the Mayor. 

I 
The pension plans have been included as canponent units of the City'S reporting 
entity because of the City's oversight responsibility and its accountability 
for fiscal matters. 

I 
The Schcx::ll District of Pittsburgh 

I 
The Schcx::ll District exists to provide educational services to the residents of 
the City of Pittsburgh. The Schcx::ll Board. consists of nine elected members who 
have oversight responsibility. Schcx::ll Board. nanbers may not serve on the Board. 
if anployed by the City. 

I The City Treasurer and City Controller serve as the SChool District Treasurer 
and Controller, respectively. The Treasurer and Controller positions are not 
Board. positions. In case of vacancies on the Board, replacemants are appointed 
by the Mayor. The School District has separate taxing authority though

I collections are received by the City Treasurer and remitted to the School 
District. 

I The Schcx::ll District has not been included as a canponent unit of the City's 
reporting entity because of the limited oversight responsibility, designation 
of managarent and limited accountability for fiscal matters. 

I Public Parking Authority of Pittsburgh (Parking Authority) 

I 
The Parking Authority was created for the purpose of acquiring,d.eveloping and 
maintaining a coordinated systan of public parking facilities. The Parking 
Authority is administered by a five-nanber board, all of whan are appointed 
by the Mayor. 

I The Parking Authority obtains its revenue fran user charges and fran street 
parking neter revenues. Under an agreement between the Parking Authority and 
the City, street parking revenues are allocated 52% the Parking Authority and

I 48% to the City. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Staterrents 

I 
Managarent of the Parking Authority is not designated by the City nor does the 
City have the ability to significantly influence its operations. The City does I 
not subsidize the operations of the Parking Authority and does not guarantee 
its debt. The scope of public service, while generally available to City 
residents, is not exclusively for their benefit. I 
The Parking Authority has not been included as a canponent unit of the City's 
reporting entity because of the lack of significant oversight responsibility 
and. the lack of accountability for fiscal matters. The Parking Authority I 
operates on a fiscal year ending September 30. 

The Public Auditorimn Authority of Pittsburgh and Allegheny County I(Auditorimn Authority) 

The City of Pittsburgh and the County of Allegheny (the County) jointly created 
the Auditorimn Authority to build and operate the Pittsburgh Civic Arena. In I 
1989, the operation of the Civic Arena was turned over to a privately owned 
canpany under tenns of a lease agreerrent with an initial tenn of 50 years. 
Arumal rentals under the lease are approximate to the annual debt service I 
requi.renents on outstanding Auditorimn Authority oonds. 

In addition, the DePartJrent of General Services of the Ccmronwealth of IPennsylvania has financed and. constructed the David L. Lawrence Convention 
Center. The Convention Center has been leased to the Auditorimn Authority for 
a tenn of 30 years at a naninal rent. The City and County have agreed to pay 
one-half of any operating deficits. I 
The Auditorimn Authority is administered by a five-member toard. The City and 
County each appoint two board members. One member is appointed jointly. The I
City does not designate the management of the Auditorimn Authority nor does the 
City have the ability to significantly influence operations. The scope of 
public service, while generally available to City residents, is not exclusively 
for their benefit. I 
The Auditorimn Authority has not been included as a canponent unit of the 
City's reporting entity because of the limited oversight responsibility and. I 
limited accountability for fiscal matters. The Auditorimn Authority operates 
on a fiscal year ending June 30. 

IUrban Redevelogrent Authority of Pittsburgh (URA) 

The URA administers federal, state and local grants designed to provide a broad 
range of urban renewal and. maintenance programs within the City of Pittsburgh. I 

(Continued) I
 
I
19 

I 



I 
20 

I CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statemants 

I 
The URA is administered by a five-nanber board, all of whan are appointed by

I the Mayor. ManageTeIlt of the URA is not designated by the City nor does the 
City have the ability to significantly influence operations. The City does not 
subsidize the operations of the URA and does not guarantee its debt service. 

I 
I The URA has not been included as a canponent unit of the City's reporting 

entity because there is a lack of significant oversight responsibility and 
there is no accountability for fiscal matters. 

Housing Authority of the City of Pittsburgh (Housing Authority) 

I The Housing Authority was established to acquire and maintain properties for 

I 
the purpose of providing low-incare housing for residents of the City. Rental 
charges and subsidies fran Federal Housing and Urban Developnent grants are the 
principal revenue sources. 

The Housing Authority is administered by a seven-nanber 00ard, all of whan are 
appointed by the Mayor. City Council approves five of the seven appointIrents.

I The City does not designate the management of the Housing Authority nor does 

I 
the City have the ability to significantly influence operations. The City does 
not subsidize the operations of the Housing Authority and does not guarantee 
its debt service. 

I 
The Housing Authority has not been included as a canponent unit of the City's 
reporting entity because, although it operates within the City'S boundaries, 
there is a lack of significant oversight responsibility and there is no 
accountability for fiscal matters. 

I Allegheny County Sanitary Authority (Alcosan) 

I 
Alcosan provides sewage treatIrent services to the City and nunerous other 
municipalities in the County of Allegheny. Operating expenses and debt service 
are not guaranteed by the City. The City, ~r, is charged for its usage of 
the sewage facilities at the nonnal rates applicable to other custarers. In 
addition, delinquent sewage charges on properties in the City are purchased by

I the General Fund for collection because the City has the power to file liens on 
such properties. 

I Alcosan has not been included as a canponent unit of the City's reporting 
entity because there is no oversight responsibility and no significant 
accountability for fiscal matters. 

I 
(Continued)
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial StatEmants 

I 
The following table presents unaudited stmmaIy financial data based on the 
IIDSt recent published financial stat.enents of the entities that are not I 
part of the City's reporting entity: (OOO's anitted) 

City School Parking Auditorium Housing 
District Authority Authority URA Authority Alcosan I 

Assets 

Cash and tanporary I 
invest:mants $ 69,808 15,932 1,153 58,536 7,693 1,409 

Invest:mant, at cost 
which approximates Imarket 17,707 4,672 1,651 

Property, plant and 
equiprent, net 280,023 62,918 71,398 7,090 278,069 98,228 

Cost of projects in I 
progress 307,183 

Contributions, loans 
and accounts I 
receivable 18,693 4,319 35,360 48,249 5,375 14,908 

Other 132,254 4,268 150 335 616 44,468 

I'IbtalAssets $ 500,778 105,144 112,733 421,393 291,753 160,664 

Liabilities and Fund Equity I 
Bonds and notes 
payable 116,694 63,240 30,195 24,035 123,999 86,027 

Other liabilities 47,157 3,660 1,168 15,376 5,865 4,294 IFund equity 336,927 38,244 81,370 381,982 161,889 70,343 

'Ibtal liabilities and IFund Equity $ 500,778 105,144 112,733 421,393 291,753 160,664 

Revenues 369,715 19,143 7,539 296 14,469 32,187 
Expenses (368,408) (19,215) (8,238) (209) (33,178) (32,369) I 
Excess of Revenues 
over (under) IExpenses $ 1,307 (72) (699) ======8=7 (18,709) (182) 

I 
Fiscal pericxi ended 12-31-90 9-30-90 6-30-90 12-31-89 12-31-90 12-31-90 

I
 
I
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I CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Stat.enents 

I 
B. Fund Accounting Structure 

I The City's accounting structure embraces "fund" accounting which is the 
standard for goverJ11lental accounting as pranulgated by the GoverJ11lental 
Accounting Standards Board. 

I 
I A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing 

set of accounts recording cash and other financial resources, together with 
all related liabilities and residual equities or fund balances, and changes 
therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific 
activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special 
regulations, restrictions or limitations. The fund accounting structure

I for the City is as follows: 

GoverJ11lental Fund rrypes 

I 
I General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. 

It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to 
be accounted for in another fund. 

I 
Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or major 
capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified 
purposes. 

I Debt Service Funds - The debt service funds are used to account for the 
accumulation of resources for, and the payrrent of, general long-tenn debt 
principal, interest and related costs. 

I Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for 
financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major 
capital facilities (other than those financed by the enterprise funds). 

I Proprietary Fund type 

I Entemrise Funds - The enterprise funds are used to account for operations 
of the Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh and the Pittsburgh Water 
and Sewer Authority. These are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises - where the intent is that the costs of

I managing the operations of the stadium canplex and providing water to the 
general public are financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

I 
(Continued) 
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ICITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statenents I 
Fiduciary Fund 'rYPes 

ITrust and Agency Funds - Trust and agency funds are used to account for
 
assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
 
individuals , private organizations, other govermnents and/or other funds.
 
These include expendable trust, pension trust and agency funds. Pension
 I 
trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary
 
fWlds since capital maintenance is the primary measurement focus.
 
Expendable trust fWlds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as
 Igoverrnrental funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal
 
liabilities) and do not involve rreasurement of results of operations.
 

Account Group I 
General !.Dng-tenn Debt - This account group is established to account for 
all long-tenn obligations of the City, including general obligation oonds, I
capital lease obligations, accrued unfunded pension expense, and the 
non-current portion of accrued canpensated absences and workers ' 
carpensation expense. I 

C. Measurement Focus 

All goverrnrental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted for on a I 
spending or "financial flow" rreasuranent focus . Accordingly, on!y current
 
assets and current liabilities are generally included on their balance
 
sheets. The reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a
 Imeasure of "available expendable resources." Goverrnrental fund operating
 
statemants present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and
 
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.
 
Accordingly, these operating statemants present a surrrnary of sources and
 I 
uses of "available expendable resources" during the year. Expenditure
 
recognition for governmental fund types is limited to exclude anounts
 
represented by non-current liabilities. I 
Proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a "capital
 
maintenance" rreasuranent focus. Accordingly, all assets and all
 
liabilities are included on their balance sheets, and reported fund equity
 I 
provides an indication of the econanic net worth of the fund. Operating
 
statemants for proprietary funds and pension trust funds report increases
 
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total econanic net worth.
 I
 

I
(Continued) 
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purfose Financial Statements 

I 
D. Basis of Accounting

I GoveI'l1IlEntal fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds use the 
nodified accIUal basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they

I becare susceptible to accrual, that is, both measurable and available. 
Available means expected to be collected within the next Ur.o m:mths for 
property taxes and the next 12 rronths for other revenues. Revenues not 

I considered available are :recorded as deferred revenues. 

I 
In applying the susceptible to accIUal concept to intergoveI'l1IlEntal 
revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual 
programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially Ur.o types 

I 
of these revenues. In one, expenditures must be made for the spec::ific 
purpose or project before any anounts will be pa.id to the City; therefore, 
revenues are :recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the 
other, :receipts are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and 
are usually revocableonly for failure to canply with prescribed canpliance 
requirarents. These resources are reflected as revenues at the tine of

I :receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accIUal criteria are rret. 

I 
Revenues which have been treated as susceptible to accrual include certain 
property taxes, federal and state revenues and interest earnings. All 
other revenues are :recognized when :received in cash. 

I 
Expenditures are :recorded when the liability is incurred if it is expected 
to be pa.id within the next 12 rronths, except for interest and principa.l on 

I 
general long-tenn obligations which are :recorded when due. Liabilities 
expected to be pa.id after 12 rronths are recorded in the general long-tenn 
debt account group. 

I 
The financial stat.arents of the proprietary fund type and the pension tIUst 
funds are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this rrethod 
of accounting, all revenues are :recorded when earned and expenses are 
:recorded at the tine liabilities are incurred without regard to :receipt or 
pa.ynent of cash.

I 
I (Continued) 
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
E. BudgetaIy Data I 

1.	 General Budget Policies - As required by the HaTE Rule Charter, the
 
City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data
 
reflected in the financial statements:
 I 
a.	 On the second Monday of November preceding the fiscal year, 

the Mayor presents to City Council an operating budget and a 
capital budget for the succeeding fiscal year. I 

b.	 Public hearings are conducted to obtain the advice of other 
officials and citizens as part of the preParation of both Ibudgets. 

c.	 Before the beginning of the fiscal year, City COWlCil 
adopts, by resolution, both budgets. I 

d.	 The adoption of the operating and capital budgets 
constitutes an appropriation or setting apart of funds fran I 
general resources of the City for purposes set forth in the 
budgets. 

Ie.	 City Council may arrend, by resolution, the oPerating budget 
within five weeks after the beginning of the fiscal year but 
not thereafter except with the approval of the Mayor. The 
capital budget may, by resolution, be arrended by Council at I 
any tine. 

f.	 City Council at all tines may, by resolution, transfer funds I
fran one account to another if the total budget anount is 
not exceeded. No revision to the budget may be made without 
City Council approval. The operating budget shall, in any 
event, remain balanced at all tines. I 

g.	 The capital budget is based on a proposed six-year capital 
program which must be updated each year and sutmitted to I 
Council by the Mayor at least 30 days prior to the day the 
operating budget is sutmitted. 

I
 
I
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial StaterlEnts 

I 
I 

h. Fornal budgetary integration is employed as a managem:mt 
control device for the general fund and the capital projects 
funds. Fornal budgetary integration is not employed for the 

I 
debt service funds since effective budgetary' control is 
alternatively achieved through general obligation bond 
indenture provisions, nor for the special revenue funds since 

I 
control is achieved through grant provisions or legislative 
action. Budgets for the capital projects funds are prepared 
on a project basis. 

i. All budgets are prepared and controlled on a line itan 
basis. For financial staterlEnt purposes, budgets have been

I sumnarized on a depart::nental basis. 

I 
j. Appropriations lapse at year end. City Council can, however, 

authorize, by resolution, the carryover of appropriations to 
the follOlNing year. 

I 
k. Budget figures are as emended by City Council with Mayoral 

approval. All budget emendrrents represent line item 
transfers betwE!en expenditure accounts. 

I 2. Encumbrances - Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, 

I 
resolutions, contracts and other carmit.mants for future expenditures 
are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable 
appropriation, is employed in all governmental funds of the City. 
Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of 
fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or 
liabilities. 

I 
I 
I 3. Budget Basis of Accounting - The general fund budget is adopted on a 

cash basis. Encumbrances for purchase carmit.mants are treated as 
restrictions of available cash and not as expenditures. Budgets in 
capital projects funds are also adopted on a cash basis, except that 
budgets for each project are adopted on a project basis which may 
encanpass a period longer than one year . Accordingly, budgetary 
canparisons for capital projects funds have been emitted fran the 
Canbined StaterlEnt of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances - Budget and Actual Data on the Budgetary Basis. 

I F. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

I For statarent of cash £lOIN purposes, cash and cash equivalents include all 
high!y liquid invest.mants, including trusteed and restricted assets, with a 
maturity of three m:::>nths or less. 

I (Continued) 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial StaterrEnts 

I 
G. InvestnEnts I

InvestnEnts in all funds are carried at cost, except for the agency fund
 
assets of the deferred canpensation plan which are carried at market.
 
InvestnEnts consist of direct obligations of the U. S. governnent, IlOney
 
market funds, corporate and other obligations, guaranteed investnEnts,
 I 
rroney market trust funds and repurchase agreerrEnts and are recorded at cost
 
or anortized cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market value.
 I 
For purposes of the staterrent of cash flows, the City considers all highly
 
liquid debt instn1rlents purchased with a maturity of three IlOnths or less
 
to be cash equivalents.
 I 

H. Inventories 

IInventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first~ut) or
 
market. Inventories in the general fund, consisting of expendable supplies
 
held for consumption and materials necessary for the maintenance and repair
 
of the City's water purification and distribution system, are accounted for
 I
using the purchase method. General fund inventories are equally offset by
 
a fund balance reserve to indicate that a portion of the fund balance is
 
not available for future expenditure.
 I 

I. Other Assets 

Other assets consist of premium deposits with insurance canpanies which are I 
available to reduce future employee benefit expenses. 

J. Fixed Assets I 
Records with respect to the historical cost of general fixed assets and a
 
canprehensive inventory of such assets are not available. Consequently, a
 
general fixed asset group of accounts is not included in the accarpanying
 I 
financial staterrents. 

Generally accepted accounting principles prescribe that expenditures for I
general fixed assets be accounted for in the general fixed asset account
 
group and, accordingly, the failure to properly record such assets is not
 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
 I 

(Continued ) I
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statemants 

I 
I The stadium canplex and utility plant are stated at cost and include all 

repairs that materially extend the life of the property. All ordinary 
maintenance and repairs are charged to current operations. The balance 
sheet does not include any value for land conveyed by the URA to the Stadium

I Authority. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives 
of the assets using the straight-line rrethod. The estimated useful life of 
the utility plant is 40 years. 

I K. Ente+prise Fund Bond Discount and Issue Costs 

I 
The Water and Sewer Authority anortizes bond discounts over the lives of the 
related bonds using the interest rrethod of anortization. The unanortized 
portion is reflected on the balance sheet as a reduction fran the related 
bonds payable. 

I 
I The Water and Sewer Authority defers and anortizes bond issue costs, 

including ranarketing fees, over the lives of the related bonds. The 
Stadium Authority anortizes costs associated with the issuance of long-tenn 
debt using the straight-line rrethod over the respective tenus of the debt. 

L. Cagpensated Absences

I The City provides for ccmpensated absences in the following manner: 

I Fourteen sick days are accumulated for those employees not eligible 
for the insured sick leave plan or those who have elected not to 
participate in the plan. Since accumulated sick leave does not 
vest until retirarent it qualifies as severance pay and,

I therefore, does not rreet the recognition criteria of Statemant of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 43 and has not been accrued by 
the City. 

I 
I Personal days are accumulated for all employees, except 

firefighters. Under the plan, authorized time off, in the fonn of 
personal days, is accumulated in accordance with the criteria 
established in contracts with each of the City'S nine bargaining 
units and the City's policy for its nonunion employees. Employees 
can accumulate up to nine days (twelve days for police and

I arergency rred.ical services persormel) before the City reimburses 

I 
them for the additional days. The City has accrued an anount for 
accumulated personal days, because the days vest as they are 
earned and the vested anount is reasonably estimable. 

I (Continued) 
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial StateI1'Ents 

I 
Vacation pay earned varies with job classification and years of 
seIVice and is accrued as a current liability	 in the general fund I 
to the extent that it will be liquidated with expendable 
available resources. 

IM. Pensions 

Pension cost for accounting purposes is cCll'pUted in accordance with
 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion Ntm1ber 8 (APB #8). Reported expense is
 I 
equal to nonnal cost, arrortization of unfunded liabilities over 30 years,
 
non-benefit plan expenses and net actuarial gains or losses, less employer
 
and employee contributions and state pension aid under kt 205 (see note
 I 
8). Periodic pension cost is recognized as an expenditure in the general
 
fund to the extent of City contributions with any difference reported as an
 
addition to or deduction fran accrued pension costs in the general
 Ilong-tenn debt account group. 

N. Deferred CaJpensation Plan I 
The City of Pittsburgh offers its employees a deferred. compensation plan
 
sponsored by the Allegheny league of Municipalities, created in accordance
 
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City
 Iemployees, pennits than to defer a portion of their salary until future
 
years. The deferred carqJensation is not available to employees until
 
tennination, ret.irerent, death or unforeseeable eI1'Ergency.
 I 
All arrounts of canpensation deferred under the plan, all property and
 
rights purchased with those arrounts and all income attributable to those
 
arrounts, property or rights are solely the property and rights of the City,
 I 
without being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan,
 
subject only to the claims of the City's general creditors until paid or
 
made available to the employee or other beneficiary. Participants' rights
 Iunder the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the City in an
 
arrount equal to the fair market value of the deferred. account for each
 
participant.
 I 
It is the opinion of the City's legal counsel that the City has no
 
liability for losses under the plan, but does have the duty of due care
 
that \\UUld be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The City believes
 I
that it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of
 
general creditors in the future.
 

IThe assets and liabilities of the deferred	 canpensation plan are accounted 
for in the City's agency funds. 

I 
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Staterrents 

I 
I 

O. Self-Insurance Arrangarents 

The City is self-insured for pur[X)ses of v.urkers' canpensation benefits. 
Provisions are recorded in the general fund for benefits estimated to be 

I payable fran available spendable financial resources. Anounts not payable 

I 
currently are reported in the general long-tenn debt account group; as 
non-current anounts mature, they are liquidated fran general fund 
resources. 

In order to qualify for and maintain self-insurance status, the City IlUlSt 
carply with certain Camonwealth of Pennsylvania requirEmants. The

I requirEmants for 1990 are as follows: 

Maintain an irrevocable trust fund. The City's contribution to 

I the fund. is detennined annually in negotiations with the 
Camonwealth of Permsylvania Departmant of Labor. 

I 
Satisfy the financial responsibility requirenents of the 
Camonwealth of Permsylvania. 

Establish liability reserves based upon expected future paynents

I for all claims outstanding one year or nore at the end of any 
fiscal year. 

I Presently, the irrevocable trust may be used on!y in the event of default 
by the City under the self-insurance regulations. .Accordingly, the fund 
balance in the Expendable Trust has been reserved in the accarpanying 
financial stat.em:mts. 

I 
I The Water and Se!v.'er Authority is self-insured for general liability 

coverage. Under the tenns of the July 1986 indenture, the Water and Se!v.'er 
Authority established a self-insured escrow fund to cover potential general 
liability claims. 

I P. Entemrise Fund Operating Transfers 

I 
Armual operating transfers are made fran the enterprise fund to the general 
fund to assist in servicing the City'S general obligation indebtedness and 
to provide a fair return on the City'S general fixed assets dedicated to 

I 
water operations. In 1990, an additional operating transfer was made to 
the general fund. for reimburserrent of cumulative costs of PWSA Employee 
Benefits since 1984 (see note 4). 

I (Continued) 
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
N::>tes to General Purpose Financial Stateroonts 

Q. Canparative Data 

Canparative total data for the 
accanpanying financial staterrents 
changes in the City's financial 
annunts have been reclassified 
1990. 

I
 
I
 

prior year have been presented in the
 
in order to provide an understanding of
 
position and operations. Certain 1989
 I 

to confonn to classifications adopted in 

I 
R. 'Ibtal Columns on Canbinecl. Stateroonts 

I'Ibtal columns on the Canbinecl. Stateroonts are captioned Merrorandum On!y to
 
indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis.
 
Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of
 
operations or changes in financial position in confonnity with generally
 I 
accepted accounting principles. Such data are not canparable to a 
consolidation since interfund eliminations have not 
aggregation. 
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I CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statenents 

I NJl'E (2) Reconciliation of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) Basis 
to Budgetary Basis 

I The budget of the City is prepared differently fran generally accepted 

I 
accounting principles. The Canbined Statenent of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Data on the Budgetary Basis ­
General Fund is reconciled below to the Canbined Statenent of Revenues 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-General Fund presented on a GAAP 
basis: 

I 
General 

I 
Fund 

Excess of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses ­
GAAP basis $ 5,860,434 

I
 Revenues:
 
Increase in revenues susceptible to 
accrual, recorded when received in 
cash on the budgetary basis 4,908,918

I Reimburserrents budgeted as revenues and 

I 
recognized as a reduction of expenditures 
on a GAAP basis 24,540,013 

~rating transfers budgeted as revenues 17,471,500 
Equity transfers not budgeted 89,723 

'Ibtal 47,010,154 

I Expenditures: 

I 
Decrease in expenditures recognized on 
a GAAP basis but recorded when paid in 
cash on the budgetary basis 2,321,024 

Reimburserrents .budgeted as revenues and 
recognized as a reduction of expenditures 
on a GAM> basis (24,540,013)I Capitalized lease not budgeted 2,587,999 

Operating transfers budgeted as expenditures (45,269,343) 
'Ibtal (64,900,333)

I 
I 

Other financing (sources) uses: 
Capital lease obligation prcx::eeds not budgeted (2,587,999) 
~rating transfers budgeted as revenues and 
expenditures 27,797,843
 

Increase in other financing sources
 
susceptible to accrual, but recorded when
I received in cash on the budgetary basis (10.050.204)
 

'Ibtal 15,159,640
 

Excess of revenues and other sources over
I expenditures and other uses - budgetary basis $ 3.129,895
 

I
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

The 

lUI'E (3) 

City's 

Cash and Investments 

cash and investments are subject to varying investment policies and 
custodial arrangerents. Responsibility for cash and investments as of Decanber 
31, 1990, is as follows: 

Current Unrestricted: 
City Treasurer (IIDSt 

govermental, expendable 
trust and. agency funds) 

Equiprent leasing Authority 
(special revenue and debt 
service funds) 

Ente:rprise Funds: 
Water and Sewer Authority 
Stadium Authority 

Pension Trust Funds 
Deferred Carpensation Plan 

'Ibtal current 

Restricted: 
Ente:rprise Funds: 

Water and Sewer Authority 
Stadium Authority 

'Ibtal restricted 

'Ibtal 

$ 32,683,736 

668,732 

9,667,000 
1,081,549 

111,861 
255,830 

44,468,708 

74,000 
30,794 

104,794 

$ 44,573,502 

Investm:mts 

72,196,572 

8,100,094 

11,175,000 

84,329,599 
15,449,943 

191,251,208 

103,384,000 
562,552 

103,946,552 

295,197,760 

Bonds 
payable 
escrow 
(note 8) 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

231,602,000 I 
231, 602,000 

I231,602,000 

IThe City and its carp:>nent unit's cash deposits, certificates of deposit and 
t.i.ne accounts at year end were entirely covered by federal depository insurance 
or were fully collateralized in the City's name. Certificates of deposit and 
t.i.ne accounts are fully collateralized pursuant to agreerrents with substantially I
all participating financial institutions to pledge assets on a pooled basis to 
secure public deposits according to Act No. 72 of the Ccmronwealth of 
Pennsylvania, August 6, 1971. I 
Investments of the City and its carp:>nent units are classified into three 
categories to give an indication of the level of risk assmned at year end. 
Category 1 includes investments insured or registered or securities held by a I 
City entity or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and 
unregistered investments with the securities held by the counterparty's trust 
departIrEnt or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and. Iunregistered investments with the securities held by the counterparty or by its 
trust departm:mt or agent but not in the City's nama. 

I(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIAI •
 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Stateroonts 

I 
I A. GJverrnnental Ftmds« Expendable Trust Ftmds and. Agency Ftmds 

Cash balances available for investm:mt by nost City funds are maintained in 
p:x>led bank and invest:Il'ent accounts to i:rrprove investment opportunities.

I IncaTE fran invest:Il'ent of p:x>led cash is recorded in the general fund. 

I 
Certain unrestricted and restricted cash and short-tenn invest:Il'ent balances 
in the acccmpanying canbined balance sheet represent the undivided interest 
of each respective fund in the p:x>led accounts. 

Under the Pittsburgh City Code, the Director of Finance is responsible for 
the overall managarent of the invest:Il'ent program. Policies established by

I the Director of Finance pennit the City to invest in the following: 

1. U.S. Treasury Securities (bills, notes, bonds).

I 2. Obligations of specific agencies of the federal government where 
principal and interest is guaranteed by the U. S. goverrnnent. 

I 3. Fully insured or collateralized certificates of deposit at 
ccmrercial banks and. savings and loan associations accepted as 
depository institutions under the Pittsburgh City Code. 

I 
I 4. Money market mutual funds authorized by City Council whose 

portfolio consists of government securities issued by the U.S. 
goverrnnent and that are fully guaranteed as to principal and 
interest. 

5. IDeal goverrmEnt invest:Il'ent p:x>ls and or trusts as approved by

I the state legislature or City Council from time to time. 

I 
6. Repurchase agreements collateralized by U. S. Treasury Securities 

and. marked to market. In order to participate in the repurchase 
agreanent market, a depository must execute a master repurchase 
agreanent contract with the City. 

I 'Ib ensure adequate liquidity, at least 10% but no nore than 40% of the 
portfolio shall be in overnight repurchase agreements, noney market funds 
or other secure and. liquid fonns of acceptable invest:Il'ents. Unless

I specifically matched to a cash flow, at least 20% of the portfolio shall 

I 
mature within 91 days with the maxiIm.nn maturity of any invest:Il'ent to be no 
longer than one year from the date of purchase unless specifically approved 
in writing by the Director of Finance. 

(Continued )
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Staterents 

The carrying anount of all investIrents under the control of the City 
Treasurer at December 31, 1990, is presented in the accanpanying table. 
Underlying balances are predaninantly short-tenn investIrents. 

Cost approximates market for all of the foregoing investIrents. 

The City maintains canpensating balances with sane of its depository banks
 
to offset specific charges for check clearing and other services.
 

B. Emtignent leasing Authority 

Trust indentures authorize the EquiplEnt leasing Authority to invest in
 
obligations of the U.S. governrrent, repurchase ag:reerents for governrrent
 
obligations and lOOney market funds that invest solely in U. S. governrrent
 
obligations. Tlu:oughout the year ended DecEmber 31, 1990, the EquiplEnt
 
leasing Authority invested its funds in one or IOOre of the above authorized
 
investIrents .
 I 
The cost of all investments at Decanber 31, 1990, for the funds of the
 
EquiplEnt leasing Authority included in special revenue funds and debt
 
service funds is presented in the accanpanying table. Underlying balances
 Iare predaninantly short-tenn invesurents. 

IC. Entemrise Funds 

Water and Sewer Authority I
The trust indentures authorize the Water and Sewer Authority to invest in
 
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and instrllIIEntalities;
 
cClllOOl:Cial paper of the highest rating; certificates of deposits, fully
 Iinsured or collateralized; repurchase agreenents; and lOOney market funds
 
that invest solely in U.S. government obligations. Throughout the year
 
ended December 31, 1990, the Water and Sewer Authority invested its funds
 
in one or IOOre of the above authorized invesurents.
 I 
The Water and Sewer Authority's invesurents are categorized below to give
 
an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year end.
 I 
The repurchase agreanents and underlying securities, U.S. government 
securities, and ccmnercial paper are held in the counterparty's trust 
departn'Ent ' s (bank's) name. '!he bank acts as trustee and custodian for the I 

I 
(Continued) 
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I CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Staterents 

I 
oondholders and, in its accounting records, holds the securities in the

I Water and saEr Authority's nane in trust for the oondholders. u.s. 
governrrent securities are held in the Federal Reserve rook entry systen. 
The camerc:ial paper is fran various corporate entities and is not insured. 

I 
I The guaranteed invest.rrent contract is with Royal Trust Corporation of 

Canada. Temporary invest.rrents include highly liquid rroney market or mutual 
funds into which trusteed cash inflows are transferred until being 
subsequently disbursed or reinvested. These types of invest.rrents are not 
supported by identifiable securities and as such are not categorized. 

I Stadium Authority 

I 
The trust indentures authorize the Stadium Authority to invest in 
obligations of the u. S. governrrEnt and repurchase agrearents. Throughout 
the year ended December 31, 1990, the Stadium Authority invested its funds 
in one or rrore of the above authorized invest.rrents. 

I The Stadium Authority's investIrEnts are categorized below to give an 
indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year end. 

I D. Pension Trust 

I 
The pension trust funds, whose deposits and invest.rrents are held separately 
fran those of the City, are assigned to professional rroney managers that 
specialize in certain types of invest.rrents. The invest.rrent alternatives of 
these rroney managers are generally restricted to those in which they 
specialize.

I E. Deferred CgtpmSation Plan 

I The City participates in a deferred canpensation plan sponsored by the 
Allegheny league of Municipalities. The associated assets are held in 
p::x>led accounts. The trust indentures authorize the Deferred canpensation 
Plan to invest in obligations of u.S. Treasury and Money Market Mutual

I Funds. 

I (Continued) 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes	 to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
The carrying arrount, market value and category of risk for invest.rrents is 

as foll<:JINS: I 
Carrying Market 

aroount value Catego+y I 
A. City Treasurer (nost governrrental, 

expendable	 trust and. agency funds):
 
Repurchase agrearents $ 25,867,000 25,867,000 2
 I 
U. S. goverrment and agency 

obligations 11,839,164 12,942,302 3 
Money market trust funds 15,909,200 15,909,200 N/A I 
Money market mutual funds 8,875,000 8,875,000 N/A 
Corporate and other obligations 9,706,996 9,703,297 2 

I'Ibtal	 72,196,572 73,296,799 

B.	 Equiprent Leasing Authority: 
Repurchase agreements 305,840 305,840 3 I 
u.S. governrrent and agency 

obligations 1,623,876 1,623,876 3 
Money market trust funds 6,170,378 6,170,378 N/A I 

'Ibtal	 8,100,094 8,100,094 

IC. Enterprise Funds: 
Water and Sewer Authority:
 

Repurchase agreements 6,014,000 6,014,000 2
 
Money market mutual funds 5,161,000 5,161,000 N/A
 I 

'Ibtal	 11,175,000 11,175,000 

IEnterprise Funds Restricted:
 
Water and. Sewer Authority:
 

Repurchase agrearents 8,784,000 8,784,000 2
 
U. S. governrrent and agency I 

obligations 27,473,000 27,786,000 2 
Carne:rcial paper 12,470,000 12,470,000 2 
Money market mutual funds 2,157,000 2,157,000 N/A I
Guaranteed investmant 52,500,000 52,500,000 N/A 

'Ibtal	 103,384,000 103,697,000 I 
(Continued) 
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I	 CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statenents 

I 
I carrying Market 

anount value category 

Water and Sewer Authority:


I Bonds Payable Escrow:
 
U.S. goverrment and agency 

obligations $ 231,602,000 231,602,000 2 

I 'Ibtal	 231,602,000 231,602,000 

I
 
Stadium Authority:
 

U.S. goverrment and agency 
obligations	 562,552 562,552 3 

I
 'Ibtal	 562,552 562,552
 

D.	 Pension Trust: 
Repurchase agrearents 1,075,732 1,075,732 3 
U. S. governmant and agencyI	 

2 

I 
obligations 30,706,061 31,230,001 

Preferred and camon stock 18,844,112 18,639,342 2 
Corporate and other obligations 33,703,694 35,699,918 2 

'Ibtal	 84,329,599 86,644,993 

I E. Deferred. Canpensation:
 
Money market trust funds 15,449,943 15.449,943 N/A
 

I 'Ibtal 15,449,943 15,449,943 

Grand total $ 526,799,760 530,528,381 

I 
NJl'E (4) Receivable fran Pittsburgh Water and sewer Authority 

I In November of 1990, the City notified the Authority that $14,350,000 
relating to employee benefits under the Lease and Management AgrearEnt 
(Note 1) fran 1984 through 1989 is due to the City. In May 1991, an

I additional billing was made representing 1990 employee benefit costs to be 

I 
reimbursed am:>unting to $1,778,000. These costs will be reimbursed to the 
City in installnEnts over a four-year period, with $4,000,000 due and paid 
in 1990. Direct Water ciepart:Ioont expenditures in the anount of $405, 783 
are also reimbursable under the agrearent. 

I	 (Continued) 
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CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Pt.1:rpJse Financial Statements 

I 
As of Decanber 31, 1990, the receivable is canprised of the following: I 
Benefit expenditures (1984 - 1990) $ 12,128,000 
Direct Water expenditures (1990) 405,783 

I'Ibtal receivable fran Water and ~r 12,533,783 

Current portion 5,183,783 
lDng-tenn portion 7,350,000 I 
'Ibtal receivable fran Water and ~r $ 12,533,783 I
The current portion represents direct water expenditures receivable of $405,783 
and benefits receivable of $4,778,000. The long-tenm portion of $7,350,000 
represents solely benefits receivable. I 

RJI'E (5) Trusteed. and Restricted Funds 

certain restricted accounts have been created by the Stadillll1 Authority as result I 
of the governing tnlst indentures and by Board of Directors' resolutions. The 
following is a surmmy of restricted assets as of March 31, 1990: 

IAccounts Other 
Investm:mts receivable assets 

Clearing $ 487,434 680,915 1,168,349 I 
lDunge OOX financing 
lDunge OOX notes 75,094 2,861 77 ,955 
Medallion pledge 24 332,128 332,152 I
Parking routine
 

maintenance 2,834 2,834
 
Parking nonroutine
 Imaintenance 14,302 42,277 56,579
 
Maintenance 13,658 33,770 47,428
 

'Ibtal $ 30,794 562,552 411,036 680,915 1,685,297 I 
The noney received fran the sale of 15 rredallions consists of annual payrrents Ifran corporations of $100,000 for ten years beginning in 1982 for the right to 
place advertising on the IlEdallions. Under the agreements the Pittsburgh 
Associates and Pittsburgh Steelers Sports, Inc. each received $35,000 of the 
nedallion revenue in 1990 and 1989. I
 

I
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGI, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
00l'E (6) Real Estate Taxes 

I The City has the power to levy and collect ad valorem taxes on all taxable real 

I 
estate within its l:x::>undaries. Real estate is assessed by the Board of Property 
Assessmant, Appeals and Review of the County of Allegheny pursuant to the tenns 
of the General County Assessmant Law and the Second Class County Assessmant Law, 
which require property to be assessed at actual market value. In practice, 
property is assessed by the Board at 25% of fair market value. All real 
property in the County is required to be reassessed annually.I 
'&u tax 
annually

I but if 
is not 

levies, based on separate rates for land and buildings, are made 
on January 1 and collected by the City. Taxes are payable quarterly, 

paid by February 1, a 2% discount is pennitted. If a quarterly paynent 
made by the last day of the calendar quarter, a penalty of 1/2% per 

I 
IlDnth, plus interest at the rate of 1% per IlDnth, is imp:>sed on the balance of 
the tax due for the year. 

I 
Properties with delinquent taxes or sewage charges are subject to Treasurer's 
sales, which are held with respect to properties for which taxes or charges are 
delinquent one year or IlDre. Delinquent taxes may be liened up to three years 
after the levy date. 

I The City provides programs of tax abatem:mt for new construction and 

I 
rehabilitation of residential and camercial/industrial properties pursuant to 
camonwealth legislative authority. The residential abatement program provides 
for the abatarent of taxes for a period of three years on the increased 
assessmant attributable to new construction or rehabilitation up to an annually 
indexed average housing construction cost ceiling. The City makes tax 
abatements available for camercial/industrial properties for the assessmant

I increase attributable to new construction or rehabilitation. The:max..i.mum anount 

I 
of tax abatarent in any year is $50,000 of City real estate taxes. The 
abatarent is available for a period of three years fran the date of issuance of 
the building pennit for the construction or rehabilitation. 

lUl'E (7) Property, Plant and Eqgigrent 
A sumnary of enterprise fund property, plant and equiprent is as follows:I 1990 

StadilDll c~lex $ 52,633,187

I Utility plant 72,149,000 
Non-utility plant 2,594,000 
Construction in progress (utility plant) 47,837,000 

I 
I 'Ibtal 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

Net 

I 
I 

175,213,187 

25,123,366 

$ 150,089,821 

40 

1989 

52,576,990 
60,638,000 
1,409,000 

40,091,000 

154,714,990 

24,524,620 

130,190,370 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
NJI'E (8) Pension Plans 

A. ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PLANS I 
The City has three defined benefit pension plans (Municipal, Policemen's
 
and Fireman's) which are administered by pension boards. The City of
 IPittsburgh is responsible for the funding of retirerrent benefits for the
 
three pension plans described below. Investments of the plans, in
 
accordance with Act 205, are administered under the direction of the
 
Carprehensive Municipal Pension Trust Fund Board.
 I 
The Municipal Pension Fund 

I
The Municipal Pension Fund of the City of Pittsburgh (the Plan) was
 
established May 28, 1915. Every full time employee of the City of
 
Pittsburgh who is not covered by the Policemen's Plan or the Fireman's Plan
 
is required to join the Plan after serving a ninety day probation period.
 I 
The Plan is a single employer defined benefit plan and its purpose is to
 
provide retiremant, disability and other benefits to its members. The City
 
of Pittsburgh and members of the Plan are required to make contributions to
 I 
the Plan for the purpose of paying benefits and administrative expenses.
 
At January 1, 1990, the date of the IIDSt recent actuarial evaluation, the
 
Plan had 3,072 active members and 1,831 retirees, disableds and survivors.
 I 
Retiremant benefits are available at the employee's option upon attaimnent
 
of age 60 and canpletion of 20 years of service, nonnal retirement. A plan
 
member is eligible for early retirarent upon attaimnent of age 50 and
 I 
canpletion of eight years of service. For early retirees, benefit payrrents
 
nay be deferred until 60 years of age or paid imnecliately at reduced
 
anounts, as defined by the Plan. Upon canpletion of eight years of service
 Iand attai..rlnEnt of age 40, an employee nay tenninate and remain eligible to
 
receive benefits by continuing to make contributions to age 50. Employees
 
who hecate pe:r:manently disabled during the perfonnance of their duties and
 
are unable to continue to perfo:rm those duties are eligible to receive a
 I 
disability pension. Employees who hecate otherwise disabled are eligible
 
for a disability pension if eight years of service have been canpleted.
 I 
Retiremant benefits for employees who \<\/ere members of the Plan prior to
 
January 1, 1975, equal 60% of three year average pay, but no less than $130
 
nonthly if such pay is less than $450; or 55% of the first $650 of three
 Iyear average pay and 30% of the excess but not less than $270 if such pay
 
is greater than $450. The benefit for employees who hecane members after
 
January 1, 1975, is equal to 50% of three year average pay, four years
 
average pay if hired after December 31, 1987, reduced at age 65 by 50% of
 I 
the Social Security benefit. The aforementioned benefits are prorated for
 
employees with less than 20 years of service. All mernbers receive a
 
service incremant of 1% of three year average pay, four year average pay if
 I
hired after December 31, 1987, for each year of service in excess of 20, to
 
a maximum of $100 per IIDnth.
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I CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial StatEm2nts 

I 
A nenber who rreets the disability requirem:mts but not eligible to retire 
is entitled to a disability benefit based upon his earnings at the date of

I disability without proration for service less than 20 years. For eligible 
anployees hired on or after January 1, 1988, the following rules apply: 

I a. If an anployee is age 60 or older with eight years of service, he 
will receive his nonnal ret.irenent benefit. 

I b. If an anployee becooes disabled before attaining age 60, but with 
at least eight years of service, his benefit will be calculated 
as though he was age 60 with his service being the greater of 1) 
his service at disablEm2nt or 2) the lesser of 20 years and his

I canpleted service assuming he had continued to work until age 60. 

I 
c. The above benefit will be reduced so that the canbination of this 

benefit and the anployees IIDnthly workers c~nsation benefit 
shall not exceed the anployee' s regular salary level at the tine 
of disablEm2nt. 

I A survivor benefit is available to the surviving spouse upon the death of 

I 
an active rranber eligible for early ret.irenent. The benefit anount is 
equal to 50% of the nenber' s pension had the rranber retired at the date of 
death. A survivor benefit equal to the excess of the nenber's 

I 
contributions over the retirEmant benefits paid is provided to the 
beneficiary of a rranber whose death occurs after the retirEmant date. The 
nenber's contributions are returned to the beneficiary of a rranber whose 
death occurs prior to eligibility for early ret.irenent. 

Nonnal vesting occurs at age 60 and canpletion of 20 years of service.

I Plan nenbers may tenninate and have vested benefits after attai.nrrent of age 

I 
40 and 8 years of service by continuing contributions to age 50. An 
anployee who was a rranber prior to January 1, 1975 may tenninate at any age 
after 15 years of service and be vested by continuing contributions to age 
50. 

I 
Upon tennination, and prior to vesting, a rranber's contributions are 
refundable without interest to the nanber. Employee contributions to the 
Plan are 5% of pay for anployees hired prior to January 1, 1988, and 4% of 
pay for those hired thereafter. 

I 
I 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGf, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statenents 

I 
The Policenen' s Relief and. Pension Fund I 
The Policenen's Relief and Pension Fund of the City of Pittsburgh (the 
Plan) was established by Act 99 of May 25, 1935, P.L. 233. The plan is a 
single anployer defined benefit plan and its purpose is to provide Iretirement, disability and other benefits to its members. P.L. 233 
requires the City of Pittsburgh and manbers of the Plan to make 
contributions to the Plan for the purpose of paying benefits and 
administrative expenses. I 
All anployees of the Bureau of Police, including substitute unifoIm9d 
anployees, are eligible for manbership in the fund. At January I, 1990, I
the plan had I, 139 active nenbers and 1,406 retirees, disableds and 
sm:vivors . 

IRetirement benefits are available at the anployee's option upon canpletion 
of 20 years service and atta.inrrent of age 50. Employees who becCIIE 
pennanently disabled in the line of duty and who are unable to perfonn the 
duties of their position are eligible to receive a disability pension. I 
Employees who becCIIE pennanently disabled other than in the line of duty 
becCIIE eligible to receive a disability pension if they have canpleted 10 
years of service. I 
The regular pension benefit is equal to 50% of the highest 12 consecutive 
nonth's pay at the tiIrE of retirem:mt. Employees hired after December 31, 
1987 receive a pension benefit based on a 48 nonth average pay. Service I 
incrarents of $20 per nonth for each year service between 20 and 25 years 
and $25 per nonth for each year in excess of 25 years are included in the 
retirement benefit. Disability benefits for those not eligible to retire I 
are based upon 50% of earnings in the year prior to disability. A death 
benefit is available for the sm:vivors, as defined by the plan, of any 
nenber who dies in the perfonnance of his duties. A sm:viving spouse 
benefit may also be elected by plan participants which is applicable to I 
deaths not in the line of duty. 

Effective January I, 1989, regular pensioners receiving benefits prior to I 
January I, 1984 and disabled pensioners receiving benefits prior to January 
I, 1985, received an increase in benefits based upon retirement years. 

INonnal vesting occurs upon atta.inrrent of age 50 and 20 years of service. 
Upon tennination of a member's anployrrent or death of a IIEmber, and prior 
to vesting, the member's contributions, without accumulation of interest, 
are refundable to the nanber or his sm:vivors, as applicable. I 
Employee contributions to the Plan are 6% of pay plus $1 per nonth. Those 
electing the sm:viving spouse benefit contribute an additional 1/2% of pay. I
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I CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statemants 

I 
I 'rhe F:irenen' s Relief and Pension Fund 

'rhe F:irenen's Relief and Pension Fund of the City of Pittsburgh (the Plan)

I was established by Act of May 25, 1933, P.L. 1050. '!he Plan is a single 

I 
anployer defined benefit plan and its purpose is to provide reti..rarent, 
disability and other benefits to its :nanbers. P.L. 1050 requires the City 
of Pittsburgh and nanbers of the Plan to make contributions to the Plan for 
the purpose of paying benefits and administrative expenses. 

I 
All anployees of the Bureau of Fire, including the carrnanding officer and 
chief of the bureau, are eligible for membership in the fund. At January 
1, 1990, the Plan had 921 active nanbers and 1,070 retirees and 
beneficiaries. 

I 
I Ret:irenent benefits are available at the anployee's option upon ccmpletion 

of 20 years service for any participant anployed. before January 1, 1976 or 
for those anployed. thereafter, ccmpletion of 20 years service and 
attainrrent of age 50. Errployees who hecate permanently disabled in the 
line of duty and who are unable to perfonn the duties of their position are 
eligible to receive a disability pension. Errployees who hecate pennanently

I disabled other than in the line of duty hecate eligible to receive a 
disability pension if they have ccmpleted 10 years of service. 

I The regular pension benefit is equal to 50% of the wages earned during any 
three calendar years of service or the last 36 nonths average pay 
iImEdiately preceding ret:irenent. Prior to 1990, a service increment of 
$10 per nonth is paid each mernber for each year of service in excess of

I 20. 'rhe anount increases to $15 in 1990 and $20 in 1991 and thereafter. A 

I 
death benefit is available for the survivors, as defined by the plan, of 
any mernber who dies in the perfonnance of his duties. A surviving spouse 
benefit may also be elected by plan participants which is applicable to 
deaths not in the line of duty. A hnnp sum death benefit of $1,200 is paid 
to beneficiary of any deceased IIBlIber. 

I Effective January 1, 1989, regular pensioners, retired for five years, and 
disabled pensioners, retired for four years, receiving benefits prior to 
Jarmary 1, 1985, received an increase in benefits based upon service

I incrarents. 

I 
Nonnal vesting occurs upon attairnnent of age 50 and 20 years of service. 
Upon tennination of anploynent, and prior to vesting, a mernber's 
contributions, without accUIlUllation of interest, are refundable. 

I 
Errployee contributions to the Plan are 6% of pay plus $1 per pay. '!hose 
electing the surviving spouse benefit contribute an additional 1/2% of pay. 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Pl.rrp:>se Financial Staterrents 

I 
B. FUNDING STATUS AND PRa;RESS I 

In 1984, the Pennsylvania General Assembly passed the "Municipal Pension
 
Plan Funding Standard and Recovery Act" (Recovery Act), which has
 Isignificantly improved the administration and funding of all nnmicipal
 
pension plans. The Recovery Act made changes to the actuarial reporting
 
requiremants for nnmicipalities, set forth minimum nnmicipal pension
 
contributions and established the framework for custanized recovery
 I 
programs for nnmicipalities with large unfunded pension liabilities. 
Additionally, the Recovery Act changed the basis for distributing state 
pension aid, which has translated into a significant increase in the anount I
of state pension aid received by the City's plans. 

In accordance with the Municipal Pension Plan Funding Standard and Recovery IAct of 1984 (Act 205) , the City established the Canprehensive Municipal
 
Pension Trust Fund Board (Canprehensive Board) in August, 1987. The
 
Board's purpose is to oversee the activities of the City's pension plans
 
and to assune responsibility for receiving and investing the City's pension
 I 
assets. 

Camonwealth of Pennsylvania contributions are detennined under Act 205. IThe City is eligible for the maximum rerredies available under Act 205. 'Ib
 
qualify, the City is required to fund an anount equal to nonnal cost and
 
the anortization payrrent required to eliminate the unfunded liability over
 
a 40 year period less any manber contributions.
 I 
The Recovery Act contains both mandatory and optional remadies for
 
nnmicipalities to design a program for dealing with unfunded pension
 I
liabilities. The mandatory rerredies implerrented by the City were the
 
developnent and adoption of an administrative improverrent plan for its
 
pension plans, the establishrlEnt of lower cost pension plans for new hires,
 Iand the aggregation of all the City's pension assets for invest:nent
 
purposes under the guidance of a new oversight board (the "Canprehensive
 
Municipal Pension Trust Fund Board"). The "Canprehensive Board," which is
 
canprised of manbers fran the individual pension boards I manages the
 I 
invest:nents of all pension assets and reviews/approves the IlDnthly
 
dravrlowns to the individual pension plans for payrrent of benefits and
 
administrative expenses. The optional rerredies initially selected by the
 ICity were: 40-year anortization of the unfunded liability, level percent
 
anortization, and a IS-year phase-in allCJ'Ning the City to gradually
 
increase its pension contributions.
 I
 

I
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
I 

In 1988, the City opted out of the IS-year phase-in optional remedy since 
its pension contributions were already exceeding the aIIDunt required by Act 

I 
205. In its place, the City adopted. a planned schedule of pension 
contributions, which began in 1989 at a level of $12 million and increases 
by $500,000 every other year or the City can fund the actuarially 
detennined mininn.1In municipal obligation, as defined, whichever is less. 

I The "pension benefit obligation," which is the actuarial present value of 
accumulated. plan benefits shown below, is a standardized disclosure neasure 
of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of

I projected salary increases, estimated. to be payable in the future as a 

I 
result of anployee sel:Vice to date. The neasure is intended to help users 
assess, on a going concern basis, the funding status of the Plans for which 
contributions are made, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient 

I 
assets to pay benefits when due, and make canparisons aIIDng public anployee 
reti.renent systans. The neasure is independent of the actuarial funding 
nethod used. to detennine contributions to the Plans. 

I 
The actuarial reports dated January 1, 1990 include certain changes in the 
actuarial asstnnptions related. to each plan. Am:mg the changes affecting 

I 
the assumptions for all plans are changes in rrortality rates and an 
increase of O. 75% in the expected. rate of return on invest:nents. Projected. 
tennination rates were increased for the Municipal and Police plans and 
disability rates increased for all plans. The assumptions also include 
reductions in expected. reti.renent ages for the Municipal and Police plans. 
The rate of salary increases was projected to decline by 0.25% for the

I Police and Fire plans and by 0.5% for the Municipal plan. The Municipal 

I 
plan actuarial changes also include a change in the social security base. 
The effect of these changes on the unfunded benefit obligation was an 
aggregate reduction of $34, 717 , 000 and an aggregate reduction of the Act 
205 contribution of $3,417,000. 

I 
The rrost recent actuarial reports disclosed the following infonnation with 
respect to the plans as of January 1, 1990. Significant assumptions 

I 
underlying the actuarial canputations for pension benefit obligation and 
contributions include rrortality, tennination, vesting, marital status and 
retiremant estimates based upon tables provided by the actuary, as well as 
the following: 

I Municipal Police Fire 

Assumad rate of return on invest:nents 
Assumad salary increases

I
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
PENSION BENEFIT OBLIGATION I 
The Plan's actuary uses the "individual entry age nonnal" cost nethod to 
detennine the pension benefit obligation. The following table surrmarizes the 
net unfunded pension benefit obligation by individual plan. According to the I 
nost recent actuarial report as of January 1, 1990: (in thousands) 

Canprehensive 
Board Municipal Police 

Pension benefit obligation: 

Vested benefits: 
Retired nanber and 
beneficiaries $ 

Active nanbers 

'Ibtal Vested 

Nonvested 

'Ibtal pension 
benefit obligation $ 

Net assets, at cost, 
available for benefits 
fran the December 31, 
1989, financial statements 

10,974 

45,284 

101,057 

146,341 

55,321 

31,781 

108,713 

164,034 

33,248 

22,313 

83,855 

117,103 

157,315 195,815 139,416 

(market $83,562) 82,113 2 81 _----==3=1 

Unfunded pension benefit 
obligation $ (82,113) 157,313 195,734 139,385 
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I
 
I293,625 

133,853 I
427,478 

65,068 I 
492,546 I
 

I
 
82 , 227 

I 
410,319 

I 
I 
I 
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I CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Nates to General Purpose Financial Staterrents 

I 
CONI'RIBUI'IONS 

I For funding purposes, the City utilizes actuarially detennined contributions 
under Act 205. The actuarial assumptions used to detennine funding requirarents 
are the sane as those used to detennine pension benefit obligations. The

I actuarially required 
is as follows: 

I REQUIRED CONI'RIBurIONS 

I 
I Nannal cost 

Arrortization paynent 

I 
Estimated nenber 

contributions 

Required contributions 

I The City contributed 

I 
$20,271,780. Employer contributions and employee contributions we:re 5.7% and 
5.9% of cove:red payroll, :respectively. Employer contributions we:re 7.3% and 
12.7% of covered payroll in 1989 and 1988, :respectively. 'Ibtal payroll for the 
period December 31, 1990 was $153,293,387. 

I CONTRIBurIONS MADE 

I 
I 

Source of 
contribution 

I 
Participants 
C<rmonwealth 
City 

'Ibtal 

I 
For financial 

pension contributions for the year ended December 31, 1990 

Municipal 
Plan 

$ 4,743,732 

3,350,359 

(3,494,794) 

$ 4,599,297 

Policerren's Firaren's 
Plan Plan 'Ibtal 

4,293,664 3,418,074 12,455,470 

10,021,544 7,251,466 20,623,369 

(2,299,447) (1,885,791) (7,680,032) 

12,015,761 8,783,749 25,398,807 

$7,737,944 fram the General Fund and state aid totalled 

~:rehensive 

lbard 

$ 8,050,590 
20,271,780 
7,104,135 

Year ended Ia::ernber 31, 1990 

Reti:rees' 
Municipal Police Fire Trust 'Ibtal 

6,749 15,065 8,072,404 
20,271,780 

33,809 600,000 7,737,944 

$35,426,505 

:reporting purposes, 
#8. The net pension cost for 
contributed $7,737,944 fram the 

40,558 15,065 600,000 36,082,128 

the City accounts for pension cost under APB 
1990 under APB #8 was $14,699,944. The City 

General Fund. Net pension costs in excess of 
contributions of $6,962,000 inc:reased the accrued pension cost in the General 
lDng-Tenn D:bt Account Group.

I 48 

I 

I 



49 
I 

CITY OF PITI'SBURGl, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statarents 

I 
OOI'E 

The maximum anount payable for future maturities of bond and interest on 
general long-tenn debt at Decanber 31, 1990 and changes in bond principal 
for the year then ended are surrmarized belCJ\o\T: 

(9) lDng-tenn Debt I 
I 

Principal I 

Council and Public Election General 
Cl>ligation Bonds: 

Eleven general obligation bond 
issues with rates ranging fran 
5.00% to 8.40%. The bonds are 
payable fran general revenues: 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996-2000 
2001-2005 
2006-2010 
2011-2014 

'lbtal 

Outstanding
 
at Decanber 31,
 

1989
 

$	 12,680,000
 
14,020,000
 
14,375,000
 
14,755,000
 
14,565,000
 
14,345,000
 
77,480,000
 
98,860,000
 
77,305,000
 
56,740,000
 

$	 395,125,000 
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Bonds paid 
during 1990 I
 

I
 
I
 

12,680,000 I
 
I
 
I
 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

12,680,000 
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Bonds issued 
during 1990 

OUtstanding
 
at December 31,
 

1990
 

14,020,000
 
14,375,000
 
14,755,000
 
14,565,000
 
14,345,000
 
77,480,000
 
98,860,000
 
77,305,000
 
56,740,000
 

382,445,000 

Interest 

25,635,964 
24,717,174 
23,751,794 
22,747,144 
21,716,250 
92,236,288 
62,416,393 
29,022,112 
8,096,944 

310,340,063 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statenents 

EquiplEnt Leasing Authority Revenue Bonds: 
Three revenue bond issues with interest 

rates ranging fran 6.0% to 6.6% and 
one bond issue with an interest 
ceiling of 9.5%. The bonds are payable 
fran general resources transferred 
fran the General Fund: 

1990
 
1991
 
1992
 
1993
 
1994
 
1995
 
1996
 

'Ibtal 

Public Auditorium Authority Revenue Bonds: 
'I't.u bond issues with interest rates 

ranging fran 6.75% to 11.0%. The 
City's share of debt service on these 
bonds is payable fran general revenues: 

1990
 
1991
 
1992
 
1993
 
1994
 
1995
 
1996-2000
 
2001-2005
 
2006
 

'Ibtal 

General lDng-tenn Debt Account Group 

OUtstanding
 
at Decenber 31,
 

1989
 

9,875,000 
3,615,000 
3,665,000 
1,420,000 

375,000 

18,950,000 

355,000 
382,500 
412,500 
450,000 
487,500 
527,500 

3,027,500 
2,317,500 

602,500 

8,562,500 

$ 422,637,500 
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Principal 

Bonds paid I
during 1990
 

I
 
I
 
I
 

9,875,000 

I
 
I
 

9,875,000 I
 
I
 

355,000 I
 
I
 
I
 

355,000 I
 
22,910,000 

I
 
I
 
I
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I
 
I 
I 

Bonds issued 
during 1990 

Outstanding 
at December 31, 

1990 Interest 

I 
I 
I 
I 

1,995,000 
2,120,000 
2,245,000 
2,390,000 
2,540,000 
2,710,000 

5,610,000 
5,785,000 
3,665,000 
2,765,000 
2,540,000 
2,710,000 

1,440,651 
1,065,148 

687,125 
476,688 
298,710 
132,762 

I 14,000,000 23,075,000 4,101.084 

I 
I 
I 
I 

382,500 
412,500 
450,000 
487,500 
527,500 

3,027,500 
2,317,500 

602,500 

758,281 
726,687 
691,555 
652,055 
607,999 

2,163,195 
933,975 
54,225 

I 
I 

14,000,000 

8,207,500 

413,727 ,500 

6,587,972 

321,029,119 
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CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statem::mts 

I 
Future maturities of oond principal on Stadium Authority indebtedness 

at March 31, 1990 are as follows: 

I 
Principal I 

Outstanding Outstanding 
at December 31, Bonds paid Bonds issued at December 31, I

1989 during 1990 during 1990 1990 

Stadium Authority Revenue Bonds: I 
Two revenue 0000 issues 
with interest rates ranging 
fran 6.0% to 9.0%. The I 
oonds are payable fran
 
revenue fran
 
Stadium operations:
 I 

1990 $ 1,695,000 1,695,000 
1991 1,430,000 1,430,000 
1992 1,515,000 1,515,000 I 
1993 820,000 820,000 
1994 880,000 880,000 
1995 945,000 945,000 I
1996-2000 14,190,000 14,190,000 
2001-2005 11,240,000 11,240,000 
2006-2010 16,495,000 16,495,000 
2011 2,425,000 - 2,425,000-- I 

$ 51,635,000 1,695,000 49,940,000 I
 
I
 

(Continued) 
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I
 CITY OF PITISBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
Future maturities of bond principal on Water and Sewer Authority 

indebtedness at December 31, 1990 are as follows:

I
 
I Principal 

Bonds paid Bonds issued andI Outstanding and discount dePJsits made Outstanding 
at December 31, anvrtized to escI'O'N funds December 31, 

1989 during 1990 during 1990 .lli.Q

I 
I 

Water and ~ Authority
 
Revenue Bonds:
 

Three revenue bond issues
 
due on demand; two with


I fixed rates of 5.125% and
 

I 
6.3% through September 1,
 
1991 and one with rates
 
ranging fram 5.9% to 7.625%:
 

I 
1990 $ 900,000 900,000 
1991 5,400,000 5,400,000 
1992 7,145,000 7,145,000 
1993 7,600,000 7,600,000 
1994 8,175,000 8,175,000 
1995 8,680,000 8,680,000 

I 
I 1996-2000 55,215,000 55,215,000 

2001-2005 81,765,000 81,765,000 
2006-2010 121,130,000 121,130,000 
2011-2015 168,355,000 168,355,000 
2016 32,325,000 32,325,000 

I Subtotal 496,690,000 900,000 495,790,000
 
Less escI'O'N funds (230,980,000) (622,000) (231,602,000)
 

I
 Less Discount (13,728,000) (750,000) (12,978,000)
 

Total $ 251,982,000 150,000 (622,000) 251,210,000 

I
 
I
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
A. Council and Public Election General Obligation Bonds I

In September 1989, the City issued $60,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds,
 
Series of 1989. The issue consisted of $42,710,000 of serial bonds,
 
bearing interest at varying fixed rates ranging frem 5.75% to 7% with
 Inaturities through September 1, 2010; and, $7,290,000 of tenn bonds bearing 
interest at 7.125% naturing on September 1, 2014. The bond proceeds ~ 

used to provide funds for capital projects. I 
In 1983, 1985 and 1986, the City defeased certain general obligation and
 
other bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to
 
provide for all future debt service paymants on the old bonds .
 IAccordingly, neither the assets held in trust nor the refunded bonds appear
 
in the accanpanying financial statements. At December 31, 1990, bonds
 
outstanding of $14,720,000, $170,990,000 and $160,605,000 refunded by the
 
1983, 1985 and 1986 issues, respectively, are considered defeased.
 I 

B. Equiprent Leasing Authority I
In February, 1990, the Equiprent Leasing Authority (EIA) issued $14,000,000
 
of Equipralt Revenue Bonds, Series 1990. The Bonds bear interest rates
 
ranging frem 6% to 6.5% with maturities through 1996. The purpose of the
 
issue was to provide financing for equiprent and vehicles to be leased to
 I 
the City of Pittsburgh 

As of December 31, 1990, future minimum lease paymants under all lease I 
agreemants bettNeen the EIA and the City are as follows: (in thousands) 

December 31, lease Paynents I 
1991 7,051 
1992 6,850 
1993 4,352 I 
1994 3,242 
1995 2,839 

Thereafter 2,843 I 
'Ibtal $27,177 

IThe City has executed a separate lease agreement with the ErA for each of
 
the four outstanding bond issuances. Pursuant to these agreements, the
 
City is required to subsidize any deficiencies of the ErA debt service
 
fund. Additionally, at the City's option, any earnings derived fran the
 I 
EIA i.nvestrlent and salvage accounts may be used as rental credits against
 
the scheduled lease paymants. It has been City policy to fully utilize
 
such rental credits.
 I 

(Continued) 
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I CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statenents 

I 
I 

C. Auditorium Authority 

In 1981, Civic Arena Corporation (CAe), a wholly owned subsidiary of The 
Edward J. DeBartolo Corporation, assurood operation of the Civic Arena under 

I a sublease (the Sublease). In 1985, under an amendrrEnt to the Sublease, 

I 
CAe was given a reduction of $212,500 in each of its semi-annual rental 
payments. Under the supporting agrearent between the City, the Auditorium 
Authority and the County, the City and the County are obligated to make up 
this reduction in the debt service requirements on the Auditorium 
Authority's Auditorium Bonds, Series C, presently outstanding in the anount 
of $12,970,000. The Series C Auditorium Bonds are not included in the

I City's general long-tam debt account group while Series D and E are 

I 
included. In event of default, the bonds are guaranteed by the City and 
Allegheny County. The initial tenn of the Sublease is for 50 years, with 
five consecutive reneNal periods of 10 years each. Hc::JINI9Ver, u~n the 

I 
occurrence of certain events, CAe has the option to tenninate the Sublease 
upon six llOnths' written notice to the Auditorium Authority, including 
certain events relating to the feasibility of the econanic operation of the 
Civic Arena. 

D. Stadium Authority 

I 
I In April 1986, the Stadium Authority issued $21,000,000 of Guaranteed 

Funding Bonds, Series 1986. The bonds bear interest at varying fixed rates 
increasing with the length of ma.turity fran 5.6% to 7.625%. 

The proceeds of the bond issue were used to repay the City for grants ov.ai, 
expected future grants and additional operating capital. 

I 
I The City has guaranteed full paynent of the principal, interest and call 

premiums, if any, of the issue and has pledged its full faith, credit and 
taxing power for the paynent of the obligation under a Guarantee Agreerrent 
with the Stadium Authority. 

I On December 18, 1985, an irrevocable trust was established to defease the 
1971 Series A and 1982 Series B Bonds. Neither the trust, which has a 
sufficient am:>unt on ~sit to retire the Series A and B Bonds, nor the 
obligation is included on the Stadium Authority's balance sheet. 

I 
(Continued ) 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statanents 

I 
At March 31, 1990, bonds outstanding of $34,185,000 refunded by the
 
Guaranteed. Stadium Refunding Bonds, Series 1985 are considered defeased.
 I 
Under the new indenture, the Stadium Authority has pledged as collateral
 
for the Series 1985 Bonds all rental receipts and certain other receipts
 
along with grants received fran the City. All previous indentures were
 I 
voided. 

I
E. water and Sewer Authority 

In July 1984, the Authority issued $93,600,000 face value Daily Adjustable
 
Demand Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, series of 1984 (1984 Bonds)
 I 
secured by the operating revenues of the Authority. proceeds fran the bond
 
issue were used to finance a significant portion of the Authority'S capital
 
inprovem=nts program. As described below, on April, 1987, the 1984 Bonds
 I 
were recleEmrl. 

In April 1985, the Water and Sewer Authority issued $100,000,000 face value IAdjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds, series of 1985 (1985 Bonds). Upon
 
issuance of the 1985 Bonds, net proceeds of $88,604,000 were deposited in
 
an escrow account and together with the interest earnings of the escrow
 
account were used to redean the outstanding 1984 Bonds on April 1, 1987 and
 I 
to pay the interest due on the 1985 Bonds during the escrow period. As of
 
April 1, 1987, the Water and sewer Authority elected a multi-annual m:::xie
 
for interest, fixing the rate on these bonds at 5.125% through the next
 I
tender date, septanber 1, 1991. 

In June 1986, the Water and sewer Authority issued $134,700,000 face value
 
Adjustable Rate Tender Reyenue Bonds, series of 1986 (June 1986 Bonds) and
 I 
in July 1986, $264,090,000 face value Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series of
 
1986 (July 1986 Bonds).
 I 
The June 1986 Bonds were issued in order to inplemmt the second phase of
 
the Water and sewer Authority's capital inprovements program. The bonds
 
may bear interest at various IOOdes including daily, weekly, semiannual,
 Iannual, multi-annual or fixed rate. As of June 1, 1988, a multi-annual
 
m:xie was elected providing for 6.3% interest through Septanber 1, 1991.
 

I 
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I
 
57 I
 

I
 



58 

CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Staterrents 

I 
The July 1986 Bonds ~re issued by the Water and sewer Authority with the

I intention to redean the 1985 and June 1986 Bonds at a date not prior to 

I 
September 1, 1991. Proceeds of $241,411,000 from the issuance of the July 1986 
Bonds were deposited in an escrow fund to provide for the redenption of the 
1985 and June 1986 Bonds. 

I 

The July 1986 Bonds bear interest at various rates from 5.9% to 7.625%, payable 
March 1 and Septanber 1 each year. The average annualized effective interestI rate, excluding the am::>rtization of deferred. interest, was 7.3% for the years 
ended Decanber 31, 1990 and 1989. Paynent of the bonds is insured under a 
Municipal Bond New Issue Insurance Policy issued by Financial Guaranty 
Insurance Canpany. The bonds are subject to optional and mandatory redemption 
in various face anounts annually beginning september 1, 1991. Scheduled 
maturities of the July 1986 Bonds are as follows (in thousands): 

I 1991 $ 2,700 
1992 4,045 
1993 4,300

I 1994 4,575 
1995 4,880 
Later years 243,590 

I $ 264,090 

I Interest cost for 1990 and 1989 on bonds payable, exclusive of letter-of-credit 
fees and the anortization of deferred. interest, was as follows: 

I 
I 1985 Bonds $ 5,009,000 $ 5,048,000 

June 1986 Bonds 8,486,000 8,486,000 
July 1986 Bonds 18,608,000 18,608,000 

Bond insurance pranilUllS of $6,480,000 and $2,623,000 have been recorded as 
deferred interest. AnDrtization of the deferred interest plus letter-of-credit

I fees paid on the 1985 and June 1986 Bonds anounted to $1,058,000 and $1,075,000 
in 1990 and 1989, respectively, and is included in interest cost. 

I
 Interest earned on funds restricted for the purp:::>se of capital improvements,
 
net of related interest expense, is deferred and allocated to the cost of 
capital assets. For the year ended December 31, 1990, the Authority deferred. 
interest earnings of $18,991,000 ($23,525,000 at December 31, 1989) lessI interest expense of $19,923,000 ($23,992,000 at December 31, 1989). 

I (Continued) 
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CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

In accordance with the provisions of the trust indentures for the ronds 
payable, the Water and ~r Authority has established roth trusteed and 
nontrusteed funds with assets, principally short-tenn investments, which are 
restricted for SPeCific purposes. A sl.nlllla.rY of the balances in these funds at 
December 31, 1990 and 1989, is as follows: 

1990	 1989 

Trusteed funds:
 
Construction funds $ 74,733,000 95,507,000
 
Debt service funds (3,717,000) (2,624,000)
 
Renewal and replacement
 

funds 2,378,000 2,197,000 
Debt service reserve funds 24,213,000 24,003,000 
~rating reserve account 2,805,000 2,808,000 

100,412,000 121,891,000 

Self-insured Escrow Fund 507,000 469,000 
'Ibtal trusteed and 

restricted funds $ 100,919,000 122,360,000 

In addition, the trust indentures require that all revenues be deposited in a 
Revenue fund. Am:>unts in the Revenue fund are to be first disbursed to other I 
funds as provided for in the indentures. 

Under the trust indentures, the Water and ~r Authority has made certain Icovenants which essentially provide for rates to be set at levels sufficient 
to provide annually: 

(a)	 Funds to pay all of its current expenses; I 
(b)	 .An aroount equal to 100% of the debt service requirEm,mts with
 

resPeCt to its ronds during the then current fiscal year; and
 I 
(c)	 Funds to pay indirect expenses billed by the City and the
 

"additional paynent."
 I
 
I
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Staterrents 

I 
I F. Capital lJease Cl>ligations 

I 
Fran 1986 through 1990, the City of Pittsburgh entered into various 
agreem:mts for the lease purchase of data processing equiprent. During 

I 
1988 and 1987, the City entered into agreemants for the lease purchase of 
street lighting fixtures and equiprent. Current lease paymants for both 
are recorded in the City'S General Fund. The future minimum lease 
paymants under these lease agreemants are as follows: 

I General 
Fund 

I 1991 $ 3,170,648 
1992 2,530,986 
1993 1,718,409 
1994 598,377

I 1995 159,310 

I 
'Ibtal minimum lease 

paymants 8,177,730 

I 
less anount representing 

interest 868,453 

I 
Present value of net 

minimum lease 
paymants $ 7,309,277 

I
 
(Continued)
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CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statanents 

I 
G.	 Other wng-Tenn Obligations 

I
The following is a sunmary of transactions affecting all other long-tenn 
obligations of the City during 1990: 

IAccrued Accrued Accrued 
pension workers' canpensated 
costs canpensation absences I 

Balance at January 1, 1990 $ 204,787,000 69,615,000 10,949,000 
Additions	 6,962,000 20,541,311 13,313,000 
Reductions	 17,452,311 10,949,000 I 
Balance at Decanber 31, 1990 211,749,000 72,704,000 13,313,000 

less annunts funded I 
currently in the 
General Fund.	 12,332,000 13,313,000 Iwng-tenn portion at
 
December 31, 1990 $ 211,749,000 60,372,000
 

IH.	 Deferred 1Dan 

The tenns of repaynent to the Authority for Improvanents in Municipalities 
for the deferred loan are not fixed and detenninable. The loan plus 8% I 
simple interest becanes payable in the event that the major league baseball 
franchise owned by Pittsburgh Associates is sold or if Pittsburgh Associates 
uses any profits generated fran the operation of the major league baseball Ifranchise to repay its econanic developnent loan fran the URA (see note 16 
D) • 

NJI'E (10) Operating leases	 I 
A.	 The Staditml Authority has operating leases with Pittsburgh Associates,
 

Allegheny Club and Pittsburgh Steelers Sports, Inc. Under tenns of the
 I 
basic agrearent dated January 1, 1982, these operating leases provide for 
guaranteed payrrents of approximately $1, 160, 000 annually for a 40-year 
period which began April 1, 1971. I 

(Continued) I
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I CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements 

I 
I On March 23, 1989, the Authority entered into an agreemant with the 

Ccmoonwealth of Pennsylvania to lease certain property near Three Rivers 
Stadium to be used for public parking. The tenn of the lease is ten years 
renewable for four additional ten-year periods. Payroonts during the first 

I year annunted to $57,200, adjusting thereafter according to market 
conditions. 

I B. The Water and ~r Authority operates fran leased space. Rental expense 
was $84,000 and $23,000 in 1990 and 1989 , respectively. Future minimum 
rental carmitmants are as follows: 

I Year ended December 31 

I 
I 

1991 $ 175,000 
1992 175,000 
1993 175,000 
1994 175,000 
1995 95,000 

I 
C. Carmmcing on April 15, 1988, the City entered into a three-year, 

noncancelable, operating lease for office space used for the location and 
operation of the City'S canputer systems. The lease also includes a 
renewal option to extend the lease for additional years up to seven years. 

I The City has exercised its option to extend the lease three additional 
years through April 14, 1994. 

The minimum rronthly rental payroonts are subject to escalation for the

I City's pro rata share of any increases in real estate taxes and operating 
expenses over those incurred in the base year of the lease agreanent. Such 
increases will not exceed established rronthly maxirm.nn cap rates. 

I The minimum future rental payroonts required by the lease are as follows: 

I Year ended December 31 

1991 $ 243,829 
1992 252,200

I 1993 252,200 
1994 73,600 

I 'lbtal rent expense under this operating lease for the year ended Decanber 
31, 1990, was $184,609. 

The City also has several operating leases for copier rental and various

I other small office machines. 

(Continued)
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statarents 

I 
NJrE (11) Interfund Receivable and Payable Balances 

At Decenber 31, 1990, the individual fund interfund receivable and payable I 
balances were as follows: 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds: 

JTPA 
Housing 
Civic and Cultural 

Capital Projects Funds: 
Other 

Trust Funds: 
Pension 

Ageoc:y Funds: 
Er1l>loyee benefits 
PaYroll withholding 
Deposits 
Other 

NJrE (12) Equity Transfers Between Funds 

Receivables 

$ 3,198,169 

71,650 

1,405,941 

2,250,000 

$ 6,925,760 

Payables I 
2,250,000 

I1,180,748 
2,413,887 

92,000 I 
599,580 I 
341,247
 
40,798
 I 

7,500 
6,925,760 

I 
Pursuant to authorization by City Council, ten unencmnbered project
 
balances in various funds totaling $89,723 (sunroarized below) were
 I 
transferred to the General Fund. In each case, the original purpose of
 
the project had been satisfied or tenninated.
 I 

Transferred frem	 AlTKJunt 

Special Revenue Fund $ 34,672 
Capital Projects Fund 52,593 I 
Trust and Agency Fund 2,458 

Transferred to General Fund $ 89,723	 I 
NJrE (13) Contributed Capital I 

Contributed capital of $5,277,000 in the Water and Sewer Authority
 
represents the net accounts receivable balance transferred frem the Water
 
Fund on May 1, 1984, the inception of Water and Sewer Authority
 Ioperations. 

With respect to the Stadium Authority, contributed capital is canprised
 
of $7,398,631 of capital contributed in sUPPJrt of construction of
 I 
additional seating, new lounge ooxes and handicapped facilities. 

(continued ) 
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I CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purp:>se Financial Statements 

I 
l«'11'E (14) 5egrrent Infonnation for Enterprise Funds

I 
I 

The City maintains Enterprise Funds which provide water services and 
operate the Stadimn canplex. Segnent infonnation for the year ended 
Decanber 31, 1990, is as follows (in thousands): 

I 
Water and 

Sewer Stadimn 
Authority Authority Totals 

Operating revenues $ 40,416 6,625 47,041

I Depreciation and anortization 3,000 1,723 4,723 

I
 
Operating inccma 12,652 413 13,065
 
Net inccma (loss) (11,997) (3,518) (15,515)
 
Property, plant and equiprent:
 

Additions (Deletions) 21,395 109 21,504 
Total assets 259,905 35,407 295,312 
Bonds and other long-tenn liabilities

I net of escrowed funds and discounts 251,210 48,510 299,720
 

I
 
Equity (deficit):
 

Contributed capital 5,277 7,399 12,676
 
Accumulated deficit (17,843) (33,404) (51,247)
 

l«'11'E ( 15) Fund Deficits 

I The deficit of the Water and Sewer Authority is expected to be eliminated 
through the rate setting process. The deficit of the Stadimn Authority 
will be subsidized through future general fund appropriations. No other

I individual funds had deficits in 1990. 

l«'11'E (16) Related Party Transactions 

I 
I A. Under the tenus of agrearents dated July 1, 1965, December 1, 1985 

and April 1, 1986, the City of Pittsburgh agreed to make annual 
grants to the Stadimn Authority for the excess of the aggregate 
cost of operation and maintenance of the Stadimn canplex and debt 

I 
service on the Stadimn bonds over the total funds available to the 
Stadimn Authority for those purposes. The Stadimn Authority is 
required to repay these grants to the extent that its revenues are 

I 
not required for operation and maintenance of the Stadimn canplex 
and debt service on the Stadimn bonds. At March 31, 1990, 
aggregate grants fran the City of Pittsburgh were approximately 
$8.3 million of which $3,965,299 were made in 1990. 

I (Continued) 

I 64 

I 



65 
I 

CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial StaterlEnts 

I 
B. In 1986, the City disbursed $20,000,000 to the URA, which is not a 

canponent unit of the City, to fund its Business Reinvest:nent 
Fund. Under the tenns of a cooperation agreaoont between the n-.u, 
these funds were then used to make a loan to a private coalition 
organized to acquire the asset of the Pittsburgh Athletic Canpany, 
Inc. (owner of the Pittsburgh Pirates). The URA is obligated to 
repay the $20,000,000 if funds becare available through the 
occurrence of certain events, principally the sale of the 
Pittsburgh Pirates major league baseball franchise. 

I 
I 
I 

C. The URA, acting as the City's agent under a 1981 cooperation 
agreaoont, made n-.u loans fran prior years' Urban Redeveloprent 
.Action Grant (UDAG) funds to a Developrent Canpany to assist in 
the construction of Parkway Center Mall in the City's west End, 
which was canpleted in Novanber 1982. Neither of these loans are 
reflected as a receivable in the City's financial staterlEnts due 
to the contingent nature of repaymants and unspecified tenns as of 
December 31, 1990. 

The first loan of $2,000,000 was made under an agreement dated 
October 30, 1981, as amended April 22, 1982 and April 2, 1984, the 
purpose of which was to assist in the construction costs of the 
mall; repaymants are contingent upon positive cash flows and. other 
factors. The loan, which has a 27 year tenn with varying interest 
rates, is to be repaid to the City by the URA at the City's 
discretion. The balance of the receivable fran the URA, should 
the City continue to exercise its option, at December 31, 1990, 
was $1,780,257. 

The second loan of $6,819,972, with additional available 
borrowings of $354,028, was made under an agreaoont dated April 2, 
1984, for the construction of highway ramps to connect the mall 
with 1-279. Repaymant of the loan is to carmance upon the 
transfer of the ramps to PennI:bt. As of December 31, 1990, the 
ramps had not been transferred. The tenn of the loan is also 27 
years with an unspecified interest rate. The loan agreenEnt calls 
for interest to be accrued during the period between the 
disbursenEnt of funds and the carmancing of the loan repaymant. 
As of December 31, 1990, no paymants had been received on this 
loan. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements

I
 

I 
I D. The City has entered into an intergovernrrEntal cooperation 

agreemant with the County of Allegheny, Pennsylvania, setting 
forth their mutual understandings regarding financial assistance 
to be provided by the County in connection with the City's efforts 
to retain the Pittsburgh Pirates major league baseball franchise. 
In connection with this agreement, the County has agreed to make

I annual grants through the year 2011 to the Authority for 

I 
Improvenents in Municipalities (AIM) in an anount equal to (a) all 
County real estate taxes generated by virtue of the taxability of 
Three Rivers Stadium and (b) $426,000. AIM has agreed to make 
annual grants equal to the anounts described in (a) above and 
deferred loans of $426,000 to the City for projects and facilities 
located within the City (see note 8G). The sale of the Stadium to

I private owners has not taken place. .Accordingly, no anounts \'Ilere 
due under (a) above. 

I
 E. The City is responsible for the billings and collections of the
 

I 
Water and Sewer Authority's water charges. At December 31, 1990 
and 1989, respectively, the reserve for uncollectible accounts and 
City water usage was $16,753,000 and $15,993,000, which includes 
$8,120,000 recorded prior to the inception of the Authority. 

Wl'E (17) Stadium Managarent Agreerrent

I In conjunction with the Stadium agreemants dated January 1, 1982, the Authority 
agreed to manage and maintain Three Rivers Stadium. The Authority, in tum, 

I has engaged Spectacor Managerrent (Spectacor) to act as the managing body and 
agent of the Stadium ccmplex subject to the provisions of the Stadium 
agrearents and the Public Auditorium Authorities Law. 

I Under the tenns of the agreemant with Spectacor, the Authority was required to 

I 
pay a managerrent fee of $264,688 and $262,500 for the year ending January 31, 
1990 and 1989, respectively. In addition to the managerent fee, Spectacor 
receives a percentage of adjusted gross incare fran extra events held at the 
Stadium other than major league baseball games and National Football league 
games. 

I 
(Continued)
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Notes to General Pl1IpJse Financial Statements 

I 
Wl'E (18 ) Ccmni.t:Irents I 

In 1984, the Water and Sewer Authority adopted a seven-year capital
 
Improvarents Program budgeted to cost approximately $194 million. As of
 
DecEmber 31, 1990, $121 million has been spent, and an additional $22
 I 
million has been ccmni.tted for noncancelable construction contracts. 

In September 1986, the Water and Sewer Authority entered. into an agrearent I 
with Pennsylvania Arrerican Water Ccmpany (P~) (fornerly west Penn Water
 
Canpany) to provide four to avelve million gallons of water per day at
 
nonnal bulk rates for resale to P~ custooers. Sales of water under this
 Iagrearent CamEnced in April 1988 for an initial tenn of ten years. Sales
 
to P~ amounted to $2,464,000 and $2,304,000 in 1990 and 1989,
 
respectively.
 I 

Wl'E (19) Contingencies 

IThe City has been named as a defendant in a mnnber of lawsuits arising in
 
the ordinary course of its operations against which the City is not
 
insured.. In the opinion of the City Solicitor, adequate provision has
 
been made in the general fund for such lawsuits.
 I 
In addition, the City receives federal and state grants under a number of
 
programs. The expenditures of the City under such programs are subject to
 I 
audit and p::>ssible disallowance . Historically, such audits have not
 
resulted in significant disallowances of program costs, and City
 
managarent believes that audits of existing programs will not result in
 Isignificant liability to the City. 

On May 15, 1986, the Stadium Authority entered into an aroonctnent to the
 
1973 Concession Services A.greem2nt whereby the concessionaire has agreed
 I 
to expend approximately $1,500,000 for the purchase and installation of
 
leasehold improvarents, trade fixtures and food service equiprent in the
 
stadium. In the event that the A.greem2nt is tenninated or reaches
 Iexpiration (1998) , the Stadium Authority may be liable to the
 
concessionaire for the concessionaire's unarrortized balance of the
 
improvarents. The concessionaire's iInpI'OVE!IEnts are to be amortized
 
ratably over 15 years adjusted for certain levels of attendance.
 I
 

I
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statarents 

I tV1'E (20 ) SUBSEQUENT EVENI'S 

A. Series 1991 General Obligation Notes 

I In March 1991, the City issued General Obligation Notes, Series of 1991 
A in the anount of $30,000,000. The notes, dated February 15, 1991, 
bear a 5.25% interest rate and mature on NovEmber 15, 1991. The

I purp:::>Se of note issue was to finance a portion of the City's Capital 
Improvanant Program. 

I The notes are not subject to re<iarption prior to maturity. It is the 

I 
intent of the City to repay the notes with the proceeds of its 
anticipated $60,000,000 General Obligation Bonds expected to be issued 
in the fall of 1991. 

B. E<piptent leasing Authority Revenue Bonds 

I 
I In June 1991, the Equipment Leasing Authority issued $14,000,000 of 

Equipment Revenue Bonds, Series of 1991. The issue consists of 
$14,000,000 of serial bonds bearing interest at varying fixed rates 
ranging fran 4.55% to 6.05% with maturities through July 1, 1997. 
Principal and interest maturities begin on January 1, 1992. The 
purpose of this issue is to provide financing for the acquisition of

I equipment to be leased to the City. 

I 
The City has executed a lease agreem:mt dated May, 1991, with the 
Authority which provides· for the follOlN'ing lease rental paymants to be 
paid to the Authority by the City: 

I Year ending Rental 
Decanber 31 Payments 

I 
1991 $ -0­
1992 2,853,523 

I 
1993 2,794,800 
1994 2,790,703 
1995 2,794,544 

Thereafter 5,586,341 

'Ibtal $ 16,819,911

I 
I (Continued) 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I
 
Notes to General Purpose Financial Staterrents 

I
 
The lease provides for rental credits which may be applied, at the I
 
City's option, against the rental payIIEnts due under the lease
 
agreerrent. These credits are largely canprised of earnings generated
 
fran the Authority's Salvage and Investment Ac:::counts.
 I
 
It is the City'S intent to fully utilize all available credits under
 
the lease agreerrent.
 I
 

C. Proposed Refunding of Debt I
 
In July 1991, the PWSA plans to issue approximately $226,605,000 of
 
new bonds, the proceeds of which, together with certain trusteed and
 
nontrusteed funds on hand, will be used to redeem the 1985 and June
 I
1986 Bonds on September 1, 1991. Funds available in the July 1986
 
escrow fund which ~ originally intended to be used to redeem the
 
1985 and June 1986 Bonds are now expected to be deposited, together
 
with additional arrounts fran the Authority's available funds, in an
 I
 
irrevocable trust to defease the July 1986 Bonds. 

The proposed refunding transaction is expected to result in a current I
accounting loss of approximately $7,000,000, which will be recognized
 
when the refunding occurs. However, the Authority expects to realize
 
an econanic gain as a result of reduced future debt service
 
requirements.
 I
 

I
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Fiscal 
Year* 

1983 
1984 
1985 
1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 

Pension Trust Funds Revenues by Source 

Last Eight Fiscal Years 
(in thousands) 

Participants ' Employer State Investnent 
Contributions Contributions Contributions Incare Miscellaneous 

$6,522 14,797 4,095 1,046 2 
6,594 19,305 6,106 2,012 28 
6,854 12,627 8,684 4,139 28 
6,853 16,595 12,228 4,519 28 
6,514 16,394 16,624 6,038 22 
7,253 17,176 28,170 2,978 28 
8,060 9,099 28,377 6,013 1 
8,072 7,738 20,272 4,280 51 

*Infonnation for years prior to 1983 is rot available. 

'Ibtal 

26,462 
34,045 
32,332 
40,223 
45,592 
55,605 
51,550 
40,413 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I
CITY	 OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Pension Trust Fund Expenses by Type I

Last	 Eight Fiscal Years 

(in thousands) 

I
 
Fees for 

Fiscal Benefit Administrative professional 
year(*) payn:ents expenses services 'Ibtal I
 

1983 $ 22,593 264	 46 22,903
 

I
1984 24,867 309	 180 25,356
 

1985 26,711 315	 143 27,169
 I
 
1986 28,406 338	 283 29,027
 

1987 30,871 379	 331 31,581
 I
 
1988 33,219 416	 241 33,876
 

I
1989 35,860 748	 294 36,902
 

1990 37,053 1,460	 325 38,838 I
 
* Infonuation for years prior to 1983 is not available. I
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I	 Analysis of Pension funding Progress 

Last	 Eight Fiscal Years 
(in thousands)

I 
Unfunded 

Net Assets Pension Pension Annual Unfunded Pension BenefitI Fiscal Available Benefit Percentage Benefit Covered Obligation As A Percentage 
. 

Year * For Benefit Obligation Funded Obligation Payroll of Annual Covered Payroll 

I 1983 $18,215 360,446 5.1% 342,231 125,000 273.8% 

I 
1984 24,470 362,830 6.7% 338,360 130,500 259.3%
 
1985 33,154 418,039 7.9% 384,885 132,900 289.6%
 
1986 38,322 432,420 8.9% 394,098 132,700 297.0%
 

I 
1987 48,740 453,065 10.8% 404,325 127,600 316.9%
 
1988 61,960 469,366 13.2% 407,406 135,000 301.8%
 
1989 68,551 492,339 13.9% 423,788 124,600 340.1%
 
1990 82,227 492,546 16.7% 410,319 136,200 301.3%
 

I	 *Infomation for years prior to 1983 is not available. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
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income,' and •other taxes~ '-In addition" theGen~tal Fu~d 
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·.miscellaneous sources. . . 

',GenelilFlJild expendituresaref'or .the general operatlonof -. 
lhe~ity. 'The most- sig~ificantexpendituresin the~neral 
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ICITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GENERAL FUND 

BALANCE SHEET I 
DECEMBER 31, 1990 

(with canparative anounts for December 31, 1989) I 
ASSETS 

Cash and investrrents, at cost which I 
approximates market $ 36,418,103 31,046,685 

Receivables: 
Real estate taxes (net of allowance for I

uncollectible accounts of $17,442,194 in 1990
 
and $16,368,725 in 1989) 5,898,132 4,812,521
 

Sewage charges (net of allowance for
 
uncollectible accounts of $3,161,000 in 1990
 I 
and $3,575,000 in 1989) 1,486,543 1,090,128
 

Personal property taxes (net of allCMaIlce for
 
uncollectible accounts of $282,000 in 1990
 I 
$275,000 in 1989) 33,767 27,700
 

Receivable fran PWSA 12,533,783
 
h::crued interest 61,792 59,322
 IOther 2,637,206 2,167,212 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,135,279 2,001,287 
!Me fran other funds 3,198,169 3,955,564 
Inventories, at cost 1,730,673 2,980,251 I 

'lbtal assets $ 66,133,447 48,140,670 

I 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities: 
h::counts payable 7,936,938 5,601,645 I 
.Accrued liabilities 8,360,545 7,717,262 
D.1e to other funds 2,250,000 2,284,095 
!Me to other governmants 3,441,712 976,882 I 
.Accrued workers' carrpensation 12,332,000 11,025,000 
Accrued coopensated absences 13,313,000 10,495,000 
Deferred revenue, principally real estate taxes 7,007,407 4,499,098 I 

'lbtal liabilities 54,641,602 42,598,982 

IFund balance: 
Reserved: 

Inventories . 1,730,673 2,980,251 
Encumbrances 1,923,339 1,856,510 I 
Employee benefits 1,591,155 1,614,968 
PWSA benefits receivable 7,350,000 

Unreserved: 
Undesignated (1, 103,322 ) (910,041) I 

'lbtal fund balance 11,491,845 5,541,688 
'lbtal liabilities and fund balance $ 66,133,447 48,140,670 I 
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GENERAL FUND 

76 

I Statarent of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance 

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 
(with canparative anounts for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

I 
I Revenues: 

Taxes, including penalty and interest 

I 
Interest and dividends 
Fines and forfeits 
Licenses and. fees 

I 
Pittsburgh Zoo receipts 
Intergovernrrental revenues 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

I 
Expend.itures :
 
Current operating:


I General governnent
 

I 
Public safety
 
Public works
 
Sanitation
 
Ccmnunity, recreation and 

cultural programs 
En'ployee benefits

I Claims and judgements 

I 
Miscellaneous 

Debt service: 
Principal retiremant of capital leases 

I 
Interest on capital leases 
Stadium Authority subsidy 
Public Auditorium Authority subsidy 

Total expenditures 

I Excess of revenues over expenditures 

I 
I 
I 
I 

1990 1989 

$ 235,257,297 220,733,176 
5,592,501 7,648,576 
5,411,995 4,392,875 

13,045,921 11,562,149 
1,469,624 1,479,290 
3,296,127 4,722,865 
1, 704,659 1,279 ,681 

265,778,124 251,818,612 

17,549,519 15,646,592 
107,383,440 100,663,810 
28,813,394 26,692,698 
15,070,282 14,186,732 

20,444,641 18,848,251 
45,003,247 42,566,932 

656,403 646,903 
2,991,486 2,377,023 

2,664,786 2,538,877 
669,631 681,302 

2,218,204 2,145,269 
1,293,017 1,080,546 

244,758,050 228,074,935 

21,020,074 23,743,677 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GENERAL FUND 

77 
I 
I 

Statemant of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance I 

For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990 
(with carparative anounts for the year ended. Decanber 31, 1989) I 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
capital lease obligation proceeds $ 
referred. loan proceeds 
Operating transfers fran trust and agency funds 
Operating transfers fran enterprise funds 
Operating transfers fran special revenue funds 
Operating transfers to special revenue funds 
Operating transfers to debt service funds 
Operating transfers to trust and agency funds 

'Ibtal other financing uses 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Residual equity transfer fran trust funds 
Residual equity transfer fran special revenue funds 
Residual equity transfer fran capital project funds 

Fund balance, end of year 

77
 

1990 

2,587,999 
426,000 

5,000,000 
22,010,000 

385,500 
(2,555,050) 

(37,968,224) 
(5,045,865) 

(15,159,640) 

5,860,434 

5,541,688 

2,458 
34,672 
52,593 

$ 11,491,845 

I1989 

1,691,443 I 
426,000
 

5,000,000
 
7,532,000
 I352,760 

(4,754,164) 
(33,748,287) 
(3,397,918) I 

(26,898,166) I 
(3,154,489) I 
6,391,660 

3,241 I 
1,463,882
 

837,394
 

I 
5,541,688 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I 
SChedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Data on the 
Budgetary Basis - General Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1990I (with carprrative actual anounts for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

I 1990 

I Budget 
as amended Actual 

Variance -
favorable 

(unfavorable) 
1989 

Actual 

I 
I 
I 
I 

Revenues: 
Taxes, including penalty 

and interest $ 
Interest earnings 
Fines and Forfeits 
Licenses and fees 
Pittsburgh Zoo receipts 
Water and Sewer Authority 

rei.mbursatents and 
transfers 

Intergoverrmental revenues 
Miscellaneous 
Reti.rarent Benefit Trust 

233,049,000 
6,000,000 
4,900,000 

12,420,000 
1,550,000 

31,802,314 
5,447,747 
2,700,000 

240,016,467 
5,488,147 
5,404,873 

12,448,531 
1,456,819 

34,740,237 
5,285,667 
2,947,537 

6,967,467 
(511,853) 
504,873 

28,531 
(93,181) 

2,937,923 
(162,080) 
247,537 

221,837,758 
7,603,132 
4,416,539 

11,219,663 
1,464,915 

28,232,781 
6,781,150 
4,298,746 

I 
Fund reimbursarent 

'Ibtal revenues 

5,000,000 

302,869,061 

5,000,000 

312,788,278 9,919,217 

5,000,000 

290,854,684 

I 
I 
I 
I 

Expenditures : 
Current operating 

General goveD1l1ent 
Public safety 
Public works 
sanitation 
Water 
Ccmnunity, recreation and 

cultural programs 
Enployee benefits 
Claims and judgarents 
Miscellaneous 

Debt Service: 

24,734,255 
109,671,337 
38,975,171 
15,192,785 
17,230,485 

22,565,319 
49,526,801 

716,785 
13,364,094 

21,172,577 
104,244,112 
35,001,008 
14,351,517 
15,584,003 

21,160,369 
47,862,619 

466,144 
11,326,299 

3,561,678 
5,427,225 
3,974,163 

841,268 
1,646,482 

1,404,950 
1,664,182 

250,641 
2,037,795 

19,308,790 
97,843,971 
37,121,099 
13,800,338 
14,053,116 

19,933,174 
47,969,456 

599,903 
11,577,733 

I 
I 

Principal reti.rarents 
Interest and fiscal 

charges 
Stadium Authority subsidy 
Public Auditorium 

authority subsidy 

11,680,000 

24,668,000 
2,218,409 

1,294,676 

11,390,000 

23,588,514 
2,218,204 

1,293,017 

290,000 

1,079,486 
205 

1,659 

9,875,000 

19,219,742 
3,145,269 

1,261,722 

I 
'Ibtal expenditures 331,838,117 309,658,383 

78 

22,179,734 295,709,313 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
SChedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Data on the Budgetaly 
Basis - General Fund I 

For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990 
(Continued) I 

1990 
­ IVariance 

Budget favorable 1989 
as emended Actual (unfavorable) Actual I 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures (28,969,056 ) 3,129,895 32,098,951 (4,854,629)

Fund. balances - budgetary I 
basis, beginning of year 28,969,056 29,558,428 589,372 34,413,057 

Fund balarx::es - budgetary I 
basis, end of year $ 32,688,323 32,688,323 29,558,428 

Mjustrrent to generally Iaccepted accounting
 
principles (GMP) basis
 
(Note 2):
 

Cumulative difference I 
between budgetary basis
 
and GAAP basis, beginning
 
of year (24,016,740) (28,021,396)
 I 

Net effect of GAAP basis 
recognition of revenues (4,908,918) 407,730 

Net effect of GAAP basis 
recognition of expenditures (2,321,024) 3,964,414 I 

Net effect of GAAP basis 
recognition of other 
financing sources 10.050,204 (367.488) I 

Fund balances - GAAP basis, 
end of year $ 11,491,845 5,541,688 I 

I 
I 
I 
I79 
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I CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I 
GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Revenues 
Carprred with Budget (Budgetary Basis) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1990I (with canparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

I	 1990 

I	 Budget
Taxes: 

Real Estate $ 119,300,000 
Paynent in lieu of taxes 1,560,000
l-Ercantile 6,750,000 

I 
I .AIm1salent 8,000,000 

Personal property 2,350,000 
Earned incooe 35,500,000 
Deed transfer 7,000,000 
sewage Charges 1,365,000
Parking 15,700,000I	 Ck:cupation privilege 3,150,000 
Business privilege 27,500,000 
Institution and service 
privilege	 300,000 

I 
I Public service 211,000 

Cable franchise privilege 363,000 
Penalties and interest 4,000,000 

'Ibtal taxes, including 
penalty and interest 233,049,000I Interest earnings 6,000,000 

Fines and forfeits 4,900,000

I Licenses and Fees: 
Liquor and malt beverage 450,000 
Business 1,020,000I	 General goverrment 1,650,000 
Fees 9,300,000 

I 'Ibtal licenses and fees 12,420,000 

I 
Pittsburgh Zoo receipts 1,550,000 
Public Parking Authority 700,000 
water and	 Sewer Authority 

I 
reimbursem:mts and transfers 31,802,314 

Intergoverrmental revenues 4,747,747 
Miscellaneous 2,700,000 
Pension Trust Fund reimbursarent 5,000,000 

I	 'Ibtal revenues 302,869,061 

Actual 

118,494,461 
1,684,986 
6,694,489 
8,981,886 
2,626,592 

40,112,789 
5,857,025 
1,500,331 

17,324,881 
3,196,493 

28,206,103 

341,352 
220,208 
363,000 

4,411,871 

240,016,467 

5,488,147 
5,404,873 

442,675 
864,430 

1,816,974 
9,324,452 

12,448,531 

1,456,819 
700,000 

34,740,237 
4,585,667 
2,947,537 
5,000,000 

312,788,278 

Variance 
favorable 

(unfavorable) 

(805,539) 
124,986 
(55,511) 
981,886 
276,592 

4,612,789 
(1,142,975) 

135,331 
1,624,881 

46,493 
706,103 

41,352 
9,208 

411,871 

6,967,467 

(511,853) 
504,873 

(7,325) 
(155,570) 
166,974 
24,452 

28,531 

(93,181) 

2,937,923 
(162,080) 
247,537 

9,919,217 

1989 
revenues 

96,129,763 
1,100,510 
6,501,590 
7,564,001 
2,339,850 

54,066,987 
6,271,954 

964,621 
14,210,345 
3,071,911 

25,284,730 

216,423 
213,554 
352,494 

3,549,025 

221,837,758 

7,603,132 
4,416,539 

462,376 
980,506 

1,573,452 
8,203,329 

11,219,663 

1,464,915 
2,000,000 

28,232,781 
4,781,150 
4,298,746 
5,000,000 

290,854,684 
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ICITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Expenditures I 
Canpared. with Budget (Budgetary Basis)
 

For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990
 I
(with carparative totals for the year ended Decanber 31, 1989) 

I 
1990 

Budget Variance 
appropriations favorable 1989 I 

as aIIEnded Expenditures (unfavorable) expmdi.tures 

Current operating: IGeneral goverIlIrEnt:
 

City Council and City Clerk's Office:
 I 
City Council $ 1,383,410 1,298,769 84,641 1,051,185 
City Clerk's Office 751,918 671,410 80,508 588,228 I

2,135,328 1, 970, 179 165,149 1,639,413
 

Mayor's Office:
 I 
Office of the Mayor 2,030,128 1,782,696 247,432 1,753,428 
City Infonnation Systems 6,157,273 5,356,709 800,564 4,753,321 I 

8,187,401 7,139,405 1, 047 , 996 6,506,749 

IMunicipal Courts 1,196,763 1,029,451 167,312 951,664
 

Carmission on Human Relations 456,318 398,850 57,468 385,815
 I 
Depart:nent of City Controller 2,819,321 2,393,776 425,545 2,252,730 

Departrrent of Finance 3,871,227 3,454,127 417 ,100 3,308,050 I 
Departmant of Law 2,095,293 1,754,935 340,358 1,518,257 

IDepartnent of Persormel and
 
Civil Service Carmission 1,978,389 1,390,745 587,644 1,373,063
 

Departnent of City Planning 1,994,215 1,641,109 353,106 1,373,049 I 
'Ibtal general goverrment $ 24,734,255 21,172,577 3,561,678 19,308,790 I 

(Continued) 

I 
81 

I 



I 
82 

I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GENERAL FUND 

I SChedule of Expenditures 
Carprred with Budget (Budgetary Basis) 

I 
(Continued) 

I 
I 

1990 
Budget Variance 

appropriations favorable 1989 
as anended Expenditures (unfavorable) expenditures

I 
I
 Public safety:
 

Depar'tJIent of Public Safety: 
Bureau of Administration $ 6,173,658 5,804,591 369,067 5,505,361
Bureau of Energency Medical

I Services 6,626,504 6,223,137 403,367 5,951,132
Bureau of Police 53,898,455 51,188,834 2,709,621 47,164,753 

I 
Bureau of Fire and 

Building Inspection 42,972,720 41,027 ,550 1,945,170 39,222,725 

'Ibtal public safety 109,671,337 104,244,112 5,427,225 97,843,971 

I Public works:
 
Deparbrent of General Services:
 
General Office 6,254,115 5,945,613 308,502 4,998,443


I Bureau of Fleet Managatent 12,507,065 10,712,676 1,794,389 14,143,865
 
Bureau of Repairs and 
Operating Maintenance 3,281,463 3,004,735 276,728 2,841,636 

I 22,042,643 19,663,024 2,379,619 21,983,944 

Deparbrent of Public 'V«:>rks:I Bureau of Administration 8,322,008 7,513,834 808,174 7,082,576 
Streets and sewers 8,424,255 7,662,326 761,929 7,924,882 

I 16,746,263 15,176,160 1,570,103 15,007,458 

I 
Depart:rcent of Engineering and 
Construction 186,265 161,824 24,441 129,697 

'Ibtal public works $ 38,975,171 35,001,008 3,974,163 37,121,099 

I
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ICITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Expenditures I 
Canpared with Budget (Budgetary Basis) 

I
(Continued) 

I 
1990 IBudget Variance 

appropriations favorable 1989 
as amended Expenditures (unfavorable) expenditures 

I 
Sanitation: I 

Depart:Irent of Envirormental services: 

Q:meral Office $ 2,380,328 2,321,054 59,274 2,207,912 IDivision of Collection 
and Disposition 12,083,036 11,355,832 727,204 10,960,623 
Animal Control Division 463,460 430,851 32,609 395,567 
Rodent Control Division 265,961 243,780 22,181 236,236 I 

Total sanitation 15,192,785 14,351,517 841,268 13,800,338 I
Water: 

Department of Water: 
Bureau of Administration 5,833,434 5,125,475 707,959 4,165,189 IPurification 6,274,300 5,878,065 396,235 5,952,430
 
Distribution 4,938,957 4,466,072 472,885 3,788,686

Engineering 183,794 114,391 69,403 146,811
 I 

Total water 17,230,485 15,584,003 1,646,482 14,053,116 

I 
Ccmnunity, recreation and cultural programs: 

Departnent of Parks and recreation: I 
Bureau of Administration 4,480,004 4,161,902 318,102 4,091,438 
Conservatory 1,060,192 901,356 158,836 885,665 
Bureau of Maintenance 6,337,062 5,844,871 492,191 5,487,479 I 
Bureau of Recreational 
1\ctivities 2,962,256 2,670,340 291,916 2,561,807 

Carried forward $ 14,839,514 13,578,469 1,261,045 13,026,389 I 
(Continued) 
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I CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GENERAL FUND 

I Schedule of Expenditures 
Canpared with Budget (Budgetary Basis) 

I	 (Continued) 

I 
I 

1990 
Budget Variance 

appropriations favorable 1989 
as emended Expenditures (unfavorable) expenditures

I 
I	 Brought Forward $ 14,839,514 13,578,469 1,261,045 13,026,389 

Zoological Parks Ccmnission 2,147,650 2,003,745 143,905 1,928,530 
Carnegie Library 5,020,155 5,020,155 4,445,155I Carnegie Museum 525,000 525,000 491,600 
Other 33,000 33,000 41,500 

I 'Ibtal camnmity, IeCreation 
and cultural programs 22,565,319 21,160,369 1,404,950 19,933,174 

Employee benefits:I	 Pensions 12,931,050 12,783,809 147,241 12,492,500 
W':>rkers' ccrapensation 1,441,431 1,268,225 173,206 1,343,361 
Health insurance 25,232,185 24,149,760 1,082,425 25,250,000 
Group insurance 1,252,125 1,125,000 127,125 815,000 

I 
I Social security 6,000,010 5,994,508 5,502 5,657,582 

Personal leave buy back 1,270,000 1,200,882 69,118 1,136,371 
severance pay 1,400,000 1,340,435 59,565 1,274,642 

'Ibtal anployee benefits 49,526,801 47,862,619 1,664,182 47,969,456 

I ClaiJrE and judgmants	 716,785 466,144 250,641 599,903 

I 
Miscellaneous : 

Postage 884,644 884,505 139 897,635 

I 
Refunds 2,155,623 2,145,354 10,269 1,075,988 
Purchase of delinquent 

sewage charges 1,525,769 1,454,262 71,507 1,156,029 
Spending authorized in 
prior years 8,798,058 6,842,178 1,955,880 8,448,081 

I 'Ibtal miscellaneous $ 13,364,094 11,326,299 2,037,795 11,577,733 

I
 (Continued)
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I
CITY OF PITI'SBURGI, PENNSYLVANIA
 
GENERAL FUND
 

SChedule of Expenditures I
 
Canpared with Budget (Budgetary Basis) 

I
(Continued) 

I
 
1990
 

Debt Se:rvice: 

Principal retirem:mts 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Stadimn Authority subsidy 
Public Auditorimn Authority 

subsidy 

'Ibtal debt se:rvice 

'Ibtal expend.itures 

Budget 
appropriations 
as amended Expenditures 

$ 11,680,000 11,390,000 
24,668,000 23,588,514 
2,218,409 2,218,204 

1,294 ,676 1,293,017 

39,861,085 38,489,735 

$ 331,838,117 309,658,383 
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Variance 
favorable 1989
 I
 

(unfavorable) Expenditures 

I
 
290,000 9,875,000
 

1,079,486- 19,219,742
 I
 
205 3,145,269 

1,659 1,261, 722 I
 
1,371,350 33,501, 733
 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

22,179,734 295,709,313 
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The· Speci,alRevenue Fundsacc<>unt . f()rthe' proceeds of
.spetific,revenuesources (other' than. ex~ndable t~.usts ,or

capitalpI'oiects) !hat ate legally restticted .to' expefiditur~fol" .. 
. ..specified purpoSes.' . . 

'The following fundsare<included in.tlUsfund type:· .I: . 
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made un<wr the Job Training :andFartnershlp .Act. . 
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I'"	 Jlousingc~ '.. '. to>acoount . for: the,CQst. of .~eighborhQPd
 
·.developmentand 'impfOyementprojects..These.programs. are '.


~.I·	 financeOprimarilyby the U.· S.D~partmentofHousing<and . . 
UrbanDevelop~eJ;lt. (HUD) .under the' 'CoIilmunity 
Devel~pmentBl9Ck OranfProgram.A subs~antive portion or,·1 

'I 
theJunQsr~ceivedunderthe'program have been BlIocate4 to . 

. the.Urban ~edevel()pment Authority ofPittsburgh. , 

CiYicaDclCulturuBnrichment~: . to aCC()untforcivi~aild 
. '. cultui~dprogramswhicharefinCl,nced by' federal' and state ·1 

gr~nts~.private donatio~" and ·user·ch,argc;s. •. 
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I 
CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS I 
Canbining Balance Sheet 

IDecember 31, 1990 
(with canparative for December 31, 1989) 

I 
Federal EquiplEnt 
Revenue leasing Liquid ISharing Authority Fuel Tax J'I'PA 

ASSETS 

cash and short-tenn invest:nents, at I 
cost which approximates rrarket $ 6,065,831 596,909 633,518 

Receivables: 
Accrued interest 25,419 123 IOther 

Ole fran general 
Due fran other special revenue funds 71,650 
Due fran capital projects funds I 
Due fran other govenments - 263,450 1.254,981 

'Ibtal assets 6,091,250 860,482 1,960,149 I 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALAOCES I 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 666,448 26,307 713,611 
Accrued liabilities 311,513 41,219 I 
Retainage Payable
 
Due to general fund 1,180,748
 
Ole to other special revenue funds
 I
Due to capital projects fund ­

'Ibtal liabilities - 666,448 337,820 1.935,578-- I 
Fund balances: 

Reserved for enctmlbrances 
Unreserved I 

Designated for subsequent years'
 
expenditures
 

Undesignated - 5,424,802 522,662 24,571
-- I 
'Ibtal fund balance - 5,424,802 522,662 24,571 

I
 
I
 

'IOta! liabilities and fund balances $ 6,091,250 860,482 1,960,149 
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I 
I 
I 
I Law 

Enforcenent Housing 

Civic and 
Cultural 
Enrichment 

Nonresident 
Charges 1990 

'Ibtals 

1989 

I 
I 
I 
I 

1,061,730 

292,390 

1,354,120 

194,434 

2,727,333 

2,921,767 

3,918,572 

67,123 
365,575 

288,442 

4,639,712 

--­

12,470,994 

92,665 
365,575 

71,650 

4,826,596 

17,827,480 

12,899,573 

208,599 
335,836 
184,095 

70,171 

6,898,205 

20,596,479 

I 
I 
I 

55,089 
35,094 

381,849 

32,792 
936,296 
71,650 

1,405,941 

131,285 
55,124 

92,000 

--­

1,974,589 
442,950 
32,792 

2,209,044 
71,650 

1,405,941 

5,446,265 
451,068 

2,708,601 
70,171 

1,205,678 

I 90,183 2,828,528 278,409 --­ 6,136,966 9,881,783 

I 
'I 
I 

234,044 

57,413 
972,480 

1,263,937 

1,354,120 

1,375 

91,864 

93,239 

2,921,767 

329,765 

333,137 
3,698,401 

4,361,303 

4,639,712 

--­
--­

565,184 

390,550 
10,734,780 

11,690,514 

17,827,480 

416,400 

353,902 
9,944,394 

10,714,696 

20,596,479 

I 88 
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA ISPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Canbining Statarent Of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances I 

December 31, 1990 
(with canparative totals for December 31, 1989) I 

Federal Equipoont 
Revenue leasing Liquid I 
Sharing Authority Fuel Tax 

Revenues: 
Interest earnings $ 893,825 184,292 I
Rentals 
Intergovermental revenues 4,370,888 6,900,482 
Charges for user seI:Vices 
Miscellaneous I 

'Ibtal revenues 893,825 4,555,180 6,900,482 I 
Expenditures: 

Current operating: 
General gove:rrment 135,961 IPublic safety
 
Public works 4,429,015
 
Carmunity, recreation & cultural
 

programs I 
Intergove:rrmental programs 7,324,325 
capital Projects 8,058,125 
Debt service-lease paynents 83,258 I 

'Ibtal expenditures 8,277,344 4,429,015 7,324,325 

IExcess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (7,383,519) 126,165 (423,843) 

Other financing sources (uses): I 
a>nd sale proceeds 13,912,500
 
Proceeds frcm fixed asset dispositions 679,848
 
Operating transfers frcm other funds 224,336 423,843
 IOperating transfers to other funds - (7,565,124) 

'Ibtal other financing 
sources (uses) - 7,251,560 423,843 I 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other sources over expenditures I 
and other uses (131,959) 126,165 

Fund balances, beginning of year 5,556,761 396,497 24,571 
Equity transfers fran (to) other funds ­ I 
Fund balances, end of year $ 5,424,802 522,662 24,571 

I
 
I
 

89 
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I 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

FEDERAL REVENUE SHARI~ FUNDS 

IBalance Sheet 

December 31, 1990 
(with canparative anounts for December 31, 1989) I
 

I
 
ASSRrS 

cash and short-term investnEnts, at cost which $ I 
approximates market 

'Ibtal assets I 
ILIABILITIES AND FUND BAI.AN:E 

Fund balance: I 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 
Undesignated 

I'Ibtal fund balance 

'Ibtal liabilities and fund balance $ I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I91 

I 
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I CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
FEDERAL REVENUE SHARIf«; FUNDS 

I Statarent of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 
(with carparative anounts for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

I
 
I
 

Revenues:
 
Interest earnings $


I Intergovermental revenues- federal
 

'Ibtal revenues 

I 
I 

Expenditures:
 
Public safety:
 

Departm:mt of Public Safety:
 
Bureau of Police 11,434 
Miscellaneous

I 'Ibtal expenditures 11,434 

I Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (11,434 ) 
Fund balance, beginning of year 11,434 
Equity transfers to general fund 

I Fund balance, end of year $ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 92 

I 



CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
EQUIPMENr LEASING AUI'HORITY
 

Balance Sheet
 

December 31, 1990
 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAI.J.\OCE 

Liabilities: 
.Accounts payables 

Fund Balance: 
Undesignated 

$ 666,448 

5,424,802 

'lbtal fund balance 5,424,802 

'lbtal liabilities and fund balance 6,091,250 

93
 

I 
93 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

1,138,257 

I5,556,761 

5,556,761 I 
6,695,018 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 
I 

CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
EQUIPMENr LEASIt.G AUIHORITY 

Statanant of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 
(with canparative anounts for the year ended. December 31, 1989) 

I
 
I
 

Interest earnings 
Expenditures :

I Current operating - general goverrment 
Capital projects
 
Bond issue cost
 

I Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures

I 
I 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Bond sale proceeds 
Proceeds fran fixed. asset dispositions 
Operating transfers fran other funds 
Operating transfers to other funds 

I Total other financing sources 

Excess (deficiency) of reveooes and other sources

I over expenditures and other uses 

Fund. balance, beginning of year 

I Fund balance, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 

94 . 

I
 
I
 

1990 

$ 893,825 

135,961 
8,058,125 

83,258 

8,277,344 

(7,383,519) 

13,912,500 
679,848 
224,336 

(7 ,565,124 ) 

7,251,560 

(131,959) 

5,556,761 

5,424,802 

824,656 

286,749 
6,860,484 

7,147,233 

(6,322,577) 

341,616 
2,412,615 

(1,563,386) 

1,190,845 

(5,131,732) 

10,688,493 

5,556,761 
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I 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

LIQUID FUEL TAX FUND 

IBalance Sheet 

December 31, 1990 
(with canparative anounts for December 31, 1989) I
 

I
 
ASSETS 1990 1989 

Icash and. short-tenn invest:nents, at cost which 
approximates market $ 596,909 1,089,696 

Accrued interest receivable 123 1,433 
Due Fran other goverments 263,450 250,900 I 

'Ibtal assets $ 860,482 1,342,029 

I 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE I 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payables $ 26,307 615,177 
Accrued liabilities 311.513 330,355 I 

'Ibtal liabilities 337,820 945,532 

IFund balance: 
967
 

Undesignated 522,662 395,530
 
Reserved for encumbrances 

I 
'Ibtal fund balance 522,662 396,497 

'Ibtal liabilities and. fund balance $ 860,482 1,342,029 I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I95 

I 
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I 
CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

LIQUID FUEL TAX FUND 

I Statenent of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

I For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990 
(with carrparative arrounts 

I
 
I Revenues: 

Interest earnings 

I 
Intergovermental revenues- State 

'lbtal revenues 

I Expenditures:
 
Public ~rks
 

I 'lbtal expenditures 

I Excess of revenues over expenditures 
Fund balance, beginning of year 

I Fund balance, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

$ 184,292 179,281 
4,370,888 4,206,890 

4,555,180 4,386,171 

4,429,015 4,068,017 

4,429,015 4,068,017 

126,165 318,154 
396,497 78,343 

$ 522,662 396,497 

I 
96 

I 
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ICITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
JTPA FUNDS 

IBalance Sheet 

December 31, 1990 
(with canparative anounts for Decenber 31, 1989) I 

ASSETS 

cash and short-tenn inves1::IrEnts, at cost which 
approximates market 

lA1e fran housing funds 
lA1e fran other goverrments 

'Ibtal assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAI.AOCE 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued liabilities 
lA1e to general fund 

'Ibtal liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Undesignated 

'Ibtal fund balance 

'Ibtal liabilities and fund balance 

$ 633,518 
71,650 

1,254,981 

1,960,149 

$ 713,611 
41,219 

1, 180,748 

1,935,578 

$ 

24,571 

24,571 

1,960,149 

I 
530,378 I 

70,171 
1,197,416 

I1,797,965 

I
 
I


564,577 
36,034 

1,172,783 I 
1, 773,394 

I 
24,571 

24,571 I 
1,797,965 

I
 
I
 
I
 

I 
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I 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

LIQUID FUEL TAX FUND 

I Statanent of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 
(with carparative anounts for the year ended Decanber 31, 1989) 

I
 
I Revenues: 

Interest earnings 
Intergoverrmental revenues- State

I Total revenues 

I Expenditures:
 
Public ~rks
 

I Total expenditures 

I Excess of revenues over expenditures 
Fund balance, beginning of year 

I Fund balance, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

$ 184,292 
4,370,888 

4,555,180 

179,281 
4,206,890 

4,386,171 

4,429,015 

4,429,015 

4,068,017 

4,068,017 

$ 

126,165 
396,497 

522,662 

318,154 
78,343 

396,497 

96 

I 
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ICITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
JTPA FUNDS 

IBalance Sheet 

December 31, 1990 
(with canparative arrounts for December 31, 1989) I 

ASSE.TS 

Cash and short-tenn i.nvest:Irents, at cost which 
awroximates market 

£Me fran housing funds 
Due fran other governm:mts 

'lbtal assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to general fund 

'lbtal liabilities 

Fund balance: 
undesignated 

'lbtal fund balance 

'lbtal liabilities and fund balance 

97
 

$ 633,518 
71,650 

1,254,981 

1,960,149 

$ 713,611 
41,219 

1, 180,748 

1, 935 ,578 

$ 

24,571 

24,571 

1,960,149 

I 
530,378 I 

70,171 
1,197,416 

I1,797,965 

I
 
I


564,577 
36,034 

1,172,783 I 
1, 773,394 

I 
24,571 

24,571 I 
1,797,965 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
JTPA FUNDS 

I Statarent of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 
(with canparative anounts for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

I
 
I
 

Revenues: 
Intergoverrmental revenues - federal $

I 'Ibtal revenues 

I Expenditures:
 
Intergoverrmental programs
 

I 'Ibtal expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

I 
I Other financing sources:
 

~ating transfers fran general fund
 
~ating transfers to other funds
 

'Ibtal other financing sources 

I Excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures 
and other uses 

I Fund. balance, beginning of year
 

I
 Fund. balance, end of year $
 

I 
I 
I 
I 98 

I 

6,900,482 7,410,271 

6,900,482 7,410,271 

7,324,325 8,368,709 

7,324,325 8,368,709 

(423,843) (958,438) 

423,843 950,700 
(266) 

423,843 950,700 

(8,004) 

24,571 32,575 

24,571 24,571 



CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
lAW ENFORCEMENI' FUNDS 

Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1990
 
(with c~ative anounts for Decanber 31, 1989)
 

ASSETS 

Cash and short-tenn invest::nents, at cost which 
awroximates market 

[).Ie fran other goverments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAI.J.\OCE 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 
Undesignated 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 1,061,730 
292.390 

1,354,120 

55,089 
35.094 

90.183 

$ 

234,044 
57,413 

972.480 

1,263.937 

1,354,120 

99
 

I 
99 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

427,416 
150.871 I
578,287 

I
 
I
 

49,891 
35.169 

I85.060 

37,017 I 
18,265 

437.945 I
493.227 

578,287 I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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"'DEBT~SERVICEFUNDS
 

ThQ D¢btSeryiceFlplds are' ustdLloaCcount for't,hc;paymenf. 
.of gen.erallong-terim.debtpri~cipClI.i~t~rest;and"relaiedcosts... 

• ,-" - . c., _" _~, , ' , _',,'., _," • • ' • ~ 

ThefcUlowing fllnds are included inth~s f\ll1d type: 

. ·Oe.:acral Qblig.tioa .. . ," to aCCQunt for thepaYnlentof 
, ". principal' ·and.. inierest on all. long..term debt,ex~pl for ,'that' 

.which IS recorded "in the Equipment Leasing AuthQtityDebt 
5erviceFllnd. ' ' . 

tiquipmentLeasiog,·AlIthority - 'to account for the 
'payment of'principCt.l anCl interest on long·term debt issued by 
, the· EqlJipment Lea&l18Auth9rity; aco.panent 1Illit.ofthe
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I 
CITY OF PI'lTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

LAW ENFORCEMENT FtJNI),S

I Stataoont of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

I For the Year Ended. December 31, 1990 
(with carprrative annunts for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

I
 
I
 
I
 

Revenues:
 
Intergoverrmental :revenues - local $
 

Total :revenues 

I Expenditures : 
Public safety 

I Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Other financing sources - operating transfers

I fran general fund. 

Excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures

I Fund balance, beginning of year 
Equity transfers 

I Fund balance, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 100 

$
 

2,029,721 783,115 

2,029,721 783,115 

1,805,978 1,267,198 

223,743 (484,083) 

564,823 414,377 

788,566 (69,706) 

493,227 588,921 
(17,856) (25,988) 

1,263,937 493,227 

I 
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I 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

HJUSIN:; FUND.S 

IBalance Sheet 

December 31, 1990 
(with canparative arrounts for December 31, 1989) I
 

I
 
ASSms 

Cash and short-tenn invest:nents, at cost which I 
approximates market $ 194,434 305,398 

Due fran other goverments 2,727,333 5,241,915 

I
'Ibtal assets 2,921,767 5,547,313 

I 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BAlANCE 

Liabilities: I 
Accounts payable $ 381,849 2,923,437 
Accrued liabilities 
Retainage payable 32,792 
Due to general fund 936,296 1,298,818 I 
Due to JTPA funds 71,650 70,171 
Due to capital projects funds 1,405,941 1,205,678 I 

'Ibtal liabilities 2,828,528 5,498,104 

Fund. balance: I 
Reserved for encumbrances 1,375 1,375
 
Undesignated fund balance 91,864 47,834
 

'Ibtal fund balance 93,239 49,209 I 
'Ibtal liabilities and fund balance $ 2,921,767 5,547,313 I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

101 

I 
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I 
I Statarent of Revenues, Ex:penditures 

and Changes in Fund Balance 

CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
HOUSIN:; FUNDS 

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 
(with carparative anounts for the year ended DecEmber 31, 1989) 

I 
I Revenues:
 

Int.ergoverrmental revenues:
 

I	 'lbtal revenues 

I
 Experrlitures:
 
Current operating: 

General goverIlleIlt 
Council & City Clerks's office

I Ccmnission on Human Relations 
Depart:mant of Finance 
Depart:mant of Personnel and Civil Service

I Ccmnission 

I 
Departnent of City Planning 

Public safety - Bureaus of Fire 
Public w:>rks 

Departnent of Public W:>rks 
Depart:m:mt Of Land and Buildings 

$
 

Depart:m:mt of Engineering and Construction

I Ccmnunity, recreation and cultural programs 

I 
Departnent of Parks and Recreation 

IntergoverIlleIltal program9 
'lbtal expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

I Other f.irlaocing sources (useS): 
Transfer fran general funds:
 
Transfer to JTPA funds:


I	 'lbtal other f.irlaocing sources 

I Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses
 

Fund balance, beginning of year


I Equity transfers to general fund
 

Fund balance, end	 of year

I 
102 

I 

16,625,789 21,009,868 

16,625,789 21,009,868 

1,984,166 1,588,205 
12,599 23,368 

6,783 

523,617 355,653 
5,354,443 4,312,099 

234,626 

28,362 213,992 
1,486 55,902 

1,397,551 2,058,928 

1,101,315 1,324,838 
7,161,339 11,581,272 

17,564,878 21, 755,666 

(939,089)	 (745,798) 

983,119	 799,119 
(70,171) 

983,119	 728,948 

44,030 (16,850) 
49,209 640,858 

(574,799) 

49,209$ ==9=3~,2=:3=9 



I 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

CIVIC AND CULTURAL ENRICHMENT FUNDS
 

Balance Sheet
 

December 31, 1990
 
(with canparative arrounts for December 31, 1989)
 

ASSETS 

cash and short-tenn invest::mants, at cost which 
approximates market 

Receivables: 
.Accrued interest 
Other 
Due fran other governnents 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities: 
.Accounts payables 
.Accrued liabilities 
Due to general fund 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Reserved for enctnnbrances 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 
Undesignated 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 3,918,572 

67,123 
365,575 
288,442 

4,639,712 

$ 131,285 
55,124 
92 ,000 

278,409 

329,765 
333,137 

3,698,401 

4,361,303 

$ 4,639,712 

103 

I 
I 
I 
I 

4,077,328 I 
165,600
 
335,836
 I
57,103 

4,635,867 I
 
I
 

154,926 I49,510
 
237,000
 

441,436 I 
377 ,041 I335,637 

3,481, 753 

I4,194,431 

4,635,867 I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

103
 

I 
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I CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
CIVIC AND CULTURAL ENRICHMENI' FUNDS 

I Statem:mt of Revenues, Expenditures 
and. Changes in Fund Balance 

I For the Year Ended Dec:anber 31, 1990 
(with c~ative anounts for the year ended Dec:anber 31, 1989) 

I 
I
 Revenues:
 

Interest earnings 
Int.ergoverrmental revenues:
 

Federal


I State
 

I 
IDeal
 

Charges for user services
 
Miscellaneous
 

'lbtal revenues 

I 
Expenditures:
 

Current operating:


I General goverrmant
 

I 
Public safety - Bureaus of Police 

and. Energency Medical service 
Public W)rks - Depart:mant of Public W)rks 
Ccmmmity, recreation and. cultural programs 

Departmant of Parks and. Recreation 
Int.ergoverrmental programs

I 'lbtal expenditures 

I
 Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
 

I
 
Other financing sources:
 

Operating transfers fran other funds:
 
Operating transfers to other funds:
 

Trust & agency
 
General fund


I 'lbtal other financing sources 

I Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 

I 
over expenditures and. other uses
 

Fund balance, beginning of year
 
Equity transfers to general fund
 

Fund balance, end of year

I 
104 

I 

1990 1989 

$ 142,445 165,600 

600,177 
1,422,846 

350,000 
2,429,744 

585,787 
1,821,621 

2,131,374 
4,000 

4,945,212 4,708,382 

58,852 1,211,913 

8,507 
1,270,781 

93,975 
1,475,011 

3,302,370 
86,507 

2,108,091 
74,667 

4,727,017 4,963,657 

218,195 (255,275) 

439,265 335,000 

(88,272) 
(385,500) 

(34,507) 

(74,847) 
(352,494) 

(92,341) 

$ 

183,688 
4,194,431 

(16,816) 

4,361,303 

(347,616) 
5,275,017 

(732,970) 

4,194,431 



CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
IDNRESIDENT CHARGES FUND 

Balance Sheet 

105 
I 
I 
I 

December 31, 1990 
(with canparative anvunts for December 31, 1989) I 

ASSETS 

cash and short-tenn investmants, 
approximates market 

'Ibtal assets 

at cost which $ 

I 
I 
I 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAIJ\NCE I 
Liabilities: 

kcmed liabilities I 
'Ibtal liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 
Undesignated 

'Ibtal fund balance 

'Ibtal liabilities and fund balance $ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

105 I 
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I
 CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
NJNRESIDENI' CHARGES FUND 

I Statem:mt of Revenues, Expenditures
 
and. Changes in Fund. Balance
 

I For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990
 
(with crnprrative anounts for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

I
 
I
 

Revenues- charges for user services 

I Expenditures - Public safety 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures 

I Fund balance, beginning of year 

Equity transfersI
 
Fund balance, 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

end of year 

$ 

130,125 

(130,125) 

$ 

106
 

I 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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P]ENN§YJLViANJIA 
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I 
ICITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Canbining Balance Sheet I 
December 31, 1990 

(with coop:rrative totals for December 31, 1989) I 
Equiprent I 

General leasing 'Ibtals 
ASSETS Obligation Authority 1990 1989 ICash and short-tenn 

investm:mts, at cost which 
approximates market $ 1,154,112 2,702,995 3,857,107 5,226,304 

.AccDled interest receivable 67,046 16,552 83,598 192,747 I 
'Ibtal assets	 1,221,158 2,719 ,547 3,940,705 5,419,051 I 

LIABILITIES AND	 FUND IWAlCE 

ILiabilities: 
.AccDled interest and 
other payables 131,153 131,153 596,157 
AccDled liabilities 49,845 I 

'Ibtal liabilities 131,153	 131,153 646,002 I 
E\md balance: 

Designated for	 debt service 1,090,005 2,719,547 3,809,552 4,773,049 I 
I 

'Ibtal liabilities and 
fund balances $ 1,221,158 2,719,547 3,940,705 5,419,051 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I
 
I
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I CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
DEB!' SERVICE FUNDS 

I Canbining Statatent of Revenues, Expenditures and
 
Changes in Fund Balances
 

I For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990 
(with canparative totals for the year ended. Decanber 31, 1989) 

I 
I Equiprent 

General leasing 'lbtal 
Obligation Authority 1990 1989 

Revenue: 
Interest earnings $ 2,470,804 247,113 2,717,917 1,447,294 

I
 Expenditures:
 
Current operating: 

Miscellaneous 1,347 
Debt service:I Principal retiraTent 12,680,000 9,875,000 22,555,000 13,130,000 

Interest and fiscal 
charges 25,193,150 1,621,533 26,814,683 23,762,767

I 'lbtal expenditures 37,873,150 11,496,533 49,369,683 36,894.114 

I 
I Deficiency of revenues 

over expenditures (35,402,346) (11,249,420) (46,651,766)(35,446,820) 
Other financing sources 
(uses) : 

Operating transfers fran: 
General fund 34,978,514 2,989,710 37,968,224 33,748,287 
Capital projects fund 199,900 199,900 209,166 

I 
I Special Revenue funds 7,565,124 7,565,124 1,563,386 

Operating transfers to: 
capital projects fund (24,643) (24,643)
Special Revenue fund (20,336) (20,336) (87,477) 

'lbtal other 
financing sources 35,153,771 10,534,498 45,688,269 35,433,362

I Excess (deficiency) of
 
:revenue and other sources
 
over expenditures and
 

I
 
I other uses (248,575) (714,922) (963,497) (13,458)
 

Fund balance,
 
beginning of year 1,338,580 3.434.469 4,773,049 4,786,507
 

Fund balances, 
end of year $ 1,090,005 2,719,547 3,809,552 4,773,049

I
 
I
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CapitalJTo~ts FUilds ateQuiltfor thefina.ncialre$burces
"I,·, \Jsed .for:the,-,acquisitiOn>.andoonstruction.of'majot,. capital 

, facilities otherthan. thOse 'firiancedby Proprietary:Funds and' 
"'Trust FuIlds.. ,":1,­

- -v _.- " ,,- " ' _ 

Tbe following f~dsa.re.i~cl\ldedjn tW$ fund type: >I,i 
; ....~m.g ·...clPJ~trU..tign- t()aa»liIlt {or$ree( and 

,bridge:COD$ttll~tion<projectS.' , . . ,'. '.' .
,I~" 

P.rk••ad:R.ccreation .' -to::aceount' forco~tt.u¢ti()lf()j~I' community,'t:ecr~Monal~ac~litie& '" ," ~ " 

I " pg;blj~ Worb -,' t()aCcol1llt'for thereconstructionofsfreets. ' 

G'cBcralScrvicca-to'accountfor the· pur<;hase . of ,I' 
.'" eqllipmentand firev~hicles~ , ., 

, - ' ­

I ·Urb~)R~eYelppmcnt . - t() '~ceountforn~ighborhOOd;' , 

housing programs :anddevelopmentpro)ect&
I 

Ot~er<-· to8ccOUn.t fot.· tniscellan~ol1s,projects 110t~l8ssi£ied'I",' ' ',­ in othercap~talpiojectsfund$.·' . 
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNIlS
 

Canbining Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1990
 
(with carparative totals for December 31, 1989)
 

ASSETS 

Cash and short-tenn .invest:nents, at 
cost which approximates market 

Interfund. receivable (payable) 
rue fl:Ull special revenue funds 
Due fl:Ull other goverments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAI...AOCES 

Liabilities: 
.Accounts payable 
Retainage Payable 
.Accrued liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Designated for subsequent years' 

expenditures 

Total fund. balances 

Total liabilities and fund. balances 

Engineering 
and Construction 

$ 25,149,410 

1, 139,312
 

$ 26,288,722
 

2,343,104 
595,741 
130,488 

3,069,333 

7,771,192 

15,448,197 

23,219,389 

$ 26,288,722 

111 

Parks and 
Recreation 

1,241,205 

1,241,205 I
 
I
 

113,909 

I 
113,909 

I 
6,431 I 

1,120,865 

1,127 ,296 I 
1,241,205 

I 
I 
I 
I 

111
 

I 
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I 
I 
I 
I 

'lbta1s 
Public General UrbanI ~rks Services Redeve1QgTent Other 1990 1989 

I 
I 2,060,272 2,445,207 356,011 1,608,401 32,860,506 56,672,835 

828,790 (828,790) 
1,405,941 1,405,941 1,205,678 

1,139,312 4,854,118 

2,889,062 2,445,207 356,011 2,185,552 35,405,759 62,732,631

I
 
I
 
I 

103,188 128,963 1,028,735 3,717,899 5,355,038 
58,393 654,134 1,218,844 
47,185 18,190 195,863 167,962 

208,766 128,963 1,046,925 4,567,896 6,741,844

I 
I 939,251 2,112,589 354,028 454,297 11,637,788 15,050,323 

1,741,045 203,655 1,983 684,330 19,200,075 40,940,464 

I 2,680,296 2,316,244 356,011 1,138,627 30,837,863 55,990,787 

2,889,062 2,445,207 356,011 2,185,552 35,405,759 62,732,631

I 
I 
I 
I 
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I
CITY	 OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

ICanbining StatEmant of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990 I 
(with canparative totals for the year ended Decanber 31, 1989) 

I 
Engineering Parks and Public 

and Construction Water Recreation ~rks I 
Revenues: 

IntergoverrmEntal revenues $ 8,381,235 IMiscellaneous	 236,492 

'Ibtal revenues 8,381,235	 236,492 I 
Expenditures: 

capital Projects 23,274,633 423,207 5,371,050
 
Bond Issuance Costs
 I 

'Ibtal Expenditures 23,274,633	 423,207 5,371,050 

IDeficiency of revenues over 
expenditures	 (14,893,398) (423,207) (5,134,558) 

Other financing sources (uses): I 
Bond Proceeds
 
Bond Proceeds-Anticipation Notes
 
~rating transfers fran:
 IDebt	 Service Funds 
~ating transfers to:
 

Special Revenue Funds (60,000)

Debt Service Fund
 I 

'Ibtal other financing 
sources (uses) (60,000) I 

Deficiency of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and 
other uses (14,953,398) (423,207) (5,134,558) I 

Fund	 balances, beginning of year 41,010,787 52,593 1,880,503 6,649,854 I 
Equity transfers fran (to) 

other funds (2,838,000) (52,593) (330,000) 1,165,000 IFund	 balances, end of year $ 23,219,389 1,127,296 2,680,296 

I 
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I 
I 
I 
I General 

seI:Vices 
Urban 

Redeveloptent Other 1990 
'Ibtals 

1989 

I 8,381,235 
236,492 

14,201,046 

I 8,617,727 14,201,046 

I 
I 
I 
I 

2,379,240 

2,379,240 

(2,379,240) 

958,099 

958,099 

(958,099) 

1,076,572 

1,076,572 

(1,076,572) 

24,643 

33,482,801 

33,482,801 

(24,865,074) 

24,643 

51,600,263 
1,495,986 

53,096,249 

(38,895,203) 

32,999,264 
26,200,000 

I (199,900) 
(60,000) 

(199,900) (209,166) 

I (199,900) 24,643 (235,257) 58,990,098 

I (2,379,240) (1,157 ,999) (1, 051, 929) (25,100,331) 20,094,895 

I 4,224,484 812,010 1,360,556 55,990,787 36,733,286 

I 
I 
I 

471,000 

2,316,244 

702,000 

356,011 

830,000 

1,138,627 

114 

(52,593) 

30,837,863 

(837,394) 

55,990,787 
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,'Ent~rprjse~uridsare ~sed toa~unt foroperatioDs{l) that 
~e 'financed ,and opeta,tedin ".amaI1ne~'~inlibu '. topdvate 
'bU$iness elltetp!"ises "~"',··where the int,entofthe ,governmgbody, .,' 
istluit ' the, CQsts (expenses,. including 'depreciation)~ of 
providing" goods or. servicesto<tne<generalpublicona 
,coniinui~g ,basis ~. financedorteCQvere~primari1y"thr()ugh 

,'mer charges;, or'(2} where the'goverlling' bocIyh,a.S ,decided 
',thafpenodlc det~rQlinatiQn;'()frevenues earne<;t,expenses 
,incurre~. "a,nd/or, '.net "'income is 'appropriate ,for, , capita] 
,maiptehance, .' public' ': policy. management,: cOntrol, , 

,,," aCcountability. or ~theX',purpo$es' " 

'(hefo.U6wingfunds:~reincludedinthis''fundtype: 

Water, and, Sewer Authqrit1 .. to account fot th~p1."oyision ,,' 
,of'wa,terserv!cestothe residents of~t~e City." All activitieS ' , 

, 'ne~toprovidesuchse.ryjces a,re accQunted for, in, theSe 
,.,funds,including.'butnQt li~itedto,admirtistration.oper~tioD$, 

anddistriputioIl.' ',' '. Th~ Water.' andSew~rAutJ;tority,a 
'.'. component unit of,th~City. assumed, the. resPQnsi,bilitiesof 
.'. the Water Fund,' its Ptedece~or. on May 1.1984. 

8tadiumAu:lhorltJ .. '- ,..toaccoUDt ,for .all·, activities 
pertaining to·..· the operations '.of 'the ,'Three Rivers ··StatJjum , 
Complex. The StaQium AuthorityisaGOmponcBt~1Jniiof the' 
City. "", .' , 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
ENl'ERPRISE FUND.S 

Canbining Balance Sheet - Assets 

(with canparative totals for December 31, 1989) 

Water and 'Ibtals 
~r Staditnn 

Authority Authority 

Current assets 
Cash and investnents, at 

cost which approximates market $ 20,842,000 1,081,549 21,923,549 21,150,273 
Accounts receivable, net of Water
 

and Sewer Authority allowance for
 
uncollectible accounts of
 
$16,753,000 11,099,000 185,085 11,284,085 11,626,042


Accrued interest 24,000 24,000 20,000
 
Prepaid expenses and other
 

current assets 18,000 169,962 187,962 237,548
 

'Ibtal current assets 31,983,000 1,436 ,596 33,419,596 33,033,863 

'1'nJsteed and restricted. funds: 
Cash and short-tem investnents, 

at cost which approximates I 
market 103,458,000 593,346 104,051,346 126,571,595 

Accounts receivable, net 411,036 411,036 679,501 
Accrued. interest 1,947,000 1,947,000 1,454,000 I
Deferred bond and financing 

expenses 3,960,000 680,915 4,640,915 5,752,623 

I'Ibtal trusteed and 
restricted funds 109,365,000 1,685,297 111,050,297 134,457,719 

Property, plant and equiprent: I 
Staditnn canplex 52,633,187 52,633,187 52,576,990 
Utility plant 72,149,000 72,149,000 60,638,000 
tblUltility plant 2,594,000 2,594,000 1,409,000 IConstruction in process 47,837,000 47,837,000 40,091,000 

122,580,000 52,633,187 175,213,187 154,714,990 

less accumulated. depreciation 4,775,000 20,348,366 25,123,366 24,524,620 I 
Net property, plant 

and equiprent 117,805,000 32,284,821 150,089,821 130,190,370 I 
Deferred PWSA Hydro-Electric
 

Division expense 752,000 752,000
 I 
'Ibtal Assets $259,905,000 35,406,714 295,311,714 297,681,952 

(Continued) I 
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I CITY OF	 PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
ENrERPRISE FUNDS 

I	 Canbining Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Fund Equity 
(Continued) 

I 
Water and 

sewer Stadium

I	 Authority Authority 

I Liabilities:
 
Current liabilities:
 

Accounts fayable - contractor 
and accrued expenses

I Accounts Payable - other 232,000 344,623 

I 
rue to general fund 
Benefits fayable to 

the City of Pittsburgh 5,183,000 

'lbtal current liabilities 5,415,000 344,623 

I Current liabilities fayable fran 
trusteed and restricted funds: 

Accounts fayable 4,010,000

I Accrued interest fayable 4,486,000 1,521,386 

I 
Deferred revenue 1,329,213 
Current portion of 

long-tenn debt 1,430,000 

'lbtal current liabilities 
fayable fran trusteed and

I restricted funds 8,496,000 4,280,599 

I 
Grants fran the City 

of PittshIrgh 8,276,622 

I 
Benefits faYable to the City
 

of Pittsburgh 7,350,000
 

lDng-tenn debt: 
lDng-tenn debt, net of 

current portion 495,790,000 48,510,000I less escrow' funds (231,602,000)
less discount (12,978,000) 

I 'lbtal long-tenn debt 251,210,000 48,510,000 

I 'lbtal liabilities 272 ,471, 000 61,411,844 

I
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I 

'lbtals 

1990 1989 

2,222,188 
576,623 563,694 

5,183,000 

5,759,623 2,785,882 

4,010,000 2,686,000 
6,007,386 6,063,442 
1,329,213 1,274,635 

1,430,000 1,695,000 

12,776,599 11,719,077 

8,276,622 4,311,353 

7,350,000 

544,300,000 546,630,000 
(231,602,000) (230,980,000) 
(12,978,000) (13,728,000) 

299,720,000 301,922,000 

333,882,844 320,738,312 

(Continued) 
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ICITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
ENrERPRISE FUNDS
 

canbining Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Fund Equity I 
(Continued) 

I
Water and 'Ibtals 

Sewer Stadium 
Authority Authority 1990 1989 I 

Fund equity: 
Contributed capital: I 

Restricted. for construction
 
purposes 7,398,631 7,398,631 7,398,631
 

Unrestricted 5,277,000 5,277,000 5,277,000
 I 
'Ibtal contributed. 

capital 5,277 ,000 7,398,631 12,675,631 12,675,631 I 
Accumulated deficit (17,843,000) (33,403,761) (51.246,761) (35,731,991) I'Ibtal fund deficit (12,566,000) (26,005,130) (38,571, 130) (23,056,360) 

'Ibtal liabilities 
and fund equity $ 259,905,000 35,406,714 295,311,714 297,681,952 I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 
ICITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

ENl'ERPRISE FUNDS 

Canbining StataTent of Revenues, Expenses and I 
Changes in Accumulated Deficit 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 I(with canparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

I 
Water and 'Ibtals 

Sewer Stadium 
Authority Authority 1990 1989 I 

c:p:rrating revenues: 
Water charges $ 40,416,000 40,416,000 37,385,000 I 
Rentals 2,922,336 2,922,336 2,853,008 
Medallions 1,320,000 1,320,000 1,320,000 
Stadium bond I 
service charges 677,966 677,966 685,410
 

Concessions 1,119,736 1,119,736 1,393,104
 
Miscellaneous 585,133 585,133 443,772
 I 

'Ibtal operating
 
revenues 40,416,000 6,625,171 47,041,171 44,080,294
 I 

c:p:rrating Expenses: 
Salaries &Wages 9,838,000 1,206,010 11,044,010 10,245,301 
Utilities 3,327,000 875,935 4,202,935 4,070,792 I
Allocation of	 City 

i.ndi.rect expenses 5,030,000 5,030,000 2,753,000 
Depreciation and 
anortization 1,936,000 1,722,665 3,658,665 2,780,472 I 
Purification chemicals 1,242,000 1,242,000 1,076,000 
PaynEIlts to non~itywater 

agencies	 2,392,000 2,392,000 2,334,000 I 
Repairs and maintenance 92,000 880,529 972,529 1,152,727
 
Insurance 351,258 351,258 365,791
 
Materials, supplies and
 Irentals 1,111,000 1,111,000 881,000
 
1\dmini.strative and other
 

operating expenses 537,000 1,176,118 1,713,118 1,336,813
 
Miscellaneous 2,259,000 2,259,000 1,113,000
 I 

'Ibtal operating
 
expenses 27,764,000 6,212,515 33,976,515 28,108,896
 I 

c:p:rrating i..ncane
 
(carried foIWaI:d) 12,652,000 412,656 13,064,656 15,971,398
 I 

(Continued) 
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I CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
ENrERPRISE FUNDS 

I Canbining Statenent of Revenues, Expenses and
 
Changes in .Accumulated Deficit
 

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1990
 
(with canparative totals for the year ended December 31, 1989)
 

I
 (Continued)
 

I
 Water and 'Ibtals
 
~ Stadium
 

Authority Authority 1990 1989 

I ~ating Incare 
(brought forward) $ 12,652,000 412,656 13,064,656 15,971,398 

I tbnoperating revenues 
(expenses) : 
Interest incare 12,409,000 145,270 12,554,270 9,534,130I Interest expense (13,984,000) (4,075,696) (18,059,696) (14,172,381) 

I 
Anortization 
of bond issue costs (1,064,000) (1,064,000) (1,068,000) 

I 
Other 
lDss on disposal 
of assets (1,243,803 ) 

I 
'Ibtal nonoperating 

revenues 
(expenses) (2,639,000) (3,930,426) (6,569,426) (6,950,054) 

I Incare (loss) before 
operating transfers 10,013,000 (3,517,770) 6,495,230 9,021,344 

I ~ating transfers to 
general fund (22,010,000) (22,010,000) (7,532,000) 

Net incare (loss) (11,997,000) (3,517,770) (15,514,770) 1,489,344

I .Accumulated deficit,
 
beginning of year (5,846,000) (29,885,991) (35,731,991) (37 ,221,335)
 

I .Accumulated deficit,
 
end of year $ (17,843,000) (33,403,761) (51,246,761) (35,731,991)
 

I
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Tr;\lStfnnds' are used to aCcount for assets held by; the 

'I government in a trustee capacity. Agency funds are U$ed to ' 
aCcountf()rassetsh~lcl by the government as an ,agent for 
,indivi<iuals, private organizations. othergovemmentsand/orI funds~ '," , 
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- . , .. . 

·COJl,lpr~hen.t...e Board -to cl¢eount for;the' investment and fmapcing:,1 . ~tivit~'eS ofthe City's tfuee pe,J:lSion 'plans. . '" 

, :MUIlioi~(Plan -t() acCoootfortheactiVity intb~~ion'plan. for,;1' 
tton-UI1ifQrmed ,municipal·employees. ..Each. full:.tiDle ...·employee .not . 

\~" " .cCOvered'undertltePoliteor.Fire plans is required to ~ttiCipat~in:th;eI;', ,'",. . MunicipalPensionPlaIl :~terserving a90 d3y probationary' 'period. . 
11Ieplan i8,a eontributorydefinedbenefit petlSionplan.: . 

I .,·Police:Plan ..>loaccount for·tl1e ac:tivity in<tbePolicepensionplan.
 
.A1rBur~au,6fPolice employees ate,required: to participate' in tile plan.
 

The'plan is'aeoQtributory defined· benefit'~nsioi(Plan. .
 
r • ~'. ' _T' " ,- • '. ' " .1> 

" , ­ Fire'... -'. to aCCOUnt for theacc<>unt 'for the activity In thtFire'I" ',., pension· plan.. All BureauQfFireell1ployees are 'required t<t pclrticipate 
, in the'plan. The'plan is.a .cqntribUtory defined benefit pensionpl~ ... 

, -, :-. - . <., ,',-, -",', "-- - - '.' ," "i ' 

'I Retirees'· T·rast -(ShorttitleforpoHce.Fire,·· andM\JlijcipalR¢titees' .' . 
Trust. Fllnd) - toaceount f.or. Ute receipt .. arnt.•·disburseme.nt· of C~ty ~ 

··fundsto pennit bealth \lenefitspaym€:nts toa!lCi}yrefiree& . Ttt:ls'1 fund':~eplacesthe "~etirees' . PelJSion •Trust.·•. FundwhQse purpose was.to·· 
:.pfovidezJle,riodic pension iQcr~~, toretir~~ 

I 
. Gifts and Donations ," to8eeOuntforgifts receiv~d for. th~ operation' '.I',' 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA ITRUST AND AGEOCY FUNDS 

Canbining Balance Sheet I 
December 31, 1990
 

(with carparative totals for December 31, 1989)
 I 
Pension Trust Funds 

I~rehensive Municipal Police Fire Retirees' Gifts and 
ASSET Board Plan Plan Plan Trust Donations 

Cash and short-tenn I 
investnents, at cost 
which approximates 
market $ 83,253,867 12,486 57,764 41,611 1,075,732 491,610 IAccrued. interest and 

dividends receivable 1,073,757 219 
Due fran General Fund 
Due fran other I 
QJverments 

'Ibtal assets $ 84,327,624 12,486 57,764 41,611 1,075,951 491,610 I 
LIABILITIES AND FUND B&ANCES 

ILiabilities: 
Accrued. liabilities
 

and other payables 110,316 10,004 16,688 4,560 13,626
 
Deferred canpensation
 I 
payable
 

Due to General Fund 599,580
 
Due to Other Goverments
 IDeposits held in trust
 
Deferred revenue
 

'Ibtal liabilities 709,896 10,004 16,688 4,560 13,626 I 
Fund balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances 83,575 I
Reserved for en<:i<MIents
 
Reserved for anployee
 
benefits 83,617,728 2,482 41,076 37,051 1,075,951
 

Designated. for subsequent
 I 
years' expenditures 96,011
 

Undesignated. 298,398
 I 
'Ibtal fund 
balance 83,617,728 2,482 41,076 37,051 1,075,951 477 ,984 

I'Ibtal liabilities and 
fund balances $ 84,327,624 12,486 57,764 41,611 1,075,951 491,610 

I 
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I 
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I 
I 
I 
I 

Expendable Trust Funds 
Meter 

WOrkers' Parks Installation 
Coop:msation ~nts Program 

Reti..renent 
Benefits 

Agerv:::y 
Funds 1990 

'Ibtals 

1989 

I 
I 
I 

4,955,331 

31,117 

4,986,448 

245,673 

245,673 

193,053 

193,053 

18,747,065 

190,377 

18,937,442 

19,115,465 

76,835 
2,250,000 

37,458 

21,479,758 

128,189,657 

1,372,305 
2,250,000 

37,458 

131,849,420 

122,457,728 

986,654 
2,100,000 

125,544,382 

I 
I 
I 
I 

24,919 

24,919 

41,835 

41,835 

3,979,040 

15,705,773 
389,545 
61,496 

1,267,069 
76,835 

21.479,758 

4,200,988 

15,705,773 
989,125 
61,496 

1,267,069 
76,835 

22,301,286 

5,369,704 

12,244,933 
1,246,963 

710,593 

19,572,193 

I 
I 
I 

4,986,448 

812 
218,542 

1,400 

264 

150,954 

18,937,442 

84,651 
218,542 

108,698,178 

97,411 
449,352 

71,080 
279,728 

105,236,229 

15,244 
369,908 

I 
4,986,448 220,754 151,218 18,937,442 109,548,134 105,972,189 

I 
I 

4,986,448 245,673 193,053 18,937,442 
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ICITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
 

ICanbining Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Fund B:llances 

For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990 I
(with canparative totals for the year ended Decanber 31, 1989) 

I 
eanprehensive Municipal Police Fire 

Board Plan Plan Plan I 
Operating revenues: 

Contributions: 
Participants $ 8,050,590 6,749 15,065 I
~loyer 7,104,135 33,809

State 20,271, 780
 

I'Ibtal Contribution 35,426,505 40,558 15,065 

Invest:Irent Iocaoo: 
Gains (losses) on security I
transactions (2,149,409)


Interest and dividends 6,323,342 9,448 8,878
 

'Ibtal invest:Irent incaoo 4,173,933 9,448 8,878 I 
Miscellaneous 45,637 3,982 989 I 

'Ibtal operating revenues 39,600,438 45,637 53,988 24,932 

Operating expenses: I 
Benefit paynents 14,123,305 13,065,126 9,864,650
Administrative expenses 841,662 334,726 171,994 111,871
 
Fees for professional services 325,171
 I 
'Ibtal operating expenses 1,166,833 14,458,031 13,237,120 9,976,521 I 

Net incaoo (loss) before 
operating transfers 38,433,605 (14,412,394) (13,183,132 ) (9,951,589) I 

Operating transfers between 
pension funds (36,929,133) 14,413,000 13,143,343 9,958,000 I 

Net Iocaoo (loss) 1,504,472 606 (39,789) 6,411 

Fund balances, beginning of year 82,113,256 1,876 80,865 30,640 I 
Fund balance, end of year $ 83,617,728 2,482 41,076 37,051 

I 
125 
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I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Retirees' 
Trust 

I 600,000 

I 600,000 

I 
88,321

I 88,321 

I 
688,321 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I 688,321 

I (585,210) 

103,111 

I 972,840 

1,075,951 

I
 
I
 

'Ibtals 
1990 1989 

8,072,404 8,060,396 
7,737,944 9,098,582 

20,271, 780 28,377,352 

36,082,128 45,536,330 

(2,149,409) 1,021,402 
6,429,989 4,991, 712 

4,280,580 6,013,114 

50,608 990 

40,413,316 51,550,434 

37,053,081 35,860,388 
1,460,253 747,861 

325,171 293,827 

38,838,505 36,902,076 

1,574,811 14,648,358 

1,574,811 14,648,358 

83,199,477 68,551,119 

84,774,288 83,199,477 
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I 
CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS I 
Canbining Statenent Of Revenues,
 

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
 I 
For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990
 

(with carparative totals for the year ended Decanber 31, 1989)
 

I 
Gifts and WOrkers' I 
Ibnations Cutp:!nsation 

Revenues: 
Interest earnings $ 371,932 I
Charges for user services 352,996 
Ibnations 158,308 
Other 144,706 I 

'Ibtal revenues 656,010 371,932 

Expenditures - current operating: I 
Ccmnunity, recreation and cultural programs:
 

Ccmnunity activities 431,979
 
SChool services 115,376
 IParks and recreation 119,930
 

M:!ter installation
 
Miscellaneous 8,450
 I 

'Ibtal Expenditures 667,285 8,450 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues I 
over expenditures (11,275) 363,482 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers fran other funds: IGeneral Fund 

Special Revenue 88,272 
Operating transfers to other funds: 

General Fund I 
'Ibtal other financing sources (uses) 88,272 

IExcess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses 76,997 363,482 

IFund balances, beginning of year 403,445 4,622,966 
Residual equity transfer in (out) (2,458) 

Fund balances, end of year $ 477 ,984 4,986,448 I 
I 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
GIFl'S AND r:xJNATIONS TRUST FUND
 

Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1990
 
(with canparative anounts for December 31, 1989)
 

ASSETS 

Cash and short-tenn invest:n'ents, at cost which 
~roximates market 

'Ibtal assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALAl'l::E 

Liabilities: 
kcIUed liabilities 

'Ibtal liabilities 

Fund Balance: 
Reserved for encumbrances 

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures 
Undesignated 

'Ibtal fWld. balances 

'Ibtal liabilities and fund balances 

129
 

1990 

$ 491.610 

491,610 

$ 13,626 

13,626 

$ 

83,575 
96,011 

298,398 

477 ,984 

491,610 

I 
129 

Ii 
I 
I 
I 

1989 

I 
433,947 I
433,947 

I
 
I
 

30,502 

30,502 I 
70,195
 
15,244
 I 

318,006 

403,445 I 
433,947 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
GIFI'S AND IX>NATICNS TRUST FUND 

I Statarent Of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

I For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990 
(with cooprrative am:>unts for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

I 
I Revenues: 

Registration fees
 
Ikmations


I Other
 

Total revenues 

I Expenditures - current operating: 
camunity, recreation and cultural programs: 

camuni.ty activities

I SClxx>l services 
Parks and recreation 

I
 Total expenditures
 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

I
 Other financing sources (uses):
 
Operating transfers fran other funds:
 

Special revenue 

I Total other financing sow:ces 

I
 Excess of revenues and other sow:ces
 
over expenditures and other uses 

I 
:Furrl balance, beginning of year 

Equity Transfers 

I Furx:l balance, end of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 

(uses) 
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1990 1989 

$ 352,996 
158,308 
144,706 

656,010 

292,538 
209,291 
264,118 

765,947 

431,979 
115,376 
119,930 

667,285 

(11,275) 

572,204 
115,576 
121. 823 

809,603 

(43,656) 

88,272 

88,272 

74,847 

74,847 

$ 

76,997 

403,445 

(2,458) 

477 ,984 

31,191 

375,495 

(3,241) 

403,445 
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I 
CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

mRKER'S <D1PENSATION IRREVOCABLE TRUST FUND 

IBalance Sheet 

December 31, 1990 
(with carprrative anounts for Decanber 31, 1989) I
 

I
 
ASSETS	 1990 1989 

cash and short-tenn investJ1ents, at cost which I 
awroximates market $ 4,955,331 4,590,378 

.Accrued interest receivahle 31,117 32,588 

I
'lbtal assets	 4,986,448 4,622,966 

FUND BALAtCE I 
Fund balance - reserved for anployee benefits 4,986,448 4,622,966 

'lbtal fund balance $ 4,986,448 4,622,966	 I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I131 

I 
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I 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I mRKER'S cn1PENSATIOO IRREVCX:ABLE TRtJSr FUND 

StatEfIent Of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 
(with carparative anounts for the year ended Decanber 31, 1989) 

I
 
I
 

Revenues: 
Interest earnings $ 371,932 396,087

I 
I 

Expenditures - current operating: 
Trustee fee 8,450 9,717 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 363,482 386,370 

I Fund balance, beginning of year 4,622,966 4,236,596 

Fund balance, end of year $ 4,986,448 4,622,966

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

132 
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
PARKS E:NIXD1ENTS TRUST FUND 

Balance Sheet 
December 31, 1990 

(with canparative anounts for December 31, 1989) 

I 
I 

ASSETS 

Cash and short-tenn i.nvestrrents, at cost which 
awroximates market 

'Ibtal assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALAOCE 

Liabilities: 
Accrued liabilities 

'Ibtal liabilities 

Furxl Balance: 
Reserved. for Encumbrances 
Reserved. for E~ts 

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 

'Ibtal fund ba.lance 

'Ibtal liabilities and fund ba.lance 
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1990 

$ 245,673 

245,673 

$ 24,919 

24,919 

$ 

812 
218,542 

1,400 

220,754 

245,673 

I 
1989 

I 
303,054 

303,054 I
 
I
 

22,514 I
22,514 

I 
812 

279,728 I 
280,540 

I303,054 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 

CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
PARKS ENJ:X:N.1EN1'S TRUST FUND 

Statarent Of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

I
 For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990
 
(with canparative anounts for the year ended December 31, 1989)
 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I

CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

RETlREMEm' BENEFITS TRUST FUND 

I
Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1990 
(with canparative anounts for December 31, 1989) I
 

I
 
ASSETS 1990 1989
 

Cash and short-tenn investmants, at cost which I
 
awroxbnates market $ 18,747,065 17,081,859 

kcrued interest receivahle 190,377 331,927 

I
Total assets 18,937,442 17 ,413, 786 

,I
FUND :BAI..AOCE 

Fund balance - reserved. for employee benefits 18,937,442 17 ,413, 786 

I

Total fund balance $ 18,937,442 17,413,786 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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l 
CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

RETIREMENl' BENEFITS TRUsr FUND 

Stata'oont Of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

( For the Year Ended. December 31, 1990 
(with crnparative aroounts for the year ended December 31, 1989) 

r 

I Revenues: 
Interest earnings
 
Realized gains


I Total revenues 

I Exper¥:iitures - current operating:
 
Miscellaneous
 

I Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

I 
Other finaocing sources (uses): 
~ating transfer fran general fund 
Operating transfer to general fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

I Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses 

I Fund balance, beginning of year 

I Fund balance, end. of year 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

136 

I 

$ 

1990 

1,474,095 
50,515 

1.524,610 

1989 

1,221,893 
8,642 

1,230,535 

46,819 

1,477,791 

5,045,865 
(5,000,000) 

45,865 

82,067 

1,148,468 

3,397,918 
(5,000,000) 

(1,602,082) 

1,523,656 (453,614) 

$ 

17 ,413, 786 

18,937,442 

17,867,400 

17 ,413, 786 
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CITY OF PI'lTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
ME'IER INSTALlATION PRCGRAM TRUST FUND 

Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1990 
(with cooparative anounts for December 31, 1989) 

1 

) 

1 
ASSETS 

cash and short-tenn investnents, at cost which 
approximates market 

'Ibtal assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAI.AOCE 

Liabilities: 
Accrued Liabilities 

'Ibtal liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for Encumbrances 
Unreserved: 

Undesignated 

'Ibtal fund balance 

'Ibtal liabilities and fund balance 
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$ 

1990 

193,053 

193,053 

1989 

89,000 

89,000 

I 
I 
I 

$ 

41,835 

41,835 

264 

150,954 

151,218 

193,053 

37,025 

37,025 

73 

51,902 

51,975 

89,000 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 

CITY OF PI'ITSBURGI, PENNSYLVANIA 
METER INSTALLATION pR(X;RAM TRlJSr FUND 

Statarent Of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

I For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 
(with canparative anounts for the year ended December 31, 1989)

I
 
I
 

1990 1989 

Revenues:I Charges for user services $ 1,394,531 633,573 

I Total revenues 1,394,531 633,573 

Experrli.tures - current operating: 
Meter installation 1,295,288 714,888

I Total expenditures 1,295,288 714,888 

I
 Excess (deficiency) of :revenues over expenditures 99,243 (81,315)
 

FuOO balance, beginning of year 51,975 133,290 

I Furrl balance, end. of year $ 151,218 51,975 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

138 
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ICITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 
AGEOCY FUNDS
 

Canbining Balance Sheet I 
December 31, 1990
 

(with canparative totals for Decanber 31, 1989)
 I 
I~loyee Payroll parking 

Benefits Withholcling Meter 
ASSETS I 

Cash and short-tenn investnents, at 
cost which approximates market $ 16,034,632 508,686 IOther Receivables 

Accrued interest and dividends 
receivable 

DIe fran General Fund 2,250,000 I 
DIe fran other governIlEnts	 37,458 

Total assets	 $ 18,322,090 508,686 I 
LIABILITIES I 

Accrued liabilities	 2,616,317 167,439 I 
Deferred canpensation payable 15,705,773 
DIe to other governIlEnts 
DIe to General Fund 341,247 IDeposits held in trust 
Deferred Revenue 

Total liabilities $ 18,322,090 508,686	 I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 
I 
I 
I 

UoclainEd 
Liabilities Deposit Other 1990 

Totals 

1989 

I 357,278 921,136 1,293,733 
76,835 

19,115,465 
76,835 

17,350,529 

I 
I 357,278 921,136 1,370,568 

2,250,000 
37,458 

21,479,758 

1,125 
2,100,000 

19,451,654 

I 
I 
I 
I 

357,278 

357,278 

85,043 

40,798 
795,295 

921,136 

752,963 

61,496 
7,500 

471,774 
76,835 

1,370,568 

3,979,040 
15,705,773 

61,496 
389,545 

1,267,069 
76,835 

21,479,758 

5,249,165 
12,244,933 

1,246,963 
710,593 

19,451,654 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

140 
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I 
ICITY OF PITI'SBlJRGi, PENNSYLVANIA
 

AGEOCY FUNDS
 

canbining Stataoont of Changes in Assets and Liabilities I 
For the Year Ended DecEmber 31, 1990 

IBalaoce Balance 
January 1, DecEmber 31, 

1990 Additions Deductions 1990 I 
E)rplqyee Benefits 

Assets I 
Cash and short-tenn invest­

nents, at cost which Iawroximates market $ 12,885,209 31,423,506 (28,274,083) 16,034,632 
[).Ie fran general fund 2,100,000 2,250,000 (2,100,000) 2,250,000 
!Me fran other goverrments 37,458 37,458 I

'lbtal $ 14,985,209 33,710,964 (30,374,083) 18,322,090 

ILiabilities 

Accrued liabilities 2,740,276 29,952,608 (30,076,567) 2,616,317 
Deferred canpensation payable 12,244,933 3,758,356 (297.516) 15,705,773 I 

'lbtal $ 14,985,209 33,710,964 (30,374,083) 18,322,090 I 
Payroll Withholding 

IAssets 

Cash and short-tenn invest­
nents, at cost which I 
awroximates market $ 1,033,606 9,300, III (9,825,031) 508,686 

Accrued interest receivable 1,125 (1, 125) 

I'lbtal $ 1,034,731 9,300,111 (9,826,156) 508,686 

Liabilities I 
Accrued liabilities 534,608 9,266,364 (9,633,533) 167,439 
!Me to general fund 500,123 33,747 (192,623) 341,247 I

'lbtal $ 1,034,731 9,300,111 19,826,156) 508,686 

I 
(Continued ) 
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
AGENCY FUNDS 

I Canbining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
For the Year Ended. December 31, 1990 

I (Continued) 

I Balance Balance 
January 1, Decanber 31, 

1990 Additions Deductions 1990 

I Parking Mater 

Assets

I 
Cash and short-tenn invest­

ments, at cost whichI approximates market $ 1,517 - (1,517) 

I
 
'lbtal $ 1,517 (1,517)
 

Liabilities 

I 
I 

IAle to general fund 1,517 (1,517)
 
Accrued liabilities ­

'lbtal $ 1,517 (1,517) 

I trelained. Liabilities 

I Assets 

cash arxi short-tenn invest­
ments, at cost whichI approximates market $ 368,709 708 (12,139) 357,278 

'Ibtal $ 368,709 708 (12,139) 357,278

I 
Liabilities 

I 
Accrued liabilities $ 368,709 708 (12,139) 357,278 

I 'Ibtal $ 368,709 708 (12,139) 357,278 

(Continued)
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ICITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
AGENCY FUNDS 

Ccmbining Stat.errent of Changes in Assets and Liabilities J 
For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 

I
(Continued) 

I 
Balance Balance 

January 1, December 31, 
1990 Additions Deductions 1990 I 

Deposit I 
Assets I 

Cash and short-tenn invest-
rents, at cost which Iapproximates market $1,507,926 1,184,406 (1, 771, 196) 921, 136 

'Ibtal $1,507,926 1,184,406 (1,771,196 ) 921,136 I 
Liabilities I 

Accrued liabilities 393,135 254,606 (562,698) 85,043 
Due to general fund 745,323 40,126 (744,651) 40,798 I 
Deposits held in trust 369,468 889,674 (463,847) 795,295 

Total $1,507,926 1,184,406 (1,771,196) 921,136 I
 
I
 
I
 

(Continued) I 
I
 
I
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I CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
AGEOCY FUNI:lS 

J canbining Statarent of Changes in Assets and. Liabilities 
For the Year Ended. December 31, 1990 

I (Continued) 

Balance BalanceI January 1, December 31, 
1990 Additions Deductions 1990 

I Other (includes Municipal Courts) 

I Assets 

I cash and. short-tenn invest-

I 
ments, at cost which 
approximates market 

Other Rec:eivables 

Total 

I 
Liabilities 

I 
Accroed liabilities 
Ibe to other authorities 

I Ibe to general fund 
DeIx>sits held in trust 
D3ferred revenue 

I Total 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

$1,553,562 

$1,553,562 

1,126,032 
76,835 

1,202,867 

(1,385,861) 

(1,385,861) 

1,293,733 
76,835 

1,370,568 

1,212,437 

341,125 

$1,553,562 

778,960 
61,496 
7,500 

278,076 
76,835 

1,202,867 

(1,238,434) 

(147,427) 

(1,385,861) 

752,963 
61,496 

7,500 
471,774 
76,835 

1,370,568 

(Continued) 
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I 
ICITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Canbining Statarent of Changes in Assets and Liabilities I 
For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 

(Continued) I 
Balance Balance 

January 1, Decanber 31, I 
1990 Additions Deductions 1990 

'Ibtal Agency Funds I 
Assets 

ICash and short-tenn invest­
nents, at cost	 which 
approximates market $ 17,350,529 43,034,763 (41,269,827) 19,115,465 

Accrued interest receivable 1,125 (1,125)	 I
Dle fran general fund 2,100,000 2,250,000 (2,100,000) 2,250,000
Dle fran other	 goveTIlIlEnts 37,458 37,458 
Other Receivables	 76,835 76,835 I 

'Ibtal Assets $ 19,451,654 45,399,056 (43,370,952) 21,479,758 

I 
Liabilities 

I
Accrued liabilities	 5,249,165 40,253,246 (41,523,371) 3,979,040 
Defen:ed canpensation payable 12,244,933 3,758,356 (297,516) 15,705,773 
Defen:ed revenue	 76,835 76,835 
Dle to general	 fund 1,246,963 81,373 (938,791) 389,545 I 
Dle to other authorities	 61,496 61,496 
Deposits held in trust 710,593 1, 167,750 (611,274 ) 1,267 ,069 I 

'Ibtal Liabilities $ 19,451,654 45,399,056 (43,370,952) 21,479,758 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I
 
I
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I 
I 

Stat.enent of General lDng-Tenn Debt 

December 31, 1990 
(with carprrative anounts for December 31, 1989) 

AIDUN!' AVAILABLE AND 'ID BE PROVIDED FOR '!HE PAYMENl' OF 

I GENERAL IDNG-TERM DEBT 

I 
1m:Junt available in Debt Service Funds for 
retirarent of bonds

I Anount to be provided for reti.remant of bonds 

I 
1m:Junt to be provided for capital lease 

obligations 
1m:Junt to be provided for deferred loan 
1m:Junt to be provided for accrued pension costs 
Anount to be provided for accrued 'oNOrkers' 

canpensation

I AnDunt to be provided for accrued ccmpensated 
absences 

I 'lbtal available and to be provided 

I
 
I General obligation bonds payable 

Revenues bonds payable 

I
 'lbtal bonds payable
 

I 
Capital lease obligations 
Deferred loan 
Accrued pension costs 
Accrued 'oNOrkers' canpensation
 
Accrued canpensated absences


I 'lbtal long-tenn debt payable 

I
 
I
 
I
 

GENERAL I.DNG-TERM DEB!' PAYABLE
 

147 

$ 3,809,552 
409,917,948 

7,309,277 
2,130,000 

211,749,000 

60,372,000 

$ 695,287,777
 

$ 382,445,000 
31,282,500 

413,727,500 

7,309,277 
2,130,000 

211,749,000 
60,372,000 

$ 695,287,777 

4,773,049 
417,864,451 

8,138,767 
1,704,000 

204,787,000 

58,590,000 

454,000 

696,311,267 

395,125,000 
27,512,500 

422,637,500 

8,138,767 
1,704,000 

204,787,000 
58,590,000 

454,000 

696,311,267 

I 
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I 
CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

General Fund Revenues and Other Financing Sources by Source I 
Last Ten Fiscal Years I 

1990 

Taxes, .including penalty 
and interest $ 235,257,297 

Interest earnings 5,592,501 
Fines and forfeits 5,411,995 
Licenses and fees 13,045,921 
Pittsburgh Zoo :receipts 1,469,624 
Enterprise Funds 

administrative charge 
Interg:Jvermental revenues 3,296,127 
Miscellaneous 1,704,659 
Other financing sources: 

Bond sale and capital lease 
obligation proceeds 2,587,999 

Deferred loan proceeds 426,000 
~ating transfers fran: 

Special revenue funds 385,500 
Debt service funds 
Capital projects funds 
Enterprise funds 22,010,000 
Trost and agercy funds 5,000,000 
Special assessnent funds 

Reti.rarent of advance to 
Stadium Authority 

1989 

220,733,176 
7,648,576 
4,392,875 

11,562,149 
1,479,290 

4,722,865 
1,279,681 

1,691,443 
426,000 

352,760 

7,532,000 
5,000,000 

1988 

225,303,400 
6,832,810 
4,666,658 

10,564,605 
1,155,505 

3,417,510 
1,855,155 

4,315,820 
426,000 

232,111 

7,294,000 

1987 

212,491,390 
8,065,671 
4,969,702 
8,706,790 
1,167,294 

3,417,944 
2,345,831 

977,234 
426,000 

349 
4,092,000 

5,657,303 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Total revenues and other 
financing sources $296,187,623 266,820,815 266,063,574 252,317,508 I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

~ 

201,486,056 
6,299,898 
4,133,933 
5,596,569 
1,225,863 

3,309,692 
1,751,825 

1985 

195,095,648 
8,438,042 
4,144,328 
6,850,083 
1,207,777 

3,413,238 
2,174,894 

1984 

186,278,049 
9,125,601 
3,663,380 
5,815,238 
1,537,250 

500,000 
4,209,127 
2,601,309 

1983 

181,961,947 
8,441,351 
3,444,931 
5,210,961 

921,370 

1,200,000 
2,606,464 
2,625,134 

1982 

172,142,527 
13,068,409 
3,033,743 
4,528,620 

557,487 

1,000,000 
3,041,376 
2,357,944 

1981 

131,858,115 
10,887,647 
2,538,125 
4,081,775 

562,823 

960,000 
4,489,599 
1,974,782 

I 
3,003,747 6,010,000 3,750,000 

I 
I 

5,461,000 

1,777 

4,813,000 5,056,847 

12,780 

1,837,303 

9,157 

1,294,752 

12,313 

281,870 
7,000,000 

930,899 
842,779 

5,852 

I 
I 232,270,360 232,147,010 222,549,581 208,258,618 201,037,171 166,414,266 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

General Fund Expenditures and Operating Transfers by Function I 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

I 
1990 1989 1988 1987 

IGeneral governmant $ 17,549,519 15,646,592 19,591,224 17,659,717 
Public safety 107;383,440 100,663,810 96,652,207 89,262,852
Public \'\Urks 28,813,394 26,692,698 31,703,859 26,831,589
Sanitation 15,070,282 14,186,732 12,613,068 12,699,780 I 
Carmunity, recreation and 

cultural programs 20,444,641 18,848,251 18,207,873 17,770,880 
Enployee benefits and other 45,003,247 42,566,932 47,202,907 38,626,301 IClaims and judgrrents 656,403 646,903 390,907 788,318
Miscellaneous 2,991,486 2,377,023 826,388 748,721 
Debt service and authorities 

subsidy 6,845,638 6,445,994 5,296,219 4,502,807 I 
(p3rating transfers to: 

Special revenue funds 2,555,050 4,754,164 5,151,142 2,160,251 IDebt service funds 37,968,224 33,748,287 31,627,822 32,127,529 
Trust and agency funds 5,045,865 3,397,918 20,000 

Total expenditures I 
and transfers $ 290,327,189 269,975,304 269,263,616 243,198,745 

I
 
I
* - Includes claims and judgrrents and miscellaneous for 1982 and prior years and 

\'\Urkers' canpensation expenditures for 1984 and prior years. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 
I 
I 

1986 1985 1984 1983 1982 1981 

I 19,389,491 14,685,693 14,035,464 14,064,887 10,560,446 10,075,205 
79,525,777 66,204,153 61,379,491 57,451,074 54,044,555 48,061,086 
28,160,219 25,660,320 27,217,516 27,505,350 26,861,399 27,684,452I 12,541,140 11,165,311 10,711,676 11,487,646 10,664,661 11,703,495 

38,402,332 23,395,370 20,684,765 16,593,205 15,132,060 13,563,804 
36,154,195 45,819,670 56,449,024 45,784,152 42,158,523* 34,847,156*I 405,043 478,392 398,201 1,296,041 * * 

362,962 804,630 771,004 667,813 * * 

I 3,806,342 2,675,615 1,690,000 1,772,000 1,904,854 968,988 

I 2,425,857 4,296,259 4,758,108 3,342,975 823,091 415,232 
35,750,283 30,716,815 31,524,795 29,722,157 28,635,361 13,245,005 

17,000

I 
256,923,641 225,902,228 229,637,044 209,687,300 190,784,950 160,564,423 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 
ICITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Assessed. Value, Tax Rates, levy and Collections
 
Last Ten Fiscal Years
 I
 

I
Assessed.
 
valuation
 

Fiscal of land	 Original Adjusted. 
~	 and buildings Land Buildings net levy net levy (1) Budget I 
1981 $1,461,618,118 125.5 mills 24.75 mills $ 73,065,576 $ 67,907,205 $ 69,700,000 I
1982 1,505,671,781 133.0 mills 32.00 mills 82,883,365 80,256,402 76,325,804 
1983 1,536,543,980 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 84,382,708 81,855,375 77,535,000 
1984 1,646,276,852 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 86,965,938 82,872,083 78,250,000 I1985 1,767,939,639 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 92,051,888 91,593,532 84,867,870 
1986 1,803,933,586 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 93,446,719 92,838,844 89,222,736 
1987 1,842,642,781 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 94,523,920 93,453,230 88,813,466 
1988 1,965,627,614 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 96,861,871 96,889,675 91,180,430 I 
1989 1,978,453,320 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 99,032,985 . 98,262,261 94,000,000 
1990 2,071,085,416 184.5 mills 32.00 mills 122,927,018 120,327,168 114,500,000 

I 
(1)	 Represents net levy as of December 31 of the tax year (Le., net of I 

exonerations, discounts and additions granted. in that year). 

(2)	 During 1981, real estate tax exonerations which had not been expected. by I 
the City were ordered by the Allegheny County Board of Property 
Assessrrent, Appeals and Review. The DePart:n'ent of Finance estimates that 
$2.4 million of such exonerations were credited. to unpaid 1981 real Iestate taxes. These credits account for a significant portion of the 
fluctuation in the collection rates shown in this table. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I
 
I
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I
 
I
 
I Year of Original levy Delingyent Taxes 

Percent of Percent of 
original adjusted Percent Collections Percent 
net levy net levy of budget of budgetI Receipts collected collected collected Budget Receipts collected 

I 
I 66,017,908 (2) 90.4 (2) 97.2 (2) 94.7 (2) $ 1,750,000 $ 2,452,959 140.2 

76,729,597 92.6 95.6 100.5 2,400,000 3,354,719 139.8 
77,659,281 92.0 94.9 100.2 3,000,000 3,045,145 101.5 
78,715,474 90.5 95.0 100.6 3,000,000 2,850,690 95.0 
85,609,165 93.0 93.5 100.9 3,100,000 5,128,169 165.4
 
87,353,306 93.5 94.1 97.9 3,500,000 3,415,286 97.6
 
88,253,629 93.4 94.4 99.4 3,500,000 4,534,392 129.6
I 91,089,362 94.0 94.0 99.9 3,500,000 4,248,170 121.4
 
91,446,973 92.3 93.1 97.3 4,500,000 4,501,190 100.1
 

112,330,484 91.4 93.4 98.1 4,600,000 5,988,844 130.2


I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Property Tax Rates - All Overlapping Governmants	 I 
Last Ten Fiscal Years I 

City	 I 
Fiscal School 
~ Land Buildings Averaae* district County 'Ibtal I 
1981 125.5 mills 24.75 mills 49.660 41.000 mills 28.000 mills 118.660 mills
 
1982 133.0 mills 32.00 mills 55.047 36.000 mills 29.000 mills 120.047 mills
 
1983 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 54.900 36.000 mills 29.000 mills 119.900 mills
 I1984 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 51.850 40.000 mills 29.000 mills 120.850 mills
 
1985 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 52.067 40.000 mills 29.000 mills 121.067 mills
 
1986 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 51.802 40.000 mills 31.250 mills 123.052 mills
 
1987 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 51.298 46 .000 mills 31.250 mills 128.548 mills
 I 
1988 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 49.883 46.000 mills 31.250 mills 127.133 mills
 
1989 151.5 mills 27.00 mills 50.086 46 .000 mills 35.000 mills 131.086 mills
 
1990 184.5 mills 32.00 mills 59.070 46.000 mills 36.500 mills 141. 570 mills
 I 

*	 Detennined by multiplying the respective assessed valuation by the I 
millage rate and dividing by the total assessed valuation. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
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CITY OF PITISBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
I 

SChedule of Bonds and NJtes Payable 

December 31, 1990 
I 

serial Bonds 

General Public Inp:rovarent Bonds, 1971, series A 
General Public :IIrprovarent Bonds, 1972, series A 

General Obligation Bonds, 

General Cl>ligation Bonds, 

General Obligation Bonds, 

General Obligation Bonds, 

1973, series A 

1974, series A 

1976, series A 

1977, series A 

Carried forward 

I 
Date of Anount Anount Iissue sold outstanding 

10/01/71 $ 9,300,000 $. 465,000 I 
05/01/72 11,400,000 

04/01/73 14,000,000 

04/01/74 14,350,000 

08/01/76 10,300,000 

06/01/77 13,200,000 

20,465,000 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

1,140,000 

3,190,000 I
 
I
 
I
 

4,340,000 

4,730,000 

I
 
I
 

6,600,000 

I
 
I
 
I
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I 
I 
I 
I Maturity Infonnation 

CouIX:m 
or ceiling 

rate of 
interest 

1991 maximum debt 
service re<&i.remants 

Interest Principal 

I $ 
$ 

465,000 annually through 1991 
570,000 annually through 1992 

% 5.00 
5.25 

$ 23,250 
44,887 

$ 465,000 
570,000 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

$1,000,000 in 1991 
$1,050,000 in 1992 
$1,140,000 in 1993 

$1,000,000 in 1991 
$1,050,000 in 1992 
$1,110,000 in 1993 
$1,180,000 in 1994 

$ 675,000 in 1991 
$ 715,000 in 1992 
$ 760,000 in 1993 
$ 810,000 in 1994 
$ 860,000 in 1995 
$ 910,000 in 1996 

5.20 
5.20 
5.20 

5.40 
5.40 
5.50 
5.00 

6.70 
6.80 
6.90 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 

139,880 

203,750 

326,885 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

675,000 

I 
I 
I 

$ 785,000 in 1991 
$ 835,000 in 1992 
$ 885,000 in 1993 
$ 935,000 in 1994 
$ 995,000 in 1995 
$1,050,000 in 1996 
$1,115,000 in 1997 

5.50 
5.60 
5.70 
5.80 
5.88 
5.88 
5.88 

358,672 

1,097,324 

785,000 

4,495,000 

I 
I 

(Continued) 
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CITY' OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Bonds and Notes Payable
 

December 31, 1990
 

serial Bonds 

Brought fo:rward 

General Cbligation Bonds, 1978, series A 

General Cbligation Bonds, 1985 series 

General Cbligation Bonds, 1986, series A 

Carried fo:rward 

Date of AnDunt 
issue sold 

07/01/78 $ 14,000,000 

08/01/85 224,185,000 

07/01/86 63,510,000 

157	 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

AnDunt I
outstanding 

$ 20,465,000 I
 
7,770,000 

I
 
I
 
I
44,195,000 

I
 
I


63,490,000 

I
 
I
 

135.920.000 I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I
 
I
 
I
 
I Maturity InfolJllation 

I 
$ 785,000 in 1991

I $ 830,000 in 1992 

I 
I 

$ 880,000 in 1993 
$ 930,000 in 1994 
$ 990,000 in 1995 
$1,050,000 in 1996 
$1,120,000 in 1997 
$1,185,000 in 1998 

I 
$6,095,000 in 1991 
$6,530,000 in 1992 
$7,020,000 in 1993 

I 
$7,565,000 in 1994 
$8,160,000 in 1995 
$8,825,000 in 1996 

$ 5,000 armually through 2007 
$ 7,510,000 in 2008

I $ 7,975,000 in 2009 

I 
$ 8,470,000 in 2010 
$ 8,995,000 in 2011 
$ 9,550,000 in 2012 
$10,140,000 in 2013 
$10,765,000 in 2014 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Coupon 
or ceiling 
rate of 

interest 

% 6.30 
6.40 
6.50 
6.50 
6.50 
6.50 
6.50 
6.50 

7.20 
7.50 
7.75 
7.90 
8.10 
8.40 

6.00 
6.00 
6.00 
6.00 
6.00 
6.00 
6.00 
6.00 

1991 maximum debt 
service regui.renents 

Interest 

$ 1,097,324 

502,650 

Principal 

$ 4,495,000 

785,000 

3,253,115 6,095,000 

3,809,250 5,000 

8,662,339 11,380,000 

(Continued) 
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serial Bonds 

Brought forward
 

General Cl:Jligation Bonds,
 

General Cl:Jligation Bonds, 

CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of Bonds and Notes Payable
 
December 31, 1990
 

1986, series B 

1989 series 

'lbtal General Cl:Jligation Bonds payable 

Date of Anount 
issue sold 

10/15/86 $190,000,000 

09/01/89 60,000,000 

I
 
159
 

I
 
I
 

Anount 
outstanding I
 

$ 135,920,000 I
 
187,545,000 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

58,980,000 I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

382,445,000 I
 
159
 

I 



I 
160 

I 
I 
I Maturity Infonnation 

Coupon 
or ceiling 
rate of 

interest 

1991 maximum debt 
service reguirarEnts 

Interest Principal 

I $ 8,662,339 $ 11,380,000 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

$ 1,560,000 in 1991 
$ 1,645,000 in 1992 
$ 1,745,000 in 1993 
$ 1,855,000 in 1994 
$ 1,970,000 in 1995 
$ 2,105,000 in 1996 
$11,715,000 in 1997 
$12,495,000 in 1998 
$13,350,000 in 1999 
$14,270,000 in 2000 
$15,250,000 in 2001 
$16,300,000 in 2002 
$17,405,000 in 2003 
$18,600,000 in 2004 
$19,880,000 in 2005 
$21,240,000 in 2006 
$16,160,000 in 2007 

% 5.40 
5.70 
5.90 
6.10 
6.30 
6.50 
6.75 
6.88 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 

12,934,574 1,560,000 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

$ 1,080,000 in 1991 
$ 1,145,000 in 1992 
$ 1,210,000 in 1993 
$ 1,285,000 in 1994 
$ 1,365,000 in 1995 
$ 1,450,000 in 1996 
$ 1,545,000 in 1997 
$ 1,645,000 in 1998 
$ 1,755,000 in 1999 
$ 1,870,000 in 2000 
$ 1,990,000 in 2001 
$ 2,125,000 in 2002 
$ 2,270,000 in 2003 
$ 2,425,000 in 2004 
$ 2,590,000 in 2005 
$ 2,770,000 in 2006 
$ 2,965,000 in 2007 
$ 3,175,000 in 2008 
$ 3,395,000 in 2009 
$ 3,635,000 in 2010 
$ 3,885,000 in 2011 
$ 4,165,000 in 2012 
$ 4,460,000 in 2013 
$ 4,780,000 in 2014 

5.90 
6.00 
6.10 
6.20 
6.30 
6.40 
6.50 
6.55 
6.60 
6.60 
6.75 
6.80 
6.80 
6.90 
6.90 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.13 
7.13 
7.13 
7.13 

160 

4,039,050 

25,635,963 

1,080,000 

14,020,000 
(Continued) 



I 
161 

CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Schedule of Bonds and. Notes Payable 

I
 
I
 

December 31, 1990 

Date of J.\nount J.\nount 
serial Bonds issue sold outstanding 

I 
Egyiprent leasing Authority Revenue Bonds I 
City of Pittsburgh Equiprent leasing Authority 
Equipment Revenue Bonds, 1986, Series A 08/15/86 $ 5,700,000 2,285,000 

I 
City of Pittsburgh Equipment leasing Authority 
Equipment Revenue Bonds, 1986, Series B 08/26/86 5,000,000 1,980,000 I 
City of Pittsburgh Equipment leasing Authority 
Equiprent Revenue Bonds, 1988, Series A 08/01/88 7,965,000 4,810,000 I 

I 
City of Pittsburgh Equipment IEasing Authority 

Equipment Revenue Bonds, Series 1990 02/01/90 14,000,000 14,000,000 I
 
I
 

'Ibtal Equipment leasing Authority IRevenue Bonds Payable 23,075,000 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I161 

I 



I 
I 

162 

I 
I 
I 

Maturity Infonnation 

Coupon 
or ceiling 
rate of 
interest 

1991 maximum debt 
service regyirenents 

Interest Principal 

I 
I 

$1,105,000 in 1991 
$1,180,000 in 1992 

% 6.25 
6.50 

128,731 1,105,000 

I $ 945,000 in 1991 
$1,035,000 in 1992 

52% of prime 
9.5% ceiling 

188,100 945,000 

I 
I 

$1,565,000 in 1991 
$1,450,000 in 1992 
$1,420,000 in 1993 
$ 375,000 in 1994 

6.00 
6.20 
6.40 
6.60 

275,880 1,565,000 

I 
I 
I 

$1,995,000 in 1991 
$2,120,000 in 1992 
$2,245,000 in 1993 
$2,390,000 in 1994 
$2,540,000 in 1995 
$2,710,000 in 1996 

6.00 
6.10 
6.20 
6.30 
6.40 
6.50 

847,940 

1,440,651 

1,995,000 

5,610,000 

I 
I 
I 
I (Continued) 

I 
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I 



CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of Bonds and Notes Payable 

December 31, 1990 

Date of 
Serial Bonds issue 

Public Auditorium Authority Revenue Bonds (City Share) 

Auditorium Bonds (Perfonning Arts Center Project) 
1984, Series 0 06/15/84 $ 3,750,000 

Auditorium Bonds (Renovation of Civic Arena), 
1985, Series E 12/15/85 6,010,000 

Total Auditorium Authority Revenue Bonds 

163
 

I
 
163
 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

AnDunt 
outstanding I
 

I
 
$ 2,790,000 I
 

I
 
I
 
I
 

5,417,500 I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

8,207,500 I
 
I
 
I
 



I 
I 

164 

I 
I 
I 
I Maturity Infonnation 

Coupon 
or ceiling 

rate of 
interest 

1991 maxinun debt 
service regui.ralents 

Interest Principal 

I 
I 
I 
I 

$210,000 in 1991 
$227,500 in 1992 
$250,000 in 1993 
$272,500 in 1994 
$295,000 in 1995 
$325,000 in 1996 
$362,500 in 1997 
$402,500 in 1998 
$445,000 in 1999 

% 9.50 
9.75 

10.00 
10.25 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 

$ 296,363 $ 210,000 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

$172,500 in 1991 
$185,000 in 1992 
$200,000 in 1993 
$215,000 in 1994 
$232,500 in 1995 
$250,000 in 1996 
$272,500 in 1997 
$295,000 in 1998 
$322,500 in 1999 
$352,500 in 2000 
$385,000 in 2001 
$420,000 in 2002 
$460,000 in 2003 
$502,500 in 2004 
$550,000 in 2005 
$602,500 in 2006 

6.75 
7.00 
7.25 
7.50 
7.75 
8.00 
8.20 
8.40 
8.60 
8.80 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 

461,918 172,500 

I 758,281 382,500 

I 
I 

164 
(Continued) 



CITY OF PI'lTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Bonds and Notes Payable
 

December 31, 1990
 

Date of Am:>unt 
Serial Bonds issue sold 

Stadium Authority Revenue Bonds and Notes 

Guaranteed Stadium Refunding Bonds, Series 1985 12/01/85 $ 32,405,000 

Guaranteed Funding Bonds, Series 1986 04/01/86 21,000,000 

'lbtal Stadium Authority Revenue Bonds 

165
 

I
 
165
 

I
 
I
 
I
 

AIoount 
outstanding I
 

I
 
$ 30,245,000 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

19,695,000 I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

49,940,000 

I
 
I
 
I
 



I 
166 

I 
I 
I 
I Maturity Infonnation 

Coupon 
or ceiling 
rate of 
interest 

1991 maximum debt 
seI:Vice recmi.renents 

Interest Principal 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

$ 720,000 in 1990 
$ 765,000 in 1991 
$ 820,000 in 1992 
$ 880,000 in 1993 
$ 945,000 in 1994 
$1,015,000 in 1995 
$1,100,000 in 1996 
$1,190,000 in 1997 
$1,285,000 in 1998 
$1,400,000 in 1999 
$1,520,000 in 2000 
$1,655,000 in 2001 
$1,810,000 in 2002 
$1,970,000 in 2003 
$1,415,000 in 2004 
$1,540,000 in 2005 
$1,690,000 in 2006 
$1,855,000 in 2007 
$2,025,000 in 2008 
$2,220,000 in 2009 
$2,425,000 in 2010 

% 6.70 
6.90 
7.13 
7.30 
7.50 
7.70 
7.90 
8.13 
8.30 
8.50 
8.70 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.00 

$ 2,564,532 $ 720,000 

I 
I 
I 
I 

$ 710,000 in 1990 
$ 750,000 in 1991 
$3,545,000 in 1995 
$1,045,000 in 1996 
$1,120,000 in 1997 
$1,200,000 in 1998 
$1,290,000 in 1999 
$1,385,000 in 2000 
$1,485,000 in 2001 
$7,165,000 in 2005 

6.00 
6.25 
7.00 
7.10 
7.20 
7.30 
7.40 
7.45 
7.50 
7.63 

1,436,409 710,000 

I 4,000,941 1,430,000 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Bonds and Notes Payable
 

December 31, 1990
 

Date of Anount 
serial Bonds issue sold 

water and Ser.-Jer Authority Bonds 

Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds, 

series of 1985
 

Carried for.ward 

03/29/85 $ 100,000,000
 

167
 

I
 
167
 

I
 
I
 
I
 

AnDunt 
outstanding I
 

I
 
I
$ 97,000,000 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
$ 97,000,000 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 



168 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I Maturity Infonnation 

I
 
I
 
I
 

900,000 in 1991
 
$ 1,100,000 in 1992
 
$ 1,200,000 in 1993
 

I
 
$ 1,300,000 in 1994
 
$ 1,400,000 in 1995
 
$ 1,600,000 in 1996
 
$ 1,800,000 in 1997
 

I
 
$ 2,000,000 in 1998
 
$ 2,200,000 in 1999
 
$ 2,400,000 in 2000
 

I
 
$ 2,700,000 in 2001
 
$ 3,000,000 in 2002
 
$ 3,300,000 in 2003
 
$ 3,700,000 in 2004
 
$ 4,100,000 in 2005
 
$ 4,500,000 in 2006


I $ 5,000,000 in 2007
 

I
 
$ 5,600,000 in 2008
 
$ 6,200,000 in 2009
 
$ 6,900,000 in 2010
 

I
 
$ 7,700,000 in 2011
 
$ 8,500,000 in 2012
 
$ 9,400,000 in 2013
 
$10,500,000 in 2014
 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

168
 

Coupon 
or ceiling 
rate of 
interest 

5.125% 
through the 
next tender 
date, 9/1/91 

1991 maximum debt 
service rami..remants 

Interest Pri.n:ipal 

$ 3,314,167 $ 900,000 

$ 3,314,167 900,000 

(Continued) 



CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Bonds and Notes Payable
 

December 31, 1990
 

Serial Bonds 

water and sewer Authority Bonds, continued.
 

Brought foIWal:d
 

Mjustable Rate Tender Bonds,
 
Series of 1986
 

carried foIWal:d 

Date of Am:>unt 
issue sold 

06/13/86 $ 134,700,000 

I
 
169
 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
Am:>unt
 

outstanding
 

I
 
$ 97,000,000 I
 
$134,700,000 I
 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

231, 700,000 

169
 

I 





I 

CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Bonds and Notes Payable
 

December 31, 1990
 

Date of ArrDunt 
Serial Bonds issue sold 

water and Sewer Authority Bonds, continued 

Brought forward 

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1986 07/14/86 $ 264,090,000 

Total Water and Sewer Authority Bonds outstanding 

less escroN funds 
less discount on bonds 

Total Water and Sewer Authority Bonds payable 

Total Bonds and Notes Payable 

171
 

171
 

I
 
I
 
I
 

ArrDunt 
outstanding 

I
 
$ 231,700,000 I
 

264,090,000 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

495,790,000 I
 
(231,602,000)
 

(12,978,000)
 I
 
251,210,000 I
 

$ 714,877,500 

I
 
I
 



I 
172 

I 
I 
I 
I 

Maturity Infonnation 

Coupon 
or ceiling 

rate of 
interest 

1991 maximum debt 
service regyi.I:ellents 

Interest Principal 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

$ 2,700,000 in 1991 
$ 4,045,000 in 1992 
$ 4,300,000 in 1993 
$ 4,575,000 in 1994 
$ 4,880,000 in 1995 
$ 5,215,000 in 1996 
$ 5,585,000 in 1997 
$ 5,990,000 in 1998 
$ 6,425,000 in 1999 
$ 6,900,000 in 2000 
$ 7,420,000 in 2001 
$ 7,975,000 in 2002 
$ 8,585,000 in 2003 
$ 9,240,000 in 2004 
$ 9,945,000 in 2005 
$10,665,000 in 2006 
$11,435,000 in 2007 
$12,265,000 in 2008 
$13,155,000 in 2009 
$14,110,000 in 2010 
$15,130,000 in 2011 
$16,230,000 in 2012 
$17,405,000 in 2013 
$18,670,000 in 2014 
$20,020,000 in 2015 
$21,225,000 in 2016 

% 5.90 
6.20 
6.40 
6.70 
6.90 
7.10 
7.20 
7.30 
7.40 
7.50 
7.50 
7.62 
7.62 
7.62 
7.25 
7.25 
7.25 
7.25 
7.25 
7.25 
7.25 
7.25 
7.25 
7.25 
6.00 
6.00 

$ 8,961,567 

18,607,816 

$ 2,700,000 

2,700,000 

I 
I 
I 27,569,383 

$ 59,405,219 

5,400,000 

$ 26,842,500 

I 172 

I 
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I 

CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
I 

Net Debt and REmaining Debt Incurring Margin 
in .Accordance with .Act lib. 52, Approved April 28, 1978 I 

"lDcal G:JveIllIIEnt Unit Debt .Act" 

December 31, 1990 

Gross debt (1): 
Principal anount of l::x>nds issued and outstanding: 

General Ci>ligation 
Equiprent Leasing Authority 
Auditorium Authority: 

Serviced by the City
 
Serviced by others
 

Stadium Authority
 

'lbtal gross debt 

Itans deductible fran gross debt: 
cash and legal invest::nents held in sinking fund for 

paynent of l::x>nds and notes 
cash in l::x>nd fund applicable to debt 
Delinquent real estate taxes for the years 1976 to 

to 1987 inclusive 
AnDunt due fran 1990 appropriations 
Self-liquidating and subsidized debt: 

Auditorium Authority 
water and SeY.ler Authority 

'lbtal deductions 

Net	 Debt 

libn-electoral 
Debt 

$ 382,445,000 

382,445,000
 

I
 
I
 

Lease Rental 
Debt (2) I 

$ I
23,075,000 

8,207,500 I6,365,000
 
48,510,000
 

86,157,500 I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I

(1)	 Direct obligations of the Pittsburgh Water and SeY.ler Authority in the 
am::>unt of $495,790,000 are not considered debt of the city for purposes 
of this calculation. I 

(2)	 Capitalized leases with principal balances of $7,309,277 are not considered 
debt of the City for purposes of this calculation. I 

(Continued) 
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I Net Debt and Renaining Debt Incurring Margin 
in .Accordance with .Act No. 52, Approved April 28, 1978 

(continued) 

I 
AI...U:X:ATION OF '!UrAL NET DEBT

I Net JDnelectoral debt 
Net lease rental debt 

I 
Net JDnelectoral and lease rental debt 

I 
DEBT INCURRIK; MARGIN 

I 1988 

I Total net revenue of the City $ 306,158,013 

I 
Borrowing base(aritlmetic average of total net 

revenue for said three fiscal years) 

I
 
I
 

Debt limitationsI less existing net debt 

I Ranaining debt incurring margin 

I 
I 
I 
I 

174 

1989 

$ 306,427,000 

Net 
JDnelectoral 

debt 
(borrowing 

base x 250%) 
$ 788,219,308 

(340,128,667) 

$ 448,090,641 

$ 340,128,667 
79,770,647 

$ 419,899,314 

1990 

$ 333,278,157 

$ 315,287,723 

Net 
JDnelectoral 

and lease 
rental debt 

(borrowing 
base x 350%) 

$ 1,103,507,031 
(419,899,314) 

$ 683,607,717 

I 



I
 
175
 

I

CITY OF PITrSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed value
 
and. Net Bonded Debt Per Capita
 I
 

Last Ten Fiscal Years I
 
I
 

Gross Less 
Fiscal Assessed tonded Debt Service 

Population Value debt Funds~ I
 
1981 423,938 1,461,618,118 222,755,200 8,382,780 
1982 423,938 1,505,671,781 236,845,200 6,075,310 I
1983 423,938 1,536,534,980 240,273,000 4,422,912
 
1984 423,938 1,646,276,852 232,193,000 6,995,167
 
1985 423,938 1,767,939,639 284,390,000 7,125,631
 
1986 423,938 1,803,933,583 367,185,000 8,017,725
 I
 
1987 423,938 1,842,642,781 354,740,000 4,133,480
 
1988 423,938 1,965,627,614 345,000,000 2,975,273
 
1989 423,938 1,978,453,320 395,125,000 1,338,580
 I

1990 369,879 2,071,085,416 382,445,000 1,090,005 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I
 
I
 
I
 

I 
I Net 

general 
bonded. 
debt 

214,372,420

I 230,769,890 

I 
235,850,088 
225,197,833 
277,264,369 

I 
359,167,275 
350,606,520 
342,024,727 
393,786,420 
381,354,995 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 

Ratio of net 
general bonded. 

debt to 
assessed value 

14.66 
15.32 
15.34 
13.67 
15.68 
19.91 
19.02 
17.40 
19.90 
18.41 

Net general 
bonded. 

debt per 
capita 

506
 
544
 
556
 
531
 
654
 
847
 
827
 
807
 
929
 

1031
 

176
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I
 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

CaTpItation of Direct and Overlapping Debt I
 

NanE of goverrment 

City of Pittsburgh: 
General obligation 
Equiptent leasing 

Authority 
Stadium Authority 

Auditorium Authority 
City of Pittsburgh Scl'x:lOl 

District 
County of Allegheny 

Total direct and over­
lawing debt 

December 31, 1990 

Percentage 
Net General Applicable to 
Bonded Debt City of Pittsburgh 

$ 382,445,000 100
 

23,075,000 100
 
49,940,000 100
 
28,880,000 50
 

116,693,870 100
 
601,351,622 28
 

177
 

I
 
City of
 

Pittsburgh
 I
.Share of Debt 

I
$ 382,445,000 

23,075,000 
49,940,000 I

14,440,000 

116,693,870 I
168,378,454 

$ 754,972,324 I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 



I 
178 

I 
CITY OF PITl'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I	 City &tploymant 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

I 
I Fiscal Regular .Actual 

~ oodgeted positions Januaz:y payroll 

I	 1981 5,783 5,339 

1982 5,491 5,212I 1983 5,497	 5,185 

I	 1984 5,405 5,194 

1985 5,412	 5,063 

I	 1986 5,442 5,074 

I 
I 

1987 5,456 4,886 

1988 5,221 4,849 

1989 5,257 4,896 

1990 5,225	 4,933 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I	 178 

I 
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I 
CITY OF PITI'SBURGi, PENNSYLVANIA 

Principal Real Estate Taxpayers I 
December 31, 1990 

I 
1990 Percentage 

Principal Type Assessed of total I 
T~r	 of Business Valuation Tax Levied 

I600 Grant Street Associates	 Real Estate $ 73,750,000 3.45% 
(lEX'lbwer) 

Market View Incorporated Real Estate 55,750,000 2.61 I 
(SUbsidicu:y of PPG Industries) 

500 Grant Street Associates	 Real Estate 53,750,000 2.52 I(<ile Mellon Bank center) 

Pittsburgh National Bank	 Cart'lErcial 45,902,800 2.15 
Banking I 

Oxford Developrent	 Real Estate 33,642,600 1.58 

I 
Equitable Life Assurance Real Estate 28,630,340 1.34 
Soc:iety of the United States 

Grant Liberty Developrent Real Estate 23,750,000 1.11 I 
Group Coop:my 

Perm Liberty Holding Coop:my	 Real Estate 21,000,000 0.98 I 
Mellon Bank, N.A.	 Cart'lErcial 20,532,000 0.96 

Banking I 
Larrlnarks Real Estate Coop:my Real Estate 18,913,000 0.89 

$ 375,620,740 17.59 I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

179 
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I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Type of Insurance/ 
Nane of Cgnpany 

I 
Boiler Insurance 
1J.DIt:lemansMutual 
Insurance Calpany 

I Errors & Onissions 

I 
Insurance 
western l'K>rld 
Insuran:e Calpany 

I Pl:operty Insuran:e 
Fi.remans Fund 
Insuran:e Calpany 

I Point Park Police 
U.S. Risk Insurance 

I Aqercy, 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

180 

CITY OF PITl'SBURGI, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Insurance in Force
 

For the Year Ended Decanber 31, 1990
 

Coverage Policy Period 

General 1/01/90 - 12/31/90 
services 
Blanket 

Public 7/01/90 - 6/30/91 
Safety 
E.M.S. 

General 1/01/90 - 12/31/90 
services 
Blanket 

Public 9/17/90 - 9/16/91 
Safety 

Ioc. Police 

Annual 
Liability Limits Premium 

$1,000,000 per accident $11,898 
$ 50,000 business 
interroption per occurrence 

$500,000 per endorsement 56,277 
No deductible 

All risk and extended 94,374 
coverage 

$ 500,000 each occurrence 2,996 
$1,000,000 aggregate 
$ 250 deductible 

180
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CITY OF PI'ITSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Salaries and Surety Bonds of Principal Officials 

I
 
I
 

For the Year Ended Lecember 31, 1990 

Official Annual Salary ArrDunt of Surety Bond 

IMayor $ 67,324 $ 10,000 
Director of Finance 66,000 200,000 
Controller 42,521 20,000 
Maubers of City Council (9 ) 38,387 each 10,000 each I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

181 I
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGI, PENNSYLVANIA 

Territorial GrcMth of Pittsburgh 

I December 31, 1990 

I 
I 

Ordi.nance Annexed 'Ibtal to date 
a{:Proval Entry Square Square 

Territoxy armexed date date .Acres miles .Acres miles 

Borough of PittsWrgh 3/05/1804I City of Pittsburgh 3/18/1816 320 0.5000 320 0.500 
R>rthern. Liberties 

Borough 3/01/1837 110 0.1719 430 0.672 
City DistrictsI H:>s. 8 and 17 7/07/1845 108 0.1687 538 0.841 
Part of Pitt Township 11/04/1846 
Part of Pitt Township 12/04/1846 592 0.9250 1,130 1. 766I	 Part of Pitt Township 12/12/1846 
Aema.in:Ier of Pitt 

Township

I Peebles Township 
Liberty Township 
Collins Township 6/30/1868 13,658 21.3406 14,788 23.107 

I oakland Township 

I 
I.awl:eoceville Borough
 
Union Borough
 
'1'eIlperanceville Borough
 
Mt. washington Borough
 
west PittsWrgh Borough
 
H:>oongahela Borough
 
South Pittsburgh
 

I 
I Borough 4/02/1872 2,684 4.1938 17,472 27.301 

Allentown Borough 
Birmingham Borough 

I 
East Bi.nni.ngham Borough 
St. Clair Borough 
Onnsby Borough 
Brushton Borough 12/01/1894 290 0.4531 17,762 27.754 
Beltzhoover Borough	 3/01/1898 190 0.2969 17,952 28.051 

I 
(Continued) 

I
 
I
 
I
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CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 
I 

Territorial Growth of Pittsburgh 
(Continued I 

I 
Ordinance Annexed 'Ibtal to date
 

approval Entry Square Square
 
Territory armexed date date k::res miles k::res miles
 I 

Elliott Borough 1/02/1905 203.000 0.3172 18,155.00 28.368 
Esplen Borough 1/08/1906 180.000 0.2812 18,335.00 28.649 
Sterrett Township 1/08/1906 310.000 0.4844 18,645.00 29.133 I 
M:>ntooth Borough 1/07/1907 73.000 0.1141 18,718.00 29.247 
Sheraden Borough 11/21/1907 621.000 0.9703 19,339.00 30.217 
City of Allegheny 12/06/1907 5,165.000 8.0703 24,504.00 38.287 I
west Liberty Borough 1/06/1908 1,751.000 2.7359 26,255.00 41.023 
O'Hara Township 10/30/1908 207.000 0.3234 26,462.00 41.346 
Beechvie'W Borough 1/04/1909 210.000 0.3281 26,672.00 41.674 
Part of Union Township 1/04/1909 58.210 0.0910 26,730.21 41. 765 I 
Part of Baldwin 
Township 1/01/1912 151. 712 0.2371 26,881.92 42.002 

Part of Ross Township 12/19/1916 10.167 0.0159 26,892.09 42.018 I 
Spring Garden Borough 1/05/1920 123.363 0.1928 27,015.45 42.211 
Part of Penn Township 6/28/1920 0.949 0.0015 27,016.40 42.213 
Part of Chartiers 

Township 10/04/1920 11.380 0.0178 27,027.78 42.231 I 
Remainder of Chartiers 

Township 1/01/1921 2,190.220 3.4222 29,218.00 45.653 
Part of Reserve Township 10/31/1922 160.000 0.2500 29,378.00 45.903 I 
St. Clair Borough 1/01/1923 618.830 0.9669 29,996.83 46.870 
Parts of I.<:Jwer St. Clair 
Township 2/07/1924 52.820 0.0825 30,049.65 46.952 I

Parts of Swissvale Borough 11/27/1925 20.773 0.0325 30,070.42 46.985 
carrick Borough 1/03/1927 1,020.110 1.5939 31,090.53 48.579 
Knoxville Borough 1/03/1927 193.520 0.3024 31,284.05 48.881 
westwood Borough 1/03/1927 190.000 0.2969 31,474.05 49.178 I 
Union Township 4/16/1927 1/02/1928 600.000 0.9375 32,074.05 50.116 
Part of Ross Township 6/29/1928 6/29/1928 39.909 0.0624 32,113.96 50.178 
Hays Borough 1/07/1929 476.310 0.7442 32,590.27 50.922 I 
Part of Mifflin 

Township 2/15/1929 2/15/1929 589.910 0.9217 33,180.18 51.844 
Part of Ross Township 7/24/1928 4/22/1929 17.112 0.0267 33,197.29 51.871 I 

I 
I 
I 
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I CITY OF PITI'SBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

I Territorial Growth of Pittsburgh 
(Continued) 

I Orcii.naD::e Annexed Total to date 

I '!'erritoxy armexed 
awroval 

date 
Entry 
date kres 

Square 
miles kres 

Square 
miles 

Part of Ross Township 4/25/1929 4/25/1929 85.9560 0.13430 33,283.25 52.005 

I Part of Ross Township 
Part of Ross Township 
Part of Mifflin 

6/03/1929 
7/01/1929 

6/03/1929 
7/01/1929 

6.6060 
1.0950 

0.01030 
0.00170 

33,289.86 
33,290.95 

52.015 
52.017 

I 
Township 

Part of Penn Township 
Part of Penn Township 
Overbrook Borough 

7/22/1929 
9/20/1929 

10/05/1928 

7/22/1929 
1/02/1930 
1/22/1930 
1/06/1930 

2.0490 
21.8600 
11.5500 

790.1930 

0.00320 
0.03420 
0.01800 
1.23460 

33,293.00 
33,314.86 
33,326.41 
34,116.60 

52.020 
52.054 
52.072 
53.307 

I Part of Baldwin Township 
Part of Mifflin Township 2/27/1931 

1/05/1931 
2/27/1931 

49.0950 
486.7430 

0.07670 
0.76050 

34,165.70 
34,652.44 

53.384 
54.144 

Part of Reserve Township 3/20/1931 3/20/1931 96.8000 0.15130 34,749.24 54.295 

I 
Part of Baldwin Township 
Part of Ross Township 
Part of Baldwin 

9/30/1947 12/01/1947 
1/30/1948 4/28/1948 

39.7820 
10.8800 

0.06220 
0.01550 

34,789.02 
34,799.90 

54.357 
54.373 

I 
Township 12/11/1950 

Part of Baldwin Township 6/30/1950 
Part of Robinson 

2/05/1951 
3/13/1951 

691.0000 
23.0000 

1.07970 
0.03590 

35,490.90 
35,513.90 

55.454 
55.490 

Township 4/22/1955 8/19/1955 19.9168 0.03112 35,533.82 55.521 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I KPMG Peat Marwick 
I One Mellon Bank Center Telephone 412 391 9710 Telecopier 412391 8963 

Pittsburgh, PA 15219 Telex 7106642199 PMM & CO PGH 

I Independent Auditors' Report on Schedule 
of Federal Financial Assistance 

I The Honorable Members of Council of 
the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania: 

I 
I We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, for the year ended December 31, 1990, and have 
issued our report thereon dated June 12, 1991, which report was quali fied 
because of the omission of a general fixed asset account group from the City's 
financial statements. These general purpose financial statements are the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an

I opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. We 

I 
did not audit the financial statements of the Pittsburgh Water and Sewer 
Authority or the Stadium Authority of the City of Pittsburgh, which statements 
comprise the entire enterprise fund type. We did not audit the financial 
statements of the following City of Pittsburgh Pension Trust Funds: 
Comprehensive Board, Municipal Plan, Police Plan and Fire Plan, which 
statements reflect total assets and revenues comprising 64 percent and 89

I percent, respectively, of the related Fiduciary Fund totals. Those financial 

I 
statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been 
furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the 
amounts included for the proprietary and fiduciary fund types, is based solely 
upon the reports of the other auditors. 

I We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audi t to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

I are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 

I 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 

I 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

I 
Our audi t was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general 
purpose financial statements of the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, taken as 
a whole. The accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance is 

I 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the general purpose financial statements. The information in that schedule 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements 
taken as a whole.

I
 
I June 12, 1991 

I SA-2 

Member Frrm of
 
Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance
 

Year Ended December 31, 1990
 

Pass-
Federal grantor/pass-through

grantor/program title 
Federa1 
CFDA # 

through
grantor's # 

Cash at 
January 1. 1990 

Cash 
receipts 

Cash 
disbursements 

Cash at 
December 31. 1990 

U.S. Department of HUD Direct Programs: 
Community Development 810ck Grant -

Entitlement 14.218 N/A $ 347,045 16,661,689 16,881,558­ 127.176 
1990 award - $15,711.000 
1989 award - 116.572,000
1988 award - 15,942.000 
1987 award - 116.848.000 
1986 award - 16.796.000 

Emergency Shelter Grant Program 
S-90-HC-42-o002 - $52,000 

14.231 - (7.528) 568.614 556,327 4.759 

B-89-HC-42-0002 - 1262,000
8-88-HC-42-0002 - 46.000 
B-87-HC-42-0103 - 1286.000 
S-87-HC-42-0002 - 57,000 

Emergency Jobs Bill 
B-83-HJ-42-0003 - $7,100,000 

Urban Development Action Grant 
B-83-AA-42-0239 - $21,000.000 

14.218 

14.221 

N/A 

N/A 

-
-

5,193 

474,491 

5,193 

474,491 

B-81-AA-42-o261 - $17,000,000 
Fair Housing Assistance Program -

state and local 14.401 N/A 11 .668 24.435 12.629 23.474 
1990 award - $54.000 
1989 award - 110.150 
1988 award - 12,250 

Total U.S. Department of HUD 351,185 17.734,422 17,930,198 155,409 

U.S. Department of Labor:
Passed through State Department of Labor:

Job Training Partnership Act 
Single Point of Contact 

12-1-87 to 9-30-89 award - $1.871.994 

17 .250 
10.551 

42-84 
12-35-4233 

(559.748)
(144.2&1 ) 

5.356.130 
1.660.377 

5.468,702­
1.390.127­

(672,320) 
125.969 

Total U.S. Department of Labor (704,029) 7,016,507 6.858.829 (546,351) 

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Passed through the Pennsylvania Department 

of Transportation:
Highway planning and construction 20.205 - (2.998.796) 4.344.867 1.953.394­ (607.323) 

Total U.S. Department of Transportation (2.998.796) 4,344,867 1,953.394 (607.323) 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA
 

Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance, Continued
 

- - - - - - - - - - -­ - - - - ­
U.S.	 Department of Agriculture: 

Passed through the State Department
of Education: 

Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 N/A $ 388 665,546 665.925 9 
8-3-88 to 9-28-88, award - $563,438 

T9tal	 U.S. Department of 
Agriculture 388 665,546 665,925 9 

Equal Employment Opportunity Commission Direct 
Programs: 

Employment discrimination - state & local 
Anti-discrimination agency contracts 30.002 41.744~ ~ ~ 

10-1-90 to 9-30-91 award - $54,924
 
10-1-89 to 9-30-90 award - $32,302
 
10-1-88 to 9-30-89 award - $53,200
 
10-1-87 to 9-30-88 award - $52,516
 

Total Equal Employment Opportunity	 16,527 32,305 41,744 7,088 

U.S.	 Department of Interior: 
Direct programs:

Urban Park and Recreation Recovery Programs: 15.919 N/A 30,700 30,700 
Maintenance management services 

1983-1986 award - $100,000 
Maintenance infonnation	 systems


1983-1986 award - $25,000
 

Recreation organization development 15.919 ~	 ~ 
1986-1987 award - $25,000 

Total U.S. Department of Interior 55.850 30,700 25,150 

National Foundation of the Arts and the Humanities: 
Direct programs:

Institute of museum services 45.301 N/A 163,004 158.727 135,952 185.779 
Total National Foundation of the 

Arts and the Humanities 163,004 158,727 135,952 185,779 

Total federal assistance per City's
general purpose financial statements 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct federal payments to a subrecipient:

Rental Housing Rehabilitation (note 4) 14.230 N/A 

$ (3,115,871) 

$ 

29,952,374 

174,431 

27.616,742 

174,431 

(780,239) 

.. Major program 

See notes to schedule of federal financial assistance. 



I 
CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 

Notes to Schedule of Federal Financial.Assistance 

I
 
I
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1990 

(1) General 

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance (SFFA) presents Ithe activity of all federal financial assistance programs of the City 
of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. The City of Pittsburgh reporting entity 
is defined in note 2 to the City's general purpose financial 
statements. All federal financial assistance received directly from I 
federal agencies as well as federal financial assistance passed through 
other government agencies are included on the schedule. 

I
(2) Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying SFFA is presented using the cash basis of accounting. I 
(3) Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements 

The receipts and disbursements reported in the accompanying SFFA differ I 
from the respective revenues and expenditures reported in the general 
purpose financial statements due to the use of the cash basis of 
accounting for the schedule of federal financial assistance. I 

(4) Contractual Agreement 

The City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania is a contractual recipient of federal I 
financial assistance under agreements with the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The City has authorized HUD to 
transmit funds under one of these agreements directly to the Urban I
Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh (the Authority) which is the 
representative agency with program oversight responsibility. 
Therefore, the related federal financial assistance is reported by the IAuthority to its cognizant agency in the Authority's audit report under 
the Single Audit Act of 1984. This information is also included in the 
City's schedule of federal financial assistance although it has been 
excluded from the City's general purpose financial statements. I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

SA-S I 



I KPMG Peat Marwick 
I One Mellon Bank Center Telephone 412 391 9710 Telecopier 412 391 8963 

Pittsburgh, PA 15219 Telex 7106642199 PMM & CO PGH 

I Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance at 
the General Purpose Financial Statement Level 

I The Honorable Members of Council of 
the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania: 

I We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania as of and for the year ended December 31, 1990, and 
have issued our report thereon dated June 12, 1991, which report was qualified

I because of the omission of a general fixed asset account group from the City's 

I 
financial statements. We did not audit the financial statements of the 
Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority or the Stadium Authority of the City of 
Pittsburgh, which statements comprise the entire enterprise fund type. We did 

I 
not audit the financial statements of the following City of Pittsburgh Pension 
Trust Funds: Comprehensive Board, Municipal Plan, Police Plan and Fire Plan, 
which statements reflect total assets and revenues comprising 64 percent and 
89 percent, respectively, of the related Fiduciary Fund totals. Those 
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have 
been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates

I to the amounts included for the proprietary and fiduciary fund types, is based 
solely upon the reports of the other auditors. 

I We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

I 
standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

I 
Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to the City 
of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania is the responsibility of the City of Pittsburgh, 

I 
Pennsylvania's management. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about 
whether the general purpose financial statements are free of misstatement, we 
performed tests of the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania's compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. However, our 
objective was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such 
provisions; accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

I 
I 

The results of our tests and the reports of other auditors indicate that, with 
respect to the items tested, the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania complied, in 
all material respects, with the provisions referred to in the preceding 

I 
paragraph. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our attention 
that caused us to believe that the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania had not 
complied, in all material respects, with those provisions. 

I 
This report is intended for the information of management, the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development and other regulatory agencies. This restriction 
is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of 
public record. 

I 
June 12, 1991 

I 
SA-6 

MemberFirmof 
Klynveld Peal Marwick Goerdeler 



I
KPMG Peat Marwick 

One Mellon Bank Center Telephone 412 391 9710 Telecopier 412391 8963 I 
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 Telex 7106642199 PMM & CO PGH 

Independent Auditors' Report on I 
General Compliance Requirements 

I 
The Honorable Members of Council of 

the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania: I 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1990, and I 
have issued our report thereon dated June 12, 1991, which report was qualified 
because of the omission of a general fixed asset account group from the City's 
financial statements. We did not audit the financial statements of the IPittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority or the Stadium Authority of the City of 
Pittsburgh, which statements comprise the entire enterprise fund type. We did 
not audit the financial statements of the following City of Pittsburgh Pension 
Trust Funds: Comprehensive Board, Municipal Plan, Police Plan and Fire Plan, I 
which statements reflect total assets and revenues comprising 64 percent and 
89 percent, respectively, of the related Fiduciary Fund totals. Those 
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have I
been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates 
to the amounts included for the proprietary and fiduciary fund types, is based 
solely upon the reports of the other auditors. I 
We have also applied procedures to test the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania's 
compliance with the following requirements applicable to each of its major 
federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the I 
accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance, for the year ended 
December 31, 1990. 

IPolitical activity 
Davis-Bacon Act 
Civil rights 
Cash management I 
Relocation assistance and real property management 
Federal financial reports 
Allowable costs/cost principle I
Drug-free workplace 

Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in the IOffice of Management and Budget's "Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of 
State and Local Governments". Our procedures were substantially less in scope 
than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on the 
City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania's compliance with the requirements listed in I 
the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no Imaterial instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the second 
paragraph 0 f this report. Wi th respect to items not tested, nothing came to 
our attention that caused us to believe that the City of Pittsburgh, 
Pennsylvania had not complied, in all material respects, with those I 
requirements. 

Member Firm of SA-7 
Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler 
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the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
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I
 
This report is intended for the information of management, the Department of

I Housing and Urban Development and other regulatory agencies. This restriction 
is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of 
public record. 

I
 
I
 

June 12, 1991 

I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
 
I
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I
KPMG Peat Marwick 

One Mellon Bank Center Telephone 412391 9710 Telecopier 412391 8963 I 
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 Telex 7106642199 PMM & CO PGH 

I 
Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance With 

Specific Major and Nonma10r Program Requirements 

I 
The Honorable Members of Council of
 

the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania:
 I 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of I 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1990, and
 
have issued our report thereon dated June 12, 1991, which report was qualified
 
because of the omission of a general fixed asset account group from the City's
 Ifinancial statements. We did not audit the financial statements of the
 
Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority or the Stadium Authority of the City of
 
Pittsburgh, which statements comprise the entire enterprise fund type. We did
 
not audit the financial statements of the following City of Pittsburgh Pension
 I 
Trust Funds: Comprehensive Board, Municipal Plan, Police Plan and Fire Plan,
 
which statements reflect total assets and revenues comprising 64 percent and
 
89 percent, respectively, of the related Fiduciary Fund totals. Those
 I
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have
 
been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates
 
to the amounts included for the proprietary and fiduciary fund types, is based
 Isolely upon the reports of the other aUditors. 

We have also audited the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania's compliance with 
the requirements governing types of services allowed or unallowed; I 
eligibility; matching, level of effort, or earmarking; reporting; claims for 
advances and reimbursements; and amounts claimed or used for matching that are 
applicable to each of its major federal financial assistance programs, which I are identified in the accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance, 
for the year ended December 31, 1990. The management of the City of 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania is responsible for the City's compliance with those 
requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with I 
those requirements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing I 
standards; Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-128, 
Audits of State and Local Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 Irequire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether material noncompliance with the requirements referred to above 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
City's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our audit and the I 
reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The results of our audit procedures disclosed immaterial instances of I
noncompliance with the requirements referred to above, which are described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We considered 
these instances of noncompliance in forming our opinion on compliance, which Iis expressed in the following paragraph. 

SA-9 I 
Member Firm 01 
Klynveld Peal Marwick Goerdeler 
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I The Honorable Members of Council of 
the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
 

Page 2
 

I 
I 

In our opinion, the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania complied, in all material 
respects, with the requirements governing types of services allowed or 
unallowed; eligibility; matching, level of effort, or earmarking; reporting; 
claims for advances and reimbursements; and amounts claimed or used for 
matching that are applicable to each of its major federal financial assistance

I programs for the year ended December 31, 1990. 

I 
I 

In connection with our audit of the 1990 general purpose financial statements 
of the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, and with our study and evaluation of 
the City's internal control systems used to administer federal financial 
assistance programs, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular 
A-128, "Audits of State and Local Governments," we selected certain 
transactions applicable to certain nonmajor federal financial assistance 
programs for the year ended December 31, 1990. 

I As required by OMB Circular A-l28, we have performed auditing procedures to 

I 
test compliance with the requirements governing types of services allowed or 
unallowed; eligibility; matching level of effort, or earmarking; reporting; 
claims for advances and reimbursement; and amount claimed or used for matching 

I 
that are applicable to those transactions. Our procedures were substantially 
less in scope than an aud·it, the objective of which is the expression of an 
opinion on the City's compliance with these requirements. Accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. 

I 
With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no 
material instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the 

I 
preceding paragraph. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our 
attention that caused us to believe that the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 
had not complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. 

This report is intended for the information of management, the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development and other regulatory agencies. This restriction

I is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of 
public record. 

I 
I June 12, 1991 

I
 
I
 

SA-lO
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IKPMG Peat Marwick 
One Mellon Bank Center Telephone 412 391 9710 Telecopier 412 391 8963 I
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 Telex 7106642199 PMM & CO PGH 

IIndependent Auditors' Report 

I 
The Honorable Members of Council of
 

the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania:
 I 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of
 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1990, and
 Ihave issued our report thereon dated June 12, 1991, which report was
 
qualified because of the omission of a general fixed asset account group from
 
the City's financial statements. We did not audit the financial statements
 
of the Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority or the Stadium Authority of the
 I 
City of Pittsburgh, which statements comprise the entire enterprise fund
 
type. We did not audit the financial statements of the following City of
 
Pi ttsburgh Pension Trust Funds: Comprehensive Board, Municipal Plan, Police
 I
Plan and Fire Plan, which statements reflect total assets and revenues
 
comprising 64 percent and 89 percent, respectively, of the related Fiduciary
 
Fund totals. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
 Ireports thereon have been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein,
 
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the proprietary and
 
fiduciary fund types, is based solely upon the reports of the other aUditors.
 I 
We conducted our audit . in accordance with generally accepted auditing
 
standards and Government AUditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
 Iperform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general
 
purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement.
 

IIn planning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial 
statements of the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, for the year ended 
December 31, 1990, we considered its internal control structure in order to 
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion I 
on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on
 
the internal control structure.
 

IThe management of the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling 
this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to 
assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure I 
policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are 
to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and I
that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization 
and recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors or I 
irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection 
of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk 
that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or I 
that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures 
may deteriorate. 

I
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I For the purpose of this report, we have 
control structure policies and procedures 

I Activity Cycles 

Cash receipts

I Cash disbursements 
Payroll 
General ledger 

I General Requirements 

Policy activity

I Davis-Bacon Act 
Civil rights 
Cash management 

classified the significant internal 
in the following categories: 

I Relocation assistance and real property management 

I 
Federal financial reports 
Allowable costs/cost principle 
Drug-free workplace 
Administrative requirements 

Specific Requirements 

I 
I Types of services
 

Eligibili ty
 
Matching level of effort
 

I 
Reporting
 
Cash allocation
 
Special requirements
 
Monitoring subrecipients
 

I 
For all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we 
obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures 
and whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk. 

I Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily 
disclose all matters in the internal control st~ucture that might be material 
weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants. A material weakness is a condition in which the design

I or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does 
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities 
in amounts that would be material in relation to the general purpose

I financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected wi thin a 

I 
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control structure and 
its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. 
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This report is intended solely for the use of management, the 
Housing and Urban Development and other regulatory agencies and 
used for any other purpose. This restriction is not intended 
distribution of this report which is a matter of public record. 
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I Independent Auditors' Report 

I The Honorable Members of Council of 
the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania: 

I 
I We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of 

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1990, and 
have issued our report thereon dated June 12, 1991, which report was qualified 
because of the omission of a general fixed asset account group from the City's 
financial statements. We did not audit the financial statements of the 
Pittsburgh Water and Sewer Authority or the Stadium Authority of the City of

I Pittsburgh, which statements comprise the entire enterprise fund type. We did 

I 
not audit the financial statements of the following City of Pittsburgh Pension 
Trust Funds: Comprehensive Board, Municipal Plan, Police Plan and Fire Plan, 
which statements reflect total assets and revenues comprising 64 percent and 

I 
89 percent, respectively, of the related Fiduciary Fund totals. Those 
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have 
been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates 
to the amounts included for the proprietary and fiduciary fund types, is based 
solely upon the reports of the other auditors. We have also audited the City 
of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania's compliance with requirements applicable to major

I federal financial assistance programs and have issued our report thereon dated 
June 12, 1991. 

I 
I We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards; Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-l28, 
Audits of State and Local Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

I 
about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material 
misstatement and about whether the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, complied 
with laws and regulations, noncompliance with which would be material to a 
major federal financial assistance program. 

I In planning and performing our audits for the year ended December 31, 1990, we 
considered the City's internal control structure in order to determine our 
audi ting procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the City's 
general purpose financial statements and on its compliance with requirements

I applicable to major programs and not to provide assurance on the internal 

I 
control structure. This report addresses our consideration of internal 
control structure policies and procedures relevant to compliance with 
requirements applicable to federal financial assistance programs. We have 
addressed policies and procedures relevant to our audit of the general purpose 
financial statements in a separate report dated June 12, 1991. 
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IThe management of the City of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling 
this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to 
assess the expected benefits and related costs of control structure policies I 
and procedures. The objectives of internal control structure are to provide 
management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are 
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that Itransactions are executed in accordance with management I s authorization and 
recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and 
that the federal financial assistance programs are managed in compliance with I 
applicable laws and regulations. Because of inherent limitations in any 
internal control structure, errors, irregularities or instances of 
noncompliance may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection I 
of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk 
that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or 
that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures Imay deteriorate. 

For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal 
control structure policies and procedures used in administering federal I 
financial assistance programs in the following categories: 

Activity Cycles I 
Cash receipts
 
Cash disbursements
 IPayroll
 
General ledger
 

General Requirements I 
Policy activity
 
Davis-Bacon Act
 ICivil rights
 
Cash management
 
Relocation assistance and real property management
 
Federal financial reports
 I 
Allowable costs/cost principle
 
Drug-free workplace
 
Administrative requirements
 I
 

I
 
I
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I 
Specific Requirements 

I Types of services 

I 
Eligibility
 
Matching level of effort
 
Reporting
 

I 
Cash allocation
 
Special requirements
 
Monitoring subrecipients
 

For all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we
 
obtained an understanding of the desiin of relevant policies and procedures


I and determined whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed
 
control risk.
 

I
 During the year ended December 31, 1990, the City of Pittsburgh,
 
Pennsylvania, expended 97 percent of its total federal financial assistance 
under major federal financial assistance programs. 

I We performed tests of controls, as required by OMS Circular A-128, to 

I 
evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of internal control 
structure policies and procedures that we considered relevant to preventing 
or detecting material noncompliance with specific requirements, general 

I 
requirements and requirements governing claims for advances and 
reimbursements and amounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable 
to each of the City's major federal financial assistance programs, which are 
identified in the accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance. Our 
procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on 
these internal control structure policies and procedures. Accordingly, we do

I not express such an opinion. 

I 
I 

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily 
disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be material 
weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants. A material weakness is a reportable condi tion in which 
the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure 
elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that 
noncompliance with laws and regulations that would be material in relation to 
a federal financial assistance program may occur and not be detected within a

I timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control structure and 
its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. 
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I
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This report is intended solely for the use of management, the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development and other regulatory agencies and should not be 
used for any other purpose. This restriction is not intended to limi t the 
distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 
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CFDA 1117.250
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I CFDA 1/17.250 

I
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended December 31, 1990 

Findings/Noncompliance 

Finding No.1 

Actual Expenditures Within Two-Year Cycle 
Compared to Allocation 

Pennsylvania Department of Labor requires 
that at least 70 percent of all allocated 
expenditures be used for training. Adult/ 
Youth Program (7-1-88 to 6-30-90) used only 
67 percent of its allocated funds for 
training. 

City's Response: 

The City agrees that less than 70 percent 
of all allocated Adult/Youth Program 
expenditures were for training (7-1-88 to 
6-30-90). The shortfall in this area was 
caused by not expending all available 
dollars. All the funds were programmed 
but not expended by our program contractors. 
As a result, management is meeting quarterly 
to review expenditures and determine 
possible courses of action. In addition, 
attempts are being made to project the 
program contractors' underexpenditure level 
and take the information into consideration 
in planning our expenditures. 

Finding No.2 

Actual Expenditures Within Two-Year Cycle 
Compared to Allocation 

Pennsylvania Department of Labor requires 
that at least 85 percent of all allocated 
expenditures be expensed. Older Workers 
Program (7-1-88 to 6-30-90) used only 42.4 
percent of its allocated funds. 

Questioned 
costs 

* 

* 

* Amount of questioned costs is either nominal or not ascertainable. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA I 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

I 
Questioned
 

Program Findings/Noncompliance costs
 I 
City's Response: 

IThe City agrees with this finding. 
Modifications to the City of Pittsburgh's 
Cooperative Agreement were received very 
late in both fiscal years. These funds were I 
to be expended by either the City or the 
program contractors prior to the end of the 
respective fiscal years; however, only 1 1/2 Iand 2 1/2 months were available to us to 
expend the funds. Because of the short time 
periods, it was impossible to expend these 
funds by the end of the fiscal years. I 
Finding No.3 I 

CFDA 1117.250 Subrecipients Requirements * 
Contract agreements require all Isubrecipients to forward their invoices 
to JTPA 15 days subsequent to month end. 
KPMG noted per review of the subrecipient 
audit reports that there were various I 
sUbrecipients that were not submitting their 
invoices on a timely basis. JTPA does not 
follow up on these matters until the final I
determination letter is issued. 

City's Response: I 
The City agrees with this finding. To 
resolve this situation, its importance has 
been emphasized in the Request for Proposals I 
(RFP) and meetings with the proposers. 
Invoicing procedures are discussed at each 
program contract negotiation meeting. The IFiscal Section has initiated a procedure of 
preparing periodic contract status reports 
which are used by the Operations staff to 
inform program contractors that their invoices I 
are late. The subrecipient auditors are 
requested to include this as an audit exception 
for program contractors who do not comply with I 
their agreements. 

* Amount of questioned costs is either nominal or not ascertainable. I 
(Continued) 
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I CITY OF PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

I 
Questioned

I Program Findings/Noncompliance costs 

Finding No.4 

CFDA 1/17.250 Subrecipients RequirementsI * 
Pennsylvania Department of Labor requires

I the primary recipient to issue a final 

I 
determination letter in regard to audit 
findings issued in a subrecipient's audit 
report within six months of the date the 

I 
audit report was received. KPMG noted 14 
instances where JTPA has not filed a final 
determination letter as of April 18, 1991. 
The audit reports were received by JTPA on 
June 30, 1990. 

I City'S Response: 

I 
The City agrees with this finding. This 
requirement became effective with the 

I 
7-1-90 JTPA manual revision. The final 
resolution of prior subrecipient audits 
will be completed within the next few months. 
Future subrecipient audit findings performed 

I 
will be resolved within six months of the 
date of receipt of the audit report, including 
repayment of any disallowed costs. 

* Amount of questioned costs is either nominal or not ascertainable. 
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